
 

 

MEETING: Health and Wellbeing Board 

DATE: Thursday, 3 February 2022 

TIME: 2.00 pm 

VENUE: Council Chamber, Barnsley Town Hall 

 
AGENDA 
 
Statutory Items 
 
1   Declarations of Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary Interests   

 
2   Minutes of the Board Meeting held on 7th October 2021  (Pages 3 - 8) 

 
3   Public questions   

 
4   Statement on resignation of the Chair (verbal)   

 
For Discussion/Decision 
 
5   Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment - Sohaib Akhtar  (Pages 9 - 20) 

 
6   Mental Health Strategy - Patrick Otway  (Pages 21 - 54) 

 
7   Child of the North: Building a Fairer Future after Covid-19 - Mel John Ross  

(Pages 55 - 60) 
 

8   Active in Barnsley Strategic Plan - Stuart Rogers & Dr Andy Snell  (Pages 61 - 
82) 
 

9   Affordable Warmth / Warm Homes Team -  Kathy McArdle & Claire Maskill  
(Pages 83 - 96) 
 

10   Barnsley Hospital Health Inequalities Action Plan - Dr Andy Snell  (Pages 97 - 
152) 
 

11   Integrated Care System Update - Jeremy Budd  (Pages 153 - 162) 
 

For Information 
 
12   Minutes from the Children and Young People's Trust Executive Group held on 

14th October 2021  (Pages 163 - 172) 
 

13   Minutes from the Safer Barnsley Partnership held on 21st June 2021  (Pages 173 
- 180) 
 

14   Minutes from the Stronger Communities Partnership held on 3rd June and 19th 
August 2021  (Pages 181 - 192) 
 

 
 
To: Chair and Members of Health and Wellbeing Board:- 
 

Councillor Jim Andrews BEM, Deputy Leader (Co-Chair) 

Public Document Pack



 

Dr Nick Balac, Chair, NHS Barnsley Clinical Commissioning Group (Co-Chair) 
Councillor Trevor Cave, Cabinet Spokesperson – Children’s 
Councillor Jenny Platts, Cabinet Spokesperson – Adults and Communities 
Mel John-Ross, Executive Director Children’s Services 
Wendy Lowder, Executive Director Adults and Communities 
Julia Burrows, Director of Public Health 
Chris Edwards, Chief Officer, NHS Barnsley Clinical Commissioning Group 
Jeremy Budd, Director of Commissioning and Partnerships, NHS Barnsley Clinical 
Commissioning Group 
James Abdy, Chief Superintendent, South Yorkshire Police 
Mark Janvier, NHS England Area Team 
Adrian England, HealthWatch Barnsley 
Dr Richard Jenkins, Chief Executive, Barnsley Hospital NHS Foundation Trust 
Rob Webster, Chief Executive, SWYPFT 
Amanda Garrard, Chief Executive Berneslai Homes 
Andrew Denniff, Chief Executive, Barnsley and Rotherham Chamber of Commerce 
John Marshall, Chief Executive, Barnsley CVS 
 

 
Please contact Elizabeth Barnard at governance@barnsley.gov.uk 
 
Wednesday, 26 January 2022 
 



 

MEETING: Health and Wellbeing Board 

DATE: Thursday, 7 October 2021 

TIME: 2.00 pm 

VENUE: Council Chamber, Barnsley Town Hall 
 

 
1 

 
MINUTES  
 
Present  
 

 

Councillor Jim Andrews BEM, Deputy Leader (Chair) 
Dr Nick Balac, Chair, NHS Barnsley Clinical Commissioning Group (Chair) 
Councillor Trevor Cave, Cabinet Spokesperson - Childrens Services 
Councillor Jenny Platts, Cabinet Spokesperson - Adults and Communities 
Julia Burrows, Director of Public Health,  
Jeremy Budd, Director of Commissioning and Partnerships, NHS Barnsley CCG 
Adrian England, Healthwatch Barnsley  
Amanda Garrard, Chief Executive Berneslai Homes 
Andy Snell, Public Health Consultant 
Diane Lee, Head of Public Health, BMBC 
Kathy McArdle, Service Director, Place, BMBC 
Julie Tolhurst, Public Health Principal, BMBC 
DCI Andrea Bowell, South Yorkshire Police 
Sue Barton, Deputy Director, SWYPFT 
Emma Robinson, Business Intelligence and Improvement Advisor 
 
 
 
 
 

1 Declarations of Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary Interests  
 
There were no declarations of pecuniary or non-pecuniary interest. 
 

2 Minutes of the Board Meeting held on 10th June, 2021 (HWB.07.10.2021/2)  
 
The meeting considered the minutes of the previous meeting held on 10th June 2021. 
 
RESOLVED that the minutes be approved as a true and correct record. 
 

3 Public Questions (HWB.07.10.2021/3)  
 
The meeting noted that no public questions had been received for consideration at 
today’s meeting. 
 

4 Position Statement - Zero tolerance for abuse of colleagues cross the system 
(HWB.07.10.2021/4)  
 
It was reported that because of the degree of pressure in the health and social care 
system, some members of the public were becoming increasingly frustrated 
displayed through abuse on staff and colleagues. A Zero tolerance approach around 
abuse was taken to the Integrated Partnership Group and agreed.  Partner agencies 

Page 3

Item 2



 
2 

are supportive of this approach and a joint statement will be issued in due course to 
confirm this. 
  
RESOLVED that the Zero Tolerance approach be noted and endorsed. 
 

5 Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2021-2030  - Diane Lee (HWB.07.10.2021/5)  
 
Diane Lee presented this item, seeking the Health and Wellbeing Board's approval 
and endorsement of the refreshed Health and Wellbeing Strategy (2021-2030) and 
seeking Members' views on next steps for the Board to ensure successful 
implementation of the Strategy.  The Strategy examines  what needs to be done 
collectively to achieve a Healthy Barnsley by 2030, focussing on the wider 
determinants of health.  Key ambitions for a Healthy Barnsley are set out on one 
page under the headings of Starting Well, Living Well and Ageing Well, with an initial 
focus on improving Mental Health for all ages and ensuring that Barnsley is a great 
place for a child to be born.  It was highlighted that in terms of next steps, the 
Strategy needs to be launched, implemented and shared  widely, including via social 
media channels, with examples from different organisations of the great work being 
done in the Borough.  A communication plan is being developed for this.  The 
Strategy was well received by the Board, and thanks expressed to all those involved.  
Performance and progress will be brought back to the Board.   
  
RESOLVED that the content and principles contained within the refreshed Health 
and Wellbeing Strategy (2021 – 2030 and the next steps in the launch and 
implementation thereof, be noted and endorsed. 
 

6 Barnsley Emotional Health and Wellbeing Strategy - Patrick Otway 
(HWB.07.10.2021/6)  
 
Patrick Otway introduced this item, providing the Board with an All-age Mental Health 
Strategy Update.  It was highlighted that the existing strategy is now over 6 years old 
and predates 'Five Year Forward View in Mental Health', 'Future in Mind', the NHS 
long Term Plan, the PHE Prevention Concordat for Better Mental Health and 
excludes Dementia.  There has been a significant transformation of mental health 
services since the original strategy and therefore, the refresh is timely.  The Mental 
Health Strategy Task and Finish group was established to refresh the strategy, 
overseen by the Mental Health Partnership Board (MHPB) which will be held to 
account by HWBB.  Lots of feedback and comments from partners and members 
have been received, which will be considered and incorporated where appropriate.  
The Mental Health Partnership has been leading on the chapters in the strategy with 
service user representation from the Mental Health Forum to scrutinise and challenge 
the work.  Tangible short terms actions will be considered as part of the action plan 
and a performance dashboard will be developed.  .  The strategy will need to go to 
DMTs of Place, Communities and Children within BMBC.  Future updating will be led 
by the Mental Health Partnership. 
  
RESOLVED that the Health and Wellbeing Board note the update and continue to 
offer constructive challenge and support. 
 
 
 
 

Page 4



 
3 

7 Tackling Excess Winter Deaths and Cold Weather Plan (HWB.07.10.2021/7)  
 
Julie Tolhurst introduced this item, outlining the impacts of cold weather on morbidity 
and excess winter mortality in Barnsley.  Barnsley's excess winter death rate in 
2018/19 was 17.7%, with respiratory diseases being the man underlying cause of 
excess winter deaths in Barnsley.  This is higher in older age groups and reflects the 
national picture.  Covid-19 has directly and indirectly had an impact on excess 
mortality from all causes, with shared risk factors amongst the most vulnerable.  
There is a time lag in data and progress has been made since these figures were 
produced.  Reassurances were given that real time data has been looked at during 
the course of the pandemic, with substantial work done around hospital mortality 
rates.  The collaborative cold weather plan aims to reduce excess winter deaths in 
Barnsley and improve flu and Covid vaccinations.  This will be delivered through the 
Warm Homes Service, Falls Prevention Support, the Flu and Covid Vaccination 
Programmes, Conditions management and a collaborative communications plan.  
  
Concerns were raised about the forthcoming cut to Universal Credit coupled with 
rising energy prices.   5000 Berneslai Homes tenants losing £20 per week will have 
an impact on the most vulnerable which will need to be minimised.  Although some 
funding will be received from central Government, it is unclear how this gap in 
finance will be plugged.  A holistic, multifactorial and collaborative approach is 
necessary, with better sharing of data and understanding across the system, as has 
been seen during the pandemic. In the early days of Covid, data and joined up 
intelligence was successfully used to identify people at greatest risk.  Connections 
with the voluntary and community sector will be of vital importance and the spirit of 
volunteering which developed over the pandemic will be key to this.     
  
RESOLVED that the Health and Wellbeing Board note the update and continue to 
input into the Cold Weather Plan for Barnsley. 
  
 

8 Integrated Care System Update - Jeremy Budd (HWB.07.10.2021/8)  
 
Jeremy Budd provided an update from the Barnsley Integrated Care Partnership 
Group (BICPG) on the development of the Integrated Care Partnership (ICP) 
Development Plan.  The Health and Care Bill is currently going through Parliament, 
with an anticipated date for Royal Assent of 1st April 2022. The Chief Executive is 
currently being recruited.  The role of the HWBB and relationship with other Boards 
and organisations within the Integrated Care System was outlined.  It was highlighted 
that the ICP sits across the whole of South Yorkshire and the South Yorkshire Health 
and Wellbeing Strategy will be formulated here.  The Thriving Places guidance (Sept 
2021) was outlined and includes what the place-based arrangements should look 
like; configuration, size and boundaries of the place;  system responsibilities and 
functions;  membership and the planned governance model.  The Design Team will 
continue to develop the outline ICP Development Plan for discussion at the 
forthcoming ICPG meeting. 
  
RESOLVED that the Health and Wellbeing Board note the update and arrange a 
face-to-face development session to further consider the complexities and 
implications of the Integrated Care System.   
  
 

Page 5



 
4 

9 Mental Health Partnership Update - Adrian England (HWB.07.10.2021/9)  
 

Since the last meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Board in June the Mental 
Health Partnership and its various sub-groups of the Partnership have worked 
on the following: 

 Overseeing the development of the new Emotional Health and Wellbeing 
Strategy, as already discussed. 

 Started to work on developing a dashboard to monitor performance 
across the system. There is an ask of the health and wellbeing board to 
support the development of the dashboard. The purpose of the 
dashboard is to enable the Partnership to monitor performance across 
the system, hold the system to account in delivering the Strategy and 
enable the partnership to make intelligent, evidence-based decisions.  

 Eating Disorders (ED): an all-age pathway is being explored, with training 

to be provided to GPs and partners, funding for which has been secured 
until March and training is ready to commence. 

 Other work is ongoing in terms of MH Transformation and several groups 
have been established to progress key areas including crisis care, rehab 
and recovery, eating disorders (as above) and personality disorder.   
These areas will be the priorities for the Mental Health Partnership going 
forwards. 

 Prevention for Better Mental Health fund – we’ve received £328,204 
funding (plus an additional £20,700 for admin and evaluation) to fund a 
range of prevention projects including to expand the current Umbrella 
service, a miniature woods and forestry network which aims to connect 
people with nature, Peer relationships service and promoting better 
mental health through sports clubs. We know these opportunities lead to 
the improvement in the wider determinants of Mental Health and 
Wellbeing. 

 The Delivery Group meets monthly, has strong representation from a 
range of services. The Mental Health Forum represent service users but 
we’re currently exploring how we can have greater representation from 
service users and carers. 

 Latest suicide profiles published online covering data from 2018 – 2020. 
Barnsley’s overall rate has risen to the highest rate since data collection 
began 20 years ago. It’s a stark reminder that we need to do more as a 
system to prevent suicide in Barnsley. However, we have recently 
secured £60k funding to enable real time surveillance for cases of 
attempted suicide – this should help to prevent suicide, as we know a 
large proportion of suicides have had a previous attempt and are already 
known to the health and care system 

 Established section 136 task and finish group and working with Yorkshire 
Ambulance Service to establish an emergency mental health vehicle for 
Barnsley. 

A discussion took place regarding eating disorders.  This is a target area for the 
Partnership and is one of the task and finish groups.  More information can be 
brought to the next Board meeting. 
 

RESOLVED that the update be noted.   
 

Page 6



 
5 

10 Key points from the Children and Young People's Trust Executive Group  
(HWB.07.10.2021/10)  
 
Cllr T. Cave reported that the Minutes from the last meeting have not yet been 
formally agreed and published.  An update will be available at the next meeting. 
  
RESOLVED that the update be noted.    
 

11 Key points from the Safer Barnsley Partnership Board held on 21st June, 2021 
- Wendy Lowder (HWB.07.10.2021/11)  
 
The meeting considered the minutes from the Safer Barnsley Partnership held on 
21st June, 2021.  Cllr Platts provided a further update, highlighting that Chief 
Superintendent Abdy was now in post and has taken on the role of Board Co-Chair.  
A case study around the experience of a customer's experience of anti social 
behaviour (ASB) was described along with an overview of the Board's performance.  
It was highlighted that there has been some rise in ASB due to the lifting of Covid 
restrictions. 
  
RESOLVED that the minutes be received and the update noted. 
 

12 Key points from the Stronger Communities Partnership held on 3rd June, 2021 
- Councillor Platts (HWB.07.10.21/12)  
 
The meeting considered the minutes from the Stronger Communities Partnership 
meeting held on 3rd June 2021.  Cllr Platts provided a further  update, highlighting 
the direction of travel for the Board going forward, Barnsley 2030, the work of the 
Mental Health Partnership and the Forward Plan.  Meetings of the Board continue to 
be well attended. 
 
RESOLVED that the minutes be received and the update noted. 
 
 
 
 

------------------------------------------ 
Chair 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Pharmaceutical Needs 

Assessment (PNA)

Sohaib Akhtar

Public Heath Practitioner

Barnsley Health & Wellbeing Board

03/02/2022

P
age 9

Item
 5



What is the PNA? 

A Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment (PNA) is a 

comprehensive assessment of the current and 

future pharmaceutical needs of the local population. 

Barnsley’s H&WB has a legal duty to ensure the 

production of a PNA every 3 years.

The NHS (Pharmaceutical and Local 

Pharmaceutical Services) Regulations 2013, require 

each HWB to:

•Publish its first PNA by 1 April 2015.

•Current PNA (2018-2021) 

•April 2021 delayed with revised deadline of 

October 2022

P
age 10



Pharmaceutical Regulations

• The PNA is a complex process that 
needs to fully comply with 
Pharmaceutical Regulations - We will 
need to fully understand the 
regulations as failure to produce a 
legally compliant PNA could result in a 
legal challenge.

• Capacity in most organisations is a 
challenge currently and the dedicated 
time to produce a PNA is enormous - it 
usually takes a full 12 months from 
initiation to completion.

P
age 11



The PNA Document
• PNA document will provide a 

complete picture of the local 
population and how they differ in 
terms of their health needs and 
requirements. 

• The document will map all the 
current pharmaceutical services 
provided in the borough. (Shape 
Tool)

• Identifies the current gaps in 
pharmaceutical services that 
needs to be filled.

• PNA used to predict the 
pharmaceutical needs of the 
population in the future. 

P
age 12



P
age 13



• The 2022-2025 PNA will present a picture of 

community pharmacy need and provision in 

Barnsley. This PNA will be used by NHS 

England to inform:

- decisions regarding which NHS funded services 

need to be provided by community pharmacies 

and dispensing appliance contractors in Barnsley

- whether new pharmacies or services are needed

- decision-making about the relocation of existing 

pharmaceutical premises in response to 

applications by providers of pharmaceutical 

services

- the commissioning of locally enhanced services 

from pharmacies

How is it used?

P
age 14



Next Steps
• The PNA Steering Group will meet at critical points in the delivery of the 

2022 PNA to approve actions to date and escalate any issues.

• Statutory Consultation on the report will take place in May and June 2022. 

• A ‘final draft’ version of the PNA will be presented at Health and Wellbeing 

Board on the 4th of August 2022. 

• An electronic sign off from the Board would be required after the August 

Health and Wellbeing Board meeting.

• The PNA will be published and accessible on the BMBC’s external website 

before the 1st of October 2022. 

P
age 15



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1 

 

REPORT TO THE HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 
 

3rd February 2022 
 

Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment  
             
 

Report Sponsor: Julia Burrows 
Report Author: Sohaib Akhtar 

 
 
1. Purpose of Report 

  
1.1 The purpose of this report is to inform the Health and Wellbeing Board (H&WB) of its 

statutory duty to publish an updated Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment (PNA); and 
to update the H&WB on the plans to complete the Barnsley PNA and agree the 
suggested approval process for H&WB members to sign off the final PNA.  

 
2.  Recommendations 
 
2.1 H&WB members are asked to: - 
 

 Note the requirement to approve a PNA before the end of October 2022 (replacing 
31st March 2021).  

 Note the process for carrying out the Barnsley PNA set out in this paper. 

 Agree the proposed sign of process for approval of the final draft and final version of 
the PNA 2022.  

 
 
3.  Delivering the Health & Wellbeing Strategy 
 
3.1 The PNA is a statutory responsibility of the H&WB. It contributes to all three of the 

H&WB ambitions for Barnsley, Starting Well, Living Well and Ageing Well. 
 

3.2 It particularly contributes to the Living Well ambition since the PNA will ensure that 
everyone in Barnsley can access the pharmaceutical resources they need to live a 
healthy life. This can include both physical and mental health since Pharmacies offer a 
range of wellbeing services.  

 
 
4.  Reducing Health Inequalities 
 

4.1 The PNA will ensure we have local community pharmacies which meet the needs of the 
Barnsley population. Community Pharmacy teams are often well established within 
local communities and have a good understanding of their needs and challenges.  
 

4.2 The PNA aims to: 

 Identify gaps in provision or accessibility, including by area or population group  

 Provide area profiles with insights into the health burden in different areas of 
Barnsley.   

 

 
 

Page 17

https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/media/19957/barnsley-hwb-strategy-final-web.pdf


2 

 

5.  Introduction/ Background 
 

5.1 The Health and Social Care Act 2012 transferred responsibility to develop and 
update PNA’s from Primary Care Trusts to H&WB with effect from 1 April 2013. At 
the same time responsibility for using PNAs as the basis for determining market 
entry to a pharmaceutical list transferred from Primary Care Trusts to NHS England 
and NHS Improvement. 

5.2 Barnsley H&WB published their current PNA on 1 April 2018, which was due to be 
reviewed and updated by 1 April 2021.  Due to ongoing pressures across all sectors 
in response to the COVID-19 pandemic, the requirement to publish renewed PNAs 
has been suspended by the Department of Health and Social Care and a revised 
publication of 1 October 2022 has been set. 

5.3 Requirements for PNAs are set out in the National Health Service (Pharmaceutical 
Services and Local Pharmaceutical Services) Regulations 2013.  These cover the 
minimum information to be included, the matters which must be considered and the 
process to be followed.  This process includes formal consultation with specific 
stakeholders for a minimum of 60 days.   

5.4 The PNA is a key commissioning tool to ensure that local areas have high quality 
pharmaceutical services that meet local needs. The PNA sets out the community 
pharmaceutical services that are currently provided and gives recommendations to 
address any identified gaps, taking into account future needs. 

5.5 The PNA supports the commissioning intentions for pharmaceutical services and 
other services that could be delivered by community pharmacies and other 
providers. It will inform commissioning decisions by local authorities, NHS England 
and Clinical Commissioning Groups.  The PNA is also a key document used in 
decisions around applications to open new and close pharmacy premises. 

 
6. Summary of the approach   
 

6.1 A local steering group has been established to advise and support the preparation of a 

comprehensive PNA, building on expertise from Barnsley partners from the Local 

Pharmaceutical Committee, Local Medical Committee, Clinical Commissioning Group, 

Healthwatch, NHS England and Barnsley Council.  

6.2 An outline timetable for completion of this work has been developed and agreed by the 

project group. The new PNA should be published and available on the BMBC website 

on 1st October 2022.   

6.3 A ‘final draft’ of the PNA will be presented to the Health and Wellbeing Board taking 

place on the 4th of August 2022.  

6.4 If there are any changes required to the final draft, an electronic sign off from the Board 

would be required after the August Health and Wellbeing Board meeting. 

Page 18

https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/media/17918/barnsley-pna-2018-2021-final-version.pdf


3 

 

 
7.   Conclusion/ Next Steps 

7.1 The PNA Steering Group will meet at critical points in the delivery of the 2022 PNA to 

approve actions to date and escalate any issues.  

7.2 A ‘final draft’ version of the PNA will be presented at Health and Wellbeing Board on 

the 4th of August 2022.  

 

8.  Financial Implications 
 

8.1 No financial implications identified at this time. 
 
 
 

9 Consultation with stakeholders 
 

9.1 The PNA is subject to a 60-day statutory consultation period which will take place 
during May and June 2022.  Regulation 8 of the Pharmaceutical Services 
Regulations specifies that the Health and Wellbeing Board must consult with the 
following: - 

 

 the Local Pharmaceutical Committee 

 the Local Medical Committee 

 any persons on the pharmaceutical lists and any dispensing doctors list for its 
area 

 any Local Pharmacy Services (LPS) chemist in its area with whom NHS England 
has made arrangements for the provision of any local pharmaceutical services 

 Healthwatch, and any other patient, consumer or community group in its area 
which in the view of the Health and Wellbeing Board has an interest in the 
provision of pharmaceutical services in its area;  

 any NHS Trust or NHS Foundation Trust in its area 

 NHS England 

 any neighbouring HWB. 
 
 

9.2 Those being consulted will be directed to a draft PNA published on the Barnsley 
Council website. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Officer: Sohaib Akhtar     Date:03/02/2022 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

BARNSLEY 

MENTAL HEALTH AND WELLBEING 

STRATEGY 

2021 – 2025 

 

 

 

To be reviewed 2022/23 

 

 
 

Page 21

Item 6



1 
 

CONTENT           PAGE 

 

Introduction / Foreword              2 

Mental Health in Barnsley – A local Picture           4  

Wider determinants of mental health            8 

Early Intervention and Prevention            11 

Start Well – Perinatal Mental Health           13 

         Children and Young People                                                                       15 

Living Well (Adults)              17 

Ageing Well (Older Adults)             21 

Mental Health Crisis              24 

Suicide Prevention              26 

Conclusion               28 

Appendix 1 – Barnsley ‘Dementia and Me’ Strategy Plan on a Page       29 

Appendix 2 – Glossary             30 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Page 22



2 
 

Introduction/Foreword 
 

This Barnsley All-age Mental Health and Wellbeing Strategy will help to ensure that we 
have the conditions and culture to enable everyone within the local community to 
achieve their potential. This means that all residents of Barnsley will be able to enjoy 
those things that help them feel positive about their lives and gain access to high quality 
support and compassionate services when they need them. 

This strategy will reflect the following, positive definition of mental health, as stated by 
the World Health Organisation (WHO), which is broader than just mental illness: 

‘A state of wellbeing in which every individual realises his or her own potential, can cope 
with the normal stresses of life, can work productively and fruitfully, and is able to 
contribute to her or his community.’ 

Mental health is shaped by the wide-ranging characteristics (including inequalities) of 
the social, economic and physical environments in which people live. It is acknowledged 
for example, that people on low incomes have higher rates of mental health conditions, 
particularly severe and enduring problems, than those in higher income groups. 

Mental health and wellbeing is therefore something that affects us all and only by 
coming together to address the wider factors that affect mental health, by improving 
services and focusing on prevention, will Barnsley achieve its ambition of being a 
mentally healthy community. 

By implementing this strategy, it is our aim and our ambition, to improve the emotional 
health and wellbeing of all who reside within the Barnsley borough. 

Strong local partnerships have already worked closely together to develop this strategy 
as it is recognised that working collaboratively with other interested parties helps to 
develop a more robust and effective strategy. Partners will continue to work closely 
together to develop and implement an associated strategy delivery plan. Implementation 
of the delivery plan will enable us to improve the life outcomes of the local population. 

The development of this strategy has been overseen by the Barnsley Mental Health 

Partnership Board, whose members represent SWYPFT (South and West Yorkshire 

Partnership NHS Foundation Trust), the main mental health service provider in 

Barnsley, and other mental health service providers and practitioners (NHS and 

voluntary organisations), mental health service users and carers, Public Health, 

Commissioners, Local Authority, Barnsley Healthwatch, Barnsley Hospital, and South 

Yorkshire Police. The Mental Health Partnership Board reports directly into the Barnsley 

Health and Wellbeing Board. 

 

 

 

  

Page 23



3 
 

Over the course of this strategy’s development several principles and themes have 
emerged. These themes are reflected by everyone involved in developing this strategy 
agreeing to: 

 Ensure that service re-design and future service developments are produced in 
conjunction with people with ‘lived experience’. This way of working sees service 
users and service providers working together to reach an agreed outcome(s). 

 Understand the impact of trauma and adversity on peoples’ mental health. 
 Have a strong focus on the wider social determinants of mental health and 

illness. These are a broad range of social, economic and environmental factors 
which impact on people’s health and include things such as education, housing 
and employment status. 

 Ensure parity of esteem - that is, to value mental health equally to physical 
health. 

 Challenge stigma and prejudice. 
 Ensure actions and service developments / design are evidence-based. 
 Adopt a recovery focus where possible - in terms of mental wellbeing a recovery 

focus means gaining and retaining hope, understanding of one’s abilities and 
disabilities, engagement in an active life, personal autonomy, social identity, 
meaning and purpose in life, and a positive sense of self. 

 Address issues of inclusion and diversity - inclusion is about giving equal access 
and opportunities and getting rid of discrimination and intolerance. Diversity is 
about respecting and appreciating what makes people different. 

 Adopt a focus on prevention and early intervention with education being the key 
focus. By early intervention we mean getting help early for people showing the 
early signs and symptoms of a mental health difficulty and people developing and 
experiencing a first episode of mental illness. 

Having considered all of the local data and intelligence relating to local mental  health 
services and feedback from service users and service providers, the Mental Health 
Partnership Board agreed to have a greater focus over the next 12 months on eating 
disorder services, crisis care and self-harm support services, as there are particular 
challenges being experienced locally within each of these areas. 

The development of this strategy is not an end in itself. Together with the strategy 

delivery plan, the strategy will be continuously reviewed and updated by the Barnsley 

Mental Health Partnership Board, at least on an annual basis, to ensure that it always 

reflects both national demands and local need. 

 

 

 

Adrian England 

Chair, Barnsley Mental Health Partnership Board 

 

Page 24



4 
 

MENTAL HEALTH IN BARNSLEY – A LOCAL PICTURE 

Page 25



5 
 

 

Page 26



6 
 

Barnsley has developed its vision for 2030, outlined in the local strategy ‘Barnsley 

2030’. Implementation of this mental health and wellbeing strategy will enable delivery 

of some of the key ambitions contained within Barnsley 2030. 

We want everyone in Barnsley to have a good life. This means everything from a quality 

place to call home, to good physical and mental wellbeing and a sense of self-worth 

through diverse and secure employment opportunities. It is also about having access to 

the best possible local facilities in a community that values our people and our place. 

Our vision, ‘Barnsley – the place of possibilities’ requires us to focus on four key 

aspects: 

 Healthy Barnsley 

 Growing Barnsley 

 Learning Barnsley 

 Sustainable Barnsley 

This all-age mental health and wellbeing strategy is a key enabler of a ‘healthy 

Barnsley’ but will also impact on delivery of the overall Barnsley 2030 vision. Keeping 

ourselves and our families well is key to living productive and happy lives. We want to 

look after and support each other, as loving where you live has a huge, positive impact 

on your physical and mental wellbeing. We also want to ensure that people can access 

all of the care and support they need, at the right time and in the right place – keeping 

access to services as local as possible. 

It is essential therefore that everyone is able to enjoy life in good physical and mental 

health and that we have fewer people living in poverty with everyone having the 

resources they need to look after themselves and their families. We need to provide an 

environment in which our diverse communities are welcoming, supportive and resilient. 

 

Digitally-enabled Mental Health Care 

NHS England and NHS Improvement, as part of the NHS Long Term Plan, want to 

ensure that by 2024 all mental health service providers will be fully digitalized and 

integrated with other parts of the health and care system. 

Additionally, NHS England and NHS Improvement will continue to support the 

development of apps, digitally enabled models of therapy and on-line resources to 

support good mental health and enable recovery. 

It is acknowledged however, that not everyone has a home environment that makes 

confidential on-line conversations possible, nor does everyone trust the use of apps. In 

a CQC Community Mental Health report (published Dec 2021) the CQC states that, 

“many people reported negative experiences of remote care, noting that: 

Page 27



7 
 

- Building a therapeutic relationship with a clinician they were not familiar with was 

uncomfortable 

- There was lack of choice in the mode of remote treatment 

- Remote appointment times were more likely to be altered or cancelled altogether 

Although remote mental healthcare is likely to become increasingly widespread in 

secondary mental health services, it remains vitally important to have a tailored, 

personal approach to decision making in this area. 

Nevertheless, it is expected that by 2023/24, local systems will offer a range of self-

management apps, digital consultations and digitally enabled models of therapy. It is 

also expected that systems utilise digital clinical decision-making tools. These will be 

NHS approved. 

We are already making good progress towards this ambition in Barnsley, with self-care 

apps and on-line resources and therapy to be available in 2022. 

The local mental health service providers, especially our main provider of services 

SWYPFT, have moved quickly and successfully to developing digitally enabled mental 

health care as part of their response to the Covid-19 pandemic. We will continue to 

encourage our mental health providers to enhance their offer of digitally-enabled mental 

health care but we will ensure that this is not the sole method of delivery as there will 

always be a proportion of our local population who are unable, for many reasons, to 

access this form of care. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 28



8 
 

 

WIDER DETERMINANTS OF MENTAL HEALTH 

 

Our mental health and many common mental disorders are shaped by the social, 

economic, and physical environments in which we live, at different stages of life.  

Throughout the current coronavirus pandemic, these issues have contributed to 

widening health inequalities. 

Cycles of poverty and trauma can stay with families over decades and this may lead to 

challenges for these families in being able to access the most appropriate service that is 

able to support them effectively. 

Our aspiration is to reduce mental health inequalities associated with wider factors 
including: 

 Employment/income (good quality employment linked to education & skills; 
        supportive workplaces; impact of worklessness) 
 

 Housing (quality/type of housing; housing conditions, energy efficiency) 
 

 Transport (connectivity; access to public transport and active travel) 
 

 Air quality/noise (built up areas; traffic/congestion) 
 

 Access to green space & physical activity (accessible routes; using 
indoor/outdoor opportunities for physical activity) - recognizing the impact that 
seeing nature and wildlife has in making many people feel emotionally at ease. 

 

Employment & mental health 

There is clear evidence that good work improves mental health and wellbeing across 

people’s lives and protects against social exclusion. There is also evidence that 

unemployment can impact on an individual’s mental wellbeing, as it is associated with 

an increased risk of ill health and premature death. For people with mental health 

problems, this can be a barrier to gaining and retaining employment. 

Combined costs from worklessness and sickness absence amount to around £100 

billion annually, so there is also a strong economic case for action.  Addressing and 

removing health-related barriers requires collaborative work between partners from 

across the private, public and third sectors at both national and local level. 

There is a significant gap in the rate of employment amongst people in contact with 

secondary mental health services and the overall employment rate (2019-2020) 
 

 England = 68.2% 

Page 29



9 
 

 Yorkshire & Humber = 64.5% 
 Barnsley = 65.8%.  This gap has increased by almost 3 percentage points     

        from 2018/19 

 

 

Volunteering can be an excellent bridge from unemployment to employment as 
volunteering opportunities can create safer, lower pressured environments to build a 
person’s sense of confidence, esteem and self. 

 

Housing & mental health 

Good-quality, affordable and safe housing is vital to our good mental health, as well as 
supporting those people with existing mental health conditions.  Research shows that 
those who are homeless, or at risk of homelessness, are much more likely to 
experience mental distress and a significant number do not access the support they 
need.  

Compared with the general population, people with mental health conditions are: 

 one and a half times more likely to live in rented housing 
 more likely to experience instability with regards to tenancy agreements  
 four times as likely to say that it makes their health worse. 

The experience of mental ill health is different for everyone, and therefore, housing 
solutions for people with mental health problems must be equally diverse.   

Living in cramped or overcrowded accommodation or in a cold, energy inefficient home 
can impact on our mental health and people living with existing mental health issues are 
more vulnerable.  

 

Green space and Mental Health 

There is growing evidence showing the positive impacts of greenspace on our mental 
health.  For both children and adults, being in or near to natural environments enhances 
emotional wellbeing, reduces stress and improves resilience.  Greener environments 
have been shown to reduce levels of depression, anxiety, and fatigue and the beneficial 
effects are greatest for the most deprived groups. 

 

Culture and Arts 

Access to cultural experiences, e.g., museums, events, music and dance, have 
significant, positive impacts on mental health and wellbeing, either as a preventative 
measure or as part of recovery from mental ill health 

 

What will we do to achieve the above? 

 Improve the conditions of daily life across the life course to improve population 
mental health and to reduce the risk of those mental disorders that are 
associated with social inequalities 

Page 30



10 
 

 Ensure that mental health outcomes are included in all relevant local partnership 
strategies/policies (including Barnsley Inclusive Economy strategy, More & Better 
Jobs, Housing strategy and Transport strategy) 

 Develop improved integrated interventions for tackling wider factors impacting on 
an individual’s mental health 

 Prioritise the promotion of employment support via frontline NHS & care services, 
primary care teams, community services & CVS sector  

 Strengthen mental health support for businesses, particularly employers & 
employees in Small & Medium Enterprises 

 Establish effective hospital discharge arrangements for people with mental health 
conditions for a range of community support, including housing & employment. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 31



11 
 

EARLY INTERVENTION AND PREVENTION 

Early intervention means getting help early for people showing the early signs and 

symptoms of a mental health difficulty and people developing and experiencing a first 

episode of mental illness. Working with families (or specifically with parents) to build 

their understanding of the positive impact of good mental health and how to nurture 

good mental health is essential. A key aspect of early intervention and prevention 

therefore is education. 

Benefits of early intervention for someone experiencing a mental illness may include: 

 Lower risk of relapse 

 Less stressful assessment and treatment 
 Reduced need for hospitalisation 
 Reduced family disruption and distress 
 Improved recovery 
 Reduced risk of taking own life 

We all have mental health; however, not all of us live with good mental health. When 
our residents experience good mental health, we can make full use of our abilities, cope 
with the normal stresses of day-to-day life and play a full part in our families, 
workplaces, communities and among friends. Despite our mental health being such an 
important personal and social resource, the extent of mental health problems in the 
population means that too many of us are struggling, rather than thriving and reaching 
our full potential. 

We need to help people to develop personal resilience to sustain good mental health, 
promoting good mental health for all, across the life course from childhood to old age, 
including families and carers and work in schools. Many people may turn to their faith 
for support and we therefore need to consider the role of faith groups in supporting early 
intervention and prevention.  

We need to increase capacity in the community, including primary care, to support early 
intervention and prevention and prevent crisis situations. There must be joint cross-
sectoral action to deliver an increased focus on the prevention of mental health 
problems and the promotion of good mental health at a local level. This will draw on the 
expertise of people with lived experience of mental health problems, and the wider 
community, to identify solutions and promote equality. Indeed, there is already a huge 
contribution to the promotion of good mental wellbeing in Barnsley by VCSE (Voluntary, 
Community and Social Enterprise) organizations who are commissioned to provide low 
level prevention services. Greater focus will be placed on these services to enable 
communities to remain resilient. 

We need to encourage a positive attitude to mental health and wellbeing and work 
towards prevention and early intervention to support lifelong good mental health being 
everybody’s priority. We want mental health to be as important as physical health. We 
know there's things we can do as individuals to improve our mental health, but we also 
recognise the importance of other important wider factors such has housing, good 
employment, transport links, clean air and green spaces can have on our mental health. 

  

Page 32



12 
 

The vision within this section of the strategy will: 

 Provide early help, support, advice, and services to anyone who is struggling with 
poor mental health. 

 Make improving the support of our children and young people’s emotional 
wellbeing and mental health a priority and continue our work to transform 
services. 

 Enable resilience in the support of our communities, working in partnership with 
the third sector, education and community leaders to transform the mental health 
and well-being of Barnsley residents 

 Be based on best evidence and best practice  
 Recognise the main stages in life that affect us all differently and which can also 

impact on our mental wellbeing 
 Challenge mental health stigma and promote social inclusion and social justice 

for everyone affected by mental illness 
 Foster joint partnership working, cutting across organisational boundaries and 

disciplines to secure improvements within the borough, in turn increasing 
sustainability and the effective use of limited resources 

 Build capacity and capability across our workforce to help to prevent mental 
health problems and promote good mental health, as outlined in the Public 
Mental Health Leadership and Workforce Development Framework Call to Action 

  

How will we do it, within the lifetime of this strategy? 

We will have a strong focus on prevention, early intervention, resilience and recovery, 
as we believe a fundamental shift in focus is key to improving mental health and well-
being in Barnsley.  While delivering a responsive, effective and sustainable mental 
health system, we will realise our vision for mental health and well-being by: 

 Working in partnership and developing services with clinicians, experts by 
experience, families and carers 

 Drawing on up-to-date evidence and best clinical practice, whilst also innovating 
and trying new things 

 Developing models of care that are based on best evidence and best practice 
working alongside people who use the services and across organizational 
boundaries and disciplines to secure improvements and which are tailored to 
local needs 

 Continuing to remodel our services to get support to people at the earliest 
opportunity, with a focus on support for recovery, promoting inclusion and 
empowerment. 

 Empowering and supporting people to manage their own conditions and take 
control of their lives through choice and control. 

 Rebalancing the system – early access to help and support may help to reduce 
demand on acute and crisis services 

 Improving services for children and young people by intervening earlier and 
addressing mental health and wellbeing issues in schools and colleges 

 Ensuring that mental health outcomes are included in all other relevant 
partnership strategies/policies that support the wider determinants of health 
(Good Housing, Employment, Transport, Access to Green Spaces) 

 

Page 33



13 
 

START WELL 

 

Perinatal Mental Health (0 – 2 years) 

 

Perinatal Mental Health (PMH) problems generally refer to those which occur during 

pregnancy or in the first 24 months following the birth of the child. Anxiety and 

depression are the most common mental health issues in the perinatal period. 

Perinatal mental illness affects up to 20% of new and expectant mums and it is 

important that perinatal mental illness is treated because if left untreated, these mental 

health issues can have significant and long-lasting effects on the women, the child and 

the wider family. 

Expectant mums in Barnsley, who are experiencing mild to moderate levels of anxiety 

and depression, have priority access into the local Barnsley IAPT (Improve Access to 

Psychological Therapies) service, as this service will be able to provide the appropriate 

level of support they need. 

Barnsley also has a Specialist Perinatal Mental Health service which provides care and 

treatment for women with more complex mental health needs whilst supporting the 

developing relationship between parent and baby. Specialist perinatal mental health 

services also provide pre-conception advice to women who have had previous perinatal 

mental health issues or have existing perinatal mental health needs. Some women may 

need support in relation to the trauma experienced through having a disability screening 

test and the potential family breakdown that may follow a positive test result. Support 

may also be needed for women and their partners following loss through miscarriage, 

stillbirth and neonatal death. 

Barnsley has a Specialist Mental Health midwife based in the maternity department at 

Barnsley hospital, who provides low level emotional health and wellbeing support. In 

addition, Barnsley are also developing services to support women who have 

experienced PTSD (Post Traumatic Stress Disorder) as a result of ‘birth trauma’ or loss. 

This service is developing in conjunction with maternity services in each of the other 

South Yorkshire localities (I.e., Rotherham, Doncaster and Sheffield) and is based on 

the evidence that having a ‘birth trauma’ service to support these women and their 

families, significantly reduces their levels of stress, anxiety and depression. 

 

 

 

 

Page 34



14 
 

Over the next 2 years we will improve the outcomes of pregnant women and their 

families by: 

 Extending community perinatal mental health services from pre-conception to 24 

months after birth, which is aligned to the cross-government ambition for women 

and children, focusing on the first 1001 days of a child's life. 
 Expanding access to evidence-based psychological therapy services to include 

parent infant, couple, co-parenting and family interventions 
 Undertaking partner assessments - i.e., ensuring partners of women accessing 

specialist perinatal mental health services and maternal mental health services 

receive an evidence-based assessment of their own mental health and that they 

are signposted to the most appropriate support for them. 
 Introduce an ‘After thought / compassionate listening’ service 
 Extend the birth trauma service to include all loss – including birth removal 
 The Barnsley Maternal Mental Health group (membership includes midwifes and 

obstetricians, perinatal mental health practitioners, Public Health, Commissioners 

and service users as part of the local Maternity Voice Partnerships) will look to 

‘Make all Care Count’ by working together to develop a clear pathway across all 

the relevant statutory and voluntary sector services. 
 To promote and identify opportunities to further develop Peer support and 

encourage new people to become involved in the service user Maternity Voices 

Partnership (MVP) to provide ongoing feedback to services and to become 

involved and influence new service development. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 35



15 
 

Children and Young People (Currently 0-19 years old) 

 

To better support the emotional health and wellbeing of Barnsley’s children and young 

people we are focusing our efforts on implementing the recently co-produced CAMHS 

(Children’s and Adolescent Mental Health Services) Service Specification; implementing 

the recommendations of the Department of Education’s ‘Green Paper: Transforming 

Children and Young People’s Mental Health provision’; continuously engaging with 

young people so that they are able to influence service design and development; and 

implementing the action plan of the Children and Young People’s Emotional Health and 

Wellbeing group. 

In the immediate term, partners (including CAMHS, Mental Health Support Teams in 

Schools and colleges, Early Help Services, Chilypep and other charitable/third sector 

organisations, Public Health Nursing Service) are working together to ensure that our 

children and young people are appropriately supported with regards to the impact(s) of 

the coronavirus pandemic on themselves, their family, their friends and their local 

community. 

To ensure that children and young people experience positive emotional health and 

wellbeing and build resilience, all partners will work together to provide a borough in 

which: 

 Early signs and indications of poor mental health and wellbeing will be 

recognised and all children and young people will have access to the most 

appropriate support at the earliest possible opportunity. 

 All children and young people have access to high-quality emotional health and 

wellbeing support linked to their school or college and, if required, fully outlined 

within their Education, Health and Care Plan (EHCP). 

 All professionals working with children, young people and their families will have 

a good understanding of emotional health and wellbeing and services will be 

needs-led rather than focusing on the diagnosis or condition. 

 The most vulnerable young people in our community (e.g. those with a Learning 

Disability or Special Educational Need, Children in Care, young carers, young 

people with Autism or ADHD, young people educated at home and those young 

people who identify as LGBTQ+) will have targeted support to identify the specific 

needs unique to each group to ensure they are able to access the most 

appropriate support that best meets all of their needs. 

 

The NHS Long Term Plan has committed to expanding mental health services for 

children and young people, reducing unnecessary delays and delivering care in ways 

that work best for children, young people and their families. The NHS Long Term Plan 

identifies priority areas for children and young people’s mental health services, including 

Page 36



16 
 

widening access to community services, investment into eating disorder services, 

support for young people during a mental health crisis and developing new approaches 

to supporting young adults aged 18 – 25. 

Over the last 12 months within Barnsley there has been a significant increase in 

referrals citing emotional health and wellbeing as the main concern. Early Help data, as 

of 31/03/21, shows that 3,544 children and young people were subject to Early Help 

assessments – an increase of 846 when compared to the previous 12 months. Of these 

Early Help Assessments, 35% had the primary concern of emotional health and 

wellbeing. Within the same time period, we have also seen a 45% increase in the 

numbers of children and young people attending Barnsley Hospital’s Emergency 

Department as a result of anxiety, depression or low mood, alongside a 6% rise in 

admissions due to overdose. Compared to the whole of Yorkshire and Humber, 

Barnsley has more than twice the number of 10 – 24 year olds admitted to hospital as a 

result of self-harm.  

To combat the issues outlined above, and to better support our children and young 

people’s emotional health and wellbeing, a system-wide Emotional Health and 

Wellbeing Improvement Plan has been developed, and the implementation of the plan 

within the 6 key focus areas, has begun. The areas of focus include: 

 Workforce training and development 

 Early intervention and prevention 

 The role of schools and education workforce, including colleges, early years 

establishments and those electively educated at home 

 Working together: A better journey through mental health services 

 Improved support for vulnerable children and young people 

 Co-production and engagement 

 

Transition between educational establishments and between CAMHS and Adult Mental 

Health Services are areas which we are already aware need to be improved and 

transition is an aspect that will be covered within the key focus areas outlined above. 

A Single Point of Contact is currently being developed for children and young people 

and their families, where ALL requests for support around emotional health and 

wellbeing will be accepted. Ongoing consultation and engagement with children and 

young people and their families will help to influence the design and operation of this 

service development. It is expected that the Single Point of Contact will improve access 

to services and ensure that children and young people and their families will receive the 

most appropriate support as early as possible. 

 

 

Page 37



17 
 

LIVING WELL (Adults 18 – 65) 

 

The Community Mental Health Framework for Adults and Older Adults provides a 

historic opportunity to achieve radical change in the design of community mental health 

care by moving away from siloed, hard to reach services towards joined-up care and 

whole population approaches and establishing a revitalised purpose and identity for 

community mental health services. It supports the development of Primary Care 

Networks, Integrated Care Systems and personalised care, including how these 

developments will help to improve care for people with severe mental illness. 

Through the adoption of this Framework (as part of this local mental health strategy), 

people with mental health problems will be able to: 

 Access mental health care where and when they need it. 

 Manage their condition or move towards individualised recovery on their own 

terms. 

 Contribute to and be participants in local communities. 

Within this Framework, close working between professionals in local communities is 

intended to eliminate exclusions based on a person’s diagnosis or level of complexity 

and avoid unnecessary repeat assessments and referrals. In the more flexible model 

envisaged by the Framework, care will be centered around an individual’s needs and 

will be stepped up or down based on need and complexity, and on the intensity of input 

and expertise required at a specific time. 

Promoting positive emotional health and wellbeing of all Barnsley residents is a key 

ambition of this all-age mental health strategy. This ambition is aligned to the 

aspirations of the NHS Long Term Plan, which focuses on specific aspects of adult 

mental health within the community. The key aspects include: 

 

 Improving the physical wellbeing of those experiencing mental ill health. 

We are all aware that those with complex mental health needs are more often than not, 

disadvantaged and socially deprived than those in the wider population. This applies to 

all aspects of their lives, including housing, meaningful and paid occupation and social 

support and networks. 

 

 Improving the quality of life for those with complex mental health issues in 

Barnsley by ensuring that: 

 

 

i. GP held information is cross-referenced to ensure nobody has been 

overlooked 

Page 38



18 
 

ii. Local mental health service providers liaise with local agencies, including 

My Best Life, Age UK Barnsley, Barnsley Premier Leisure, Penistone 

Health Centre, Barnsley Carers Service, Barnsley and Rotherham MIND, 

Samaritans, to work together with the person and their family. 

iii. NHS England funding is utilized to make wellbeing equipment available to 

residents via community hubs – this equipment includes blood pressure 

monitors and fit-bits. 

iv. Staff are trained as wellbeing practitioners – we will provide programmes 

of training to staff in the use of equipment / physical health interventions 

e.g., stop smoking, weight management, venepuncture, ECG’s (Electro 

Cardio Graph machines), exercise, self-management of health conditions. 

v. We develop and mobilise a Physical Health Pathway with SWYPFT’s 

(South and West Yorkshire Partnership NHS Foundation Trust) in-patient 

and Community Teams. 

vi. We will deliver bite-size physical health training to mental health staff 

within SWYPFT. 

vii. We will deliver ‘interacting with service users with mental illness’ 

awareness training to all GP Practice colleagues 

viii. Where appropriate we will work with business settings to support them in 

developing Mental Health policy / standards for their own workforce. 

 

 Improving access to all services providing mental health support / advice and/or 

treatment. 

 

Over the past 2 years Barnsley’s Mental Health in-patient wards and Intensive 

Home-based Treatment Team have seen a significant rise in the number of 

service users using these services. We are also seeing a higher level of need 

and treatment required at first assessment than was previously seen prior to the 

pandemic. 

 

Improvements will be made by: 

 

i. Ensuring that the local population are aware of how to access those 

services that will improve their emotional wellbeing. 

ii. Bringing all mental health services / providers together to support the 

mental wellbeing of our communities. 

iii. Community supporters working proactively across all neighbourhoods 

developing strong links within the community and linking Barnsley’s 

Recovery College within General Practices and local community assets. 

Working with Barnsley Carers Service to identify carers, in order to give 

them the information, advice, emotional and practical support they need, 

in order to prevent carer breakdown. Working with adult learning 

Page 39



19 
 

organisations , such as Adult Skills and Community Learning, which offer 

activities and courses to people to help them improve their health and 

wellbeing – https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/services/adul-skills-and-

community-learning   in addition, Northern College offer specialist 

provision for people experiencing mental ill health 

iv. Reducing the numbers of residents taking their own lives and developing 

crisis alternatives to better support people experiencing a mental health 

crisis. 

v. Introducing Mental Health Practitioners working across secondary and 

primary care to provide brief interventions based on a biopsychosocial 

model. 

vi. Working with Creative Minds (a charitable organization linked to SWYPFT) 

to develop community assets across Barnsley, promoting creative ways in 

managing individual’s personal wellbeing and resilience. 

vii. Working closely alongside addiction services to jointly support those 

dealing with both mental health and addiction issues (dual diagnosis). 

viii. Promote the Barnsley 3rd Sector Dementia Alliance – this is 6 local 

charities (Age UK, Alzheimers Society, BIADS, Butterflies Dementia 

Support and Activities Group, Crossroads Barnsley, and Making 

Space/Barnsley Carers Service) working together to reach the estimated 

3000 people living with Dementia in Barnsley and their carers and other 

family members. The Alliance offers a range of Dementia Friendly social 

activities to keep these groups connected to each other and to other local 

services 

 

 Ensuring accessible and timely help for those experiencing Personality Disorder. 

 

There are currently 10 types of diagnosed personality disorders which can be 

broadly categorized into three groups: 

 

a. Suspicious 

b. Emotional and impulsive 

c. Anxious 

 

Within Barnsley we are currently experiencing challenges relating to people with 

Borderline Personality Disorder. Borderline Personality Disorder (grouped within 

the Emotional and impulsive category) is a severe mental disorder resulting from 

serious dysregulation of the affective system. Individuals with this disorder and 

associated difficulties demonstrate a characteristic pattern of instability in 

emotional regulation, impulse control, interpersonal relationships and self-image. 

People with these difficulties are more likely to self-harm and feel suicidal.  

 

Page 40

https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/services/adul-skills-and-community-learning
https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/services/adul-skills-and-community-learning


20 
 

We will improve the emotional health and wellbeing of Barnsley people who 

experience these difficulties and any other challenges experienced in relation to 

their diagnosed personality disorder, whichever type this is, by: 

 

i. Developing and implementing a Personality Disorder pathway, including 

the introduction of Dialectical Behaviour Therapy (DBT) and Mentalisation 

Based Therapy (MBT) which has not previously been offered. 

ii. Enabling the mental health staff of SWYPFT to receive Structured Clinical 

Management (SCM) training to enable teams to work with those with 

complex needs more effectively as a team. 

iii. Working with people with lived experience to shape how this pathway 

evolves and to provide training for staff around collaborative care planning 

to ensure multi-agency input. 

iv. Ensuring partners work together to provide a supportive network for those 

with Personality Disorder and their families. 

 

 Improving Access to Psychological Therapies (IAPT) 

 

The NHS Long Term Plan states that 9 out of 10 adults with mental health 

problems are supported within Primary Care. The IAPT programme, delivered by 

Mental Health Foundation Trusts, often within Primary Care, is aimed at treating 

common mental health conditions such as stress and mild to moderate anxiety 

and depression, is world leading and it is acknowledged that Mental illness is a 

leading cause of disability in the UK.  IAPT services have now evolved to deliver 

benefits to people with long term conditions (e.g., diabetes, heart conditions, 

cancer) and more than half of those people using IAPT services nationally, are 

moving to recovery. 

 

We will continue to improve access to Barnsley’s IAPT service by ensuring: 

i. A Psychological Wellbeing Practitioner is based within Barnsley’s long 

covid clinic. 

ii. Where clinically appropriate, offer group therapy for new referrals to the 

service in order to treat as many people as possible. This is not a ‘lesser 

service’ offer than 1:1but is an equivalent NICE guidance treatment 

protocol. 1:1 treatment sessions will still be offered where appropriate. 

iii. Promoting the IAPT service on social media (e.g., Facebook), websites, 

leaflets posted to each household within the borough and in sporting 

programmes, such as Barnsley Football Club programmes and fixture lists 

Encourage more men to access the service to help reduce the numbers of suicide and 

suicide attempts 

Page 41



21 
 

AGEING WELL (65+) 

 

Barnsley’s ambition is to create age-friendly services which tackle ageism and where 

partners work together to ensure equitable and accessible services are available to 

provide the most appropriate support to meet the emotional health and wellbeing needs 

of the older people within our local communities (NB: Older people generally refers to 

those who are 65 years old or older – however, services in Barnsley will be ‘needs-led’ 

rather than ‘age led’). 

As our Barnsley residents become older, they will experience significant life changes; 

long term illness, bereavement, retirement, carer responsibilities, re-housing and 

financial pressures. Our mainstream primary and secondary health and social care 

services with support from our charity and voluntary sector will assess and offer holistic 

emotional age friendly health support directly or by referral. 

The World Health Organisation’s (WHO) Age Friendly Cities concept is a local response 

to encouraging active ageing by optimizing opportunities for health, participation and 

security in order to enhance quality of life as people age. Within Barnsley we will 

support local services to meet the Age Friendly Cities Framework and we are working 

together to improve the support to those people experiencing social isolation. The 

devastating impact of loneliness and bereavement on the elderly cannot be 

underestimated. 

To support healthy ageing, Barnsley Metropolitan Borough Council have signed up to 

the following 5 commitments, as outlined in the National Healthy Ageing Consensus 

Statement: 

 Putting prevention first and ensuring timely access to services and support 

 Removing barriers and creating more opportunities for older adults to contribute 

to society 

 Ensuring good homes and communities to help people remain healthy, active 

and independent in later life 

 Narrowing inequalities in years of life lived in good health 

 Challenging ageist and negative language, culture and practices wherever they 

occur, in both policy and practice 

The NHS Long Term Plan aspires to give older people greater control over the care 

they receive. The Plan promotes a multidisciplinary team approach where all health 

professionals work together in an integrated way to provide tailored support that helps 

people live well and independently at home, for longer. 

The IAPT Older People’s Positive Practice Guide has been produced by Age UK and 

the Mental Health Foundation to provide a resource to therapists who work with older 

people.  It is hoped the publication of this guide addresses the diverse needs of older 

people, as a dismantling a number of myths and misconceptions which may have 

Page 42



22 
 

prevented them from receiving access to psychological therapies, and includes 

numerous examples of actions to improve access, with contemporary information and 

p[practice suggestions to enhance their practice, implement service reviews or make 

reasonable adjustments for older people. 

Mental Health and Older People 

One in four older people have symptoms of depression that require treatment, but fewer 

than one in six older people with depression seek help from their GP. Care home 

residents are at an increased risk of depression. It can also be a major cause of ill 

health, with severe effects on physical and mental wellbeing. 

Care home residents are at an increased risk of depression and older people generally 

are particularly vulnerable to factors that may lead to depression, such as bereavement, 

physical disability and illness and loneliness. Older people are particularly vulnerable to 

loneliness and social isolation and the effects these have on their health. 

Bipolar disorder and schizophrenia can affect older people for the first time. 

Antipsychotic medication and talking therapies can be used to treat serious mental 

illnesses in older adults. Those with serious mental illnesses may live in care homes or 

independently with he support of community mental health teams. 

Dementia 

Dementia describes a group of symptoms that include problems with memory, thinking 

or language, and changes in mood, emotions, perception and behavior.   

Dementia is a progressive disease, which means symptoms may be relatively mild at 

first, but they get worse over time. There are many types of dementia but Alzheimer’s 

disease is the most common. The next most common is vascular dementia. 

Dementia, just like mental health, is not a natural part of ageing.  

Each person experiences dementia in their own individual way. Different types of 

dementia also tend to affect people differently, especially in the early stages. With some 

types of dementia, the person may have difficulty knowing what is real and what isn’t. 

They may see or hear things that are not really there (hallucinations), or strongly believe 

things that are not true (delusions). It is these different experiences that can trigger 

depression and anxiety for people living with dementia.  

Barnsley Dementia and Me Steering Group are currently delivering work programmes 
aligned to the National Dementia Well Pathway.  The Barnsley Dementia and Me 
Strategic Plan identifies ambitions across the pathway (Appendix 1). This includes 
‘Living Well’; supporting those with early diagnosis (under 65 years old), and providing 
access to mental health support for those living with dementia and their carers.  

 

 

Page 43



23 
 

Delirium 

Delirium is a state of heightened mental confusion that commonly affects older people 
admitted to hospital. 96% cases are experienced by older people, and when those with 
dementia experience severe illness or trauma such as a hip fracture, they are more at 
risk of delirium. Delirium causes great distress to patients, families and carers and has 
potentially serious consequences such as increased likelihood of admission to long term 
care and increased mortality. They may need to stay longer in hospital or in critical care; 
have an increased incidence of dementia and have more hospital-acquired 
complications such as falls and pressure ulcers. Delirium is now also recognised as a 
common symptom of coronavirus, and older people living in long term care facilities are 
at higher risk, especially those with dementia. 

COVID19 Deconditioning 

Older people in Barnsley and those with long term illness who have had to isolate 
throughout the COVID19 pandemic along with their carers have been affected mentally 
and physically.  National research is only just starting to emerge quantifying the impact 
of the pandemic for this population group, but locally we have qualitative information 
which suggests that older people and their carers have felt socially isolated, anxious 
and depressed, with a decline in cognitive impairment due to lack of simulation. 

 

To improve the mental wellbeing of our older population we will: 

 
 Undertake an older people’s mental health needs assessment to determine what 

our population needs are now and in the future  
 Develop an older people’s data dashboard to help us monitor and measure older 

people’s emotional wellbeing. 
 Review our commissioning arrangements for supporting older people and their 

carers with their emotional wellbeing against the Age Friendly Communities 
Framework. 

 Support the development of services to support the emotional wellbeing for older 
people and their carers; which meets their needs, is closer to home, and tackles 
ageism and stigma. 

 Promote the Barnsley Carers service and their role in providing on-going 
emotional support and involvement opportunities for carers.  

 Work with our local IAPT service to develop strategies to effectively engage older 
people in treatment. 

 Support cultural change and reduce stigma for our older people.  Challenging 
ageist and negative. 

 Support the Campaign to End Loneliness, engaging with our communities, 
identifying and promoting opportunities to build on the lessons we learnt 
throughout the COVID19 pandemic. 

 Continually engage with our older people and their carers to plan, deliver and 
monitor our service delivery. (Engagement of Barnsley Mental Health Forum, 
Barnsley Older People’s Forum and Barnsley Carers Forum) 

Page 44



24 
 

MENTAL HEALTH CRISIS  

 

In Barnsley partners have agreed to work together with service users and carers, to 

improve the provision of care and support for people in mental health crisis. This will 

include keeping people safe and helping them to find the support they need, whatever 

the circumstances in which they first need help and whichever service they turn to first. 

We will focus on the following: 

 Access to support before crisis – making sure that people with mental health 

problems can access help 24 hours a day and that when they ask for help that 

they are listened to and appropriate, timely support is provided. 

 Urgent and emergency access to crisis care – making sure that a mental health 

crisis is treated with the same urgency as a physical health emergency. 

 Quality of treatment and care when in crisis – making sure that people are 

treated with dignity and respect, in a therapeutic environment 

 Recovery and staying well – preventing future crises by making sure people are 

referred to appropriate services and support is offered in a timely manner. 

Ensuring all partner organisations work together taking a person-centred 

approach by putting the service users and carers at the heart of service design 

and provision. 

 

We will achieve these aims by: 

 Engagement – ongoing meaningful engagement with service users and carers to 

identify needs, design services and provide feedback / review services on offer 

 

 Communication – developing and establishing a range of effective 

communication channels that are appropriate to service users and carers to 

inform and interact with continuously 

Data – collection and sharing of information / intelligence and data. Data sharing 

agreements to be put in place (if not currently in existence) between Local 

Authority, South Yorkshire Police, Yorkshire Ambulance service, NHS and third 

sector organisations to cover areas such as drug and alcohol, violence, Intensive 

Home-Based Treatment, inpatients, S136, Emergency Department attendance 

over a range of categories of service users e.g., children and young people, 

adults, high intensity users, dual diagnosis etc. 

 

 Place of safety – consider options appraisal; develop crisis alternatives (‘Safe 

space) 

 

Page 45



25 
 

 Operating hours of services – 24/7, accessible and well-established streamlined 

access points. 

 

 Joint training and development with all partners – developing joint training to 

include interpreting national legislation and local policies and procedures in a 

consistent manner. 

 

 Sustainable capacity – inpatient beds, S12 doctors, AMHP’s (Approved Mental 

Health Professional), S136 provision for both adults and children and young 

people. 

 

 Service developments – consider street triage, virtual triage on-site, high intensity 

user team, dual diagnosis 

 

 Eating disorders – develop an all-age eating disorder pathway in response to the 

current significant increase in individuals seeking help in relation to eating 

disorder issues. 

 

 Develop clear streamlined pathway outlining how individuals access crisis care / 

services 

 

 Develop better support services for 10 – 24 years old, to reduce the very high 

level of admissions of young people into Barnsley Hospital, as a result of self-

harm. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 46



26 
 

SUICIDE PREVENTION 

 

In 2017 - 2019, Barnsley had a rate of 10.7 suicides per 100,000 population (using the 

European age-sex standardised rates). This accounts for 69 deaths by suicide in the 3-

year period. Each one of these lives lost is a tragedy and behind these figures is 

someone’s loved one. A complex range of factors can contribute to people 

contemplating suicide. Not all of these are connected to mental ill-health and can 

instead relate to stressful life circumstances, events or changes in a person’s life. The 

following characteristics and factors are known to contribute to raised suicide risk. They 

can be cumulative and overlapping. From our Suspected Suicide Learning Panels and a 

2020 Coroners Audit Across South Yorkshire the following themes have been identified. 

 Gender (men are three times more likely to die by suicide) 

 Mental illness 

 Long term conditions 

 Those that have had a previous attempt on their life or history of self-harm 

 Behavioural – some patterns of behaviour can indicate a risk of suicide. These 

include use of alcohol, substance misuse and involvement with the criminal 

justice system 

To try and reduce the risk of suicide in these population groups it is essential that we 

collectively work on prevention, to improve people’s mental health and wellbeing, 

increase personal and community resilience and ensure there is early intervention 

available. There are many things we can do in our communities, outside hospital and 

care settings, to help those who think suicide is the only option. We know that the 

coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic will have various impacts on mental health, both 

currently and in the future, although it is not yet clear what the impacts will be. We need 

to ensure we monitor this and take careful consideration when planning interventions in 

mental health improvement and suicide prevention. 

The vision within this section of the strategy is to; 

 Recognise as a borough that suicide isn’t always inevitable and is preventable  

 Provide timely help, support and services to anyone experiencing suicidal 

thoughts to prevent them taking their own life 

 Embed Suicide prevention into all plans. Suicide Prevention is everyone’s 

business. 

 The vision is underpinned by the below key strategic aims 

 Reducing the rate of suicide in Barnsley 

 Raising awareness of the impact suicide has, and that certain people are more at 

risk and what can be done to support and safeguard these individuals 

 Encouraging people at risk of suicide, and people concerned about others being 

at risk of suicide, to feel able to ask for help and have access to skilled staff and 

well-coordinated support. 

Page 47



27 
 

 Continue to break to stigma around suicide and destigmatize it in our 

communities through key campaigns such as #AlrightPal?  

 Encourage participation in the mental health and suicide prevention training so 

those working with people in mental health crisis as well as people in our 

communities know how to respond and support appropriately 

 Continue to review every death by suicide working with people and agencies 

across Barnsley in order to continually learn lessons which can directly inform 

and improve services, policies and pathways for people who are suicidal. 

 Continue to offer bereavement support for those affected and bereaved by 

suicides 

 

 

The national Preventing Suicide Strategy set a target of a 10% reduction in all suicides 

nationally in 2020-21 and zero suicides within in-patients across the NHS. The Five 

Year Forward View for Mental Health set out an ambition to reduce the number of 

suicides in England by 10 per cent by 2020/21. Barnsley’s Mental Health Partnership 

has committed to a zero-suicide ambition.  

This is a bold and ambitious pledge, which drives forward partnership working and bold 

and innovative approaches to improve Barnsley residents’ mental health and wellbeing. 

We also want to ensure people know where to go for help when they need it. Barnsley’s 

Mental Health Partnership is an alliance of people and organisations across the 

borough focused on improving people’s mental health; this includes support for people 

contemplating suicide. We want to instill hope into individuals and communities that 

suicide is preventable and tackle the stigma associated with poor mental health.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 48



28 
 

CONCLUSION 

Whilst partners have worked hard together to make significant improvements in the 

emotional health and wellbeing of the Barnsley population, there is still much to do. 

Although all aspects reflected within this mental health strategy are important and 

improvements will be made against each one, there are particular challenges currently 

being faced. The Barnsley Mental Health Partnership Board have therefore agreed, for 

there to be a greater focus on those areas of particular challenge over the next 12 

months, namely Eating Disorders, Self-harm and crisis care. Areas for greater focus will 

be reviewed on an annual basis. 

In order to measure the progress being made, we will develop and implement a mental 

health strategy delivery plan and mental health dashboard. Aligned to this, the Barnsley 

Mental Health Forum (a service user and carer group) have also developed a number of 

Quality Standards. These Standards are currently a work in progress but the aim is to 

discuss each in more detail amongst all partners and if agreed, they will be one of the 

tools against which our progress will be measured. 

There is a great sense of collaboration and willingness among all members of the 

Mental Health Partnership Board to improve the mental health and wellbeing of all of the 

Barnsley people. Implementing this mental health strategy will be a huge step forward 

towards achieving that ambition. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 49



29 
 

APPENDIX 1 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 50



30 
 

Appendix 2   GLOSSARY 
 

Word 
 

Definition 

Affective system 
 

Feelings resulting from emotions, sentiments, 
or desires; an emotional state or disposition; a 
non-intellectual or subjective human response. 
 

AMHP's (Approved Mental Health 
Professionals) 
 

AMHPs are responsible for organising, co-
ordinating and contributing to Mental Health 
Act assessments. It is the AMHP's duty, when 
two medical recommendations have been 
made, to decide whether to make an 
application to a named hospital for the 
detention of the person who has been 
assessed. 
 

Biopsychosocial 
 

This approach considers biological, 
psychological and social factors and their 
complex interactions in understanding health, 
illness, and health care delivery.  
 

Community Assets 
 

The collective resources which individuals and 
communities have at their disposal which can 
be used to develop effective solutions to 
promote social inclusion and improve the 
health and well-being of residents. Assets can 
be organisations, associations and individuals 
and may also include emergency medical 
services, nursing or adult care homes, mental 
health facilities, community health centres, 
health clinics, home health and hospice care, 
school health services, medical and health 
transportation, dental care providers, homeless 
health projects etc. 
 

Concurrently 
 

At the same time, simultaneously 

Cross-sectoral 
 

Relating to or affecting more than one group, 
area or section. 
 

Dialectical Behaviour Therapy (DBT) 
 

A type of cognitive behavioural therapy that 
combines strategies like mindfulness, 
acceptance, and emotion regulation. 
 

Dysregulation 
 

Refers to a poor ability to manage emotional 
responses or to keep them within an 

Page 51



31 
 

acceptable range of typical emotional 
reactions. This can refer to a wide range of 
emotions including sadness, anger, irritability, 
and frustration. 
 

Early intervention Identifying and providing effective early 
support to people who are at risk of poor 
health outcomes. 
 

Empower 
 

The process of becoming stronger and more 
confident, especially in controlling one's life 
and claiming one's rights. 
 

Engagement 
 

To have a conversation or discussion with an 
individual or group of people with the purpose 
of getting them interested in the subject you 
are taking about. 
 

Enterprises 
 

Organisations, especially businesses, that will 
earn money. 
 

Fitbit 
 

An electronic device that contains a 3D motion 
sensor that accurately tracks your calories 
burned, steps taken, distance travelled and 
sleep quality. 
 

IAPT (Improving Access to Psychological 
Therapies) 
 

A service that provides talking therapies, such 
as cognitive behavioural therapy (CBT), 
counselling, other therapies, and guided self-
help. help for common mental health problems, 
like anxiety and depression. 
 

Impulse control 
 

Refers to the difficulty some people have in 
stopping themselves from engaging in certain 
behaviours. Common examples include; 
gambling; stealing; aggressive behaviour 
toward others. 
 

Interventions 
 

Treatment, procedures, activities or other 
actions taken to prevent or treat disease or 
improve health in other ways. 
 

Lived experience 
 

Personal knowledge about the world gained 
through direct, first-hand involvement in 
everyday events rather than through 
representations constructed by other people. 
 

Page 52

https://dictionary.cambridge.org/dictionary/english/especially


32 
 

Mentalisation Based Therapy 
 

A type of long-term psychotherapy used as an 
integrative treatment approach for borderline 
and other severe personality disorders. 
 

Mild Cognitive Impairment 
 

The stage between the expected cognitive 
decline of normal ageing and the more serious 
decline of dementia. It's characterized by 
problems with memory, language, thinking or 
judgment. 
 

Mutually exclusive 
 

Related in such a way that each thing makes 
the other thing impossible: not able to be true 
at the same time or to exist together. 
 

NHS Long Term Plan 
 

A plan for the NHS to improve the quality of 
patient care and health outcomes which sets 
out how the £20.5 billion budget settlement for 
the NHS, announced by the Prime Minister in 
summer 2018, will be spent over the next 5 
years (2018 – 2023). 
 

Organic disorders 
 

Organic mental disorders are disturbances that 
may be caused by injury or disease affecting 
brain tissues as well as by chemical or 
hormonal abnormalities. 
 

Perinatal 
 

Refers to the period during pregnancy and 
following the birth of a child - within this 
Mental Health Strategy this is defined as during 
pregnancy or in the first 24 months following 
the birth of the child. 
 

Primary Care 
 

Primary care services provide the first point of 
contact in the healthcare system and includes 
general practice, community pharmacy, dental, 
and optometry (eye health) services. 
 

PTSD (Post Traumatic Stress Order) 
 

A condition of persistent mental and emotional 
stress occurring as a result of injury or severe 
psychological shock, typically involving constant 
vivid recall of the experience with dulled 
responses to others and to the outside world. 
 

S12 Doctors 
 

Medically qualified doctors who have been 
recognised under section 12(2) of the Mental 
Health Act (MHA) as having specific expertise in 
the diagnosis and treatment of mental disorder' 

Page 53



33 
 

and who have had training in the application of 
the MHA 
 

S136 
 

Section 136 or s136 is a section of the Mental 
Health Act (1983) that allows the police to take 
a person from a public place to a place of safety 
if they appear to have a mental disorder.  
Under the Act, police also have powers to hold 
the person at the place of safety to keep 
themselves and others safe. 
 

Secondary Care 
 

Secondary care refers to services provided by 
health professionals who generally do not have 
the first contact with a patient and are usually 
based in a hospital or clinic, though some 
services may be community based. 
 

Structured Clinical Management 
 

A type of treatment for people who have 
personality difficulties. 
 

Sustainable capacity 
 

Ensuring an efficient system that improves, 
maintains or restores health, while minimizing 
negative impacts on the environment and 
leveraging opportunities to restore and 
improve it, to the benefit of the health and 
well-being of current and future generations. 
 

Venepuncture 
 

The puncture of a vein as part of a medical 
procedure, typically to withdraw a blood 
sample or for an intravenous injection. 
 

 

 

Page 54



Page 1 of 6 
 

   Children’s Services Directorate 
   
 

 

Report of the Executive Director (Children’s Services) to the   

Health and Wellbeing Board 

(3rd February 2022)                             

 

“CHILD OF THE NORTH: BUILDING A FAIRER FUTURE AFTER COVID-19”        

 

 

1.0 Purpose of this Report   

 
1.1 To inform Members of the findings and recommendations of the above- named report which 

was published early last month.  

2.0 Introduction   

2.1 “Child of the North: Building A Fairer Future After Covid-19” is a report which was compiled 
by the Northern Health Science Alliance and the N8 Research Partnership. Both bodies are 
comprised of research centres based in universities and the NHS across Northern Regions 
of England. Both the Northern Health Science Alliance, together with the N8 research 
partnership are closely affiliated to the Northern Powerhouse whose objective is to grow 
regional economies in the North of England and close the gap in prosperity with London 
and the South East. 

 
2.2 The basis of the report is that following a decade of austerity, including reductions to local 

public services, combined with welfare reforms which have disproportionately and more 
adversely affected children, young people and families in the North of England, the Covid-
19 Pandemic has acted as a prism in further harming the life chances of these children.  

 
This has taken the form of a toxic cocktail of poor mental and physical health, together with 
feelings of isolation and despair both in children and their parents which contributes to 
poorer outcomes later in the life course. 

 
3.0 Summary of Findings 
 
3.1 A full copy of the report can be viewed through the link below: 
 
 https://www.n8research.org.uk/media/Child-of-the-North-Report-2021-1.pdf 
 

Among the findings of the report are the following:       
 
3.2 Headline Findings 
 

 Only 14% of school children, in Northern Regions of England, received four or more 
pieces of offline schoolwork per day compared to 20% in the rest of the country. 

 The loss of learning which children in the North experienced over the course of the 
Pandemic could equate to an estimated £24.6 billion in lost earnings over their lifetime. 

 During the Pandemic, 23% of children in the North were perceived by their parents to 
be lonely, compared to 15% in the rest of England.  

 Among parents and carers in the North of England, 23% felt lonely during the Pandemic 
compared to 13% in the rest of the country. 

Page 55

Item 7

https://www.n8research.org.uk/media/Child-of-the-North-Report-2021-1.pdf


Page 2 of 6 
 

 Of local authorities in England with more than 100 children per 100,000 in care, 21 out 
of 26 local authorities are in the North of England. 

 More than one in five children in the North are from an ethnic minority group; are 
therefore more likely to live in low income, deprived families and their experience of 
systemic racism adds to the detrimental effect on their life chances 

 The reductions in funding to children’s centres has equated to an average cut of £412 
for every eligible child in the North compared to £283 in the rest of England. 

 The challenges to children’s mental wellbeing in the North of England caused by the 
impact of the Pandemic is estimated to cost £13.2 billion in lost income during their 
lifetime. 

 By the second half of the Autumn Term 2020, pupils in the North East and Yorkshire 
and The Humber experienced 4 and 5.3 months of lost learning respectively compared 
to less than a month in London and the South West        

 
3.3 Children’s Health 
 

 Evidence suggests that the mental health of boys aged 5-10 in all areas of the North of 
England, together with girls aged 5-10 particularly in Yorkshire and The Humber were 
significantly affected by the Pandemic and the series of lockdowns 

 The impact of school closures directly contributed to feelings of depression among 45% 
of parents and carers in the North of England compared to 33% in Southern Regions 

 Referrals to urgent or emergency mental health crisis care rose by 80% between April 
and June 2021 compared to the same period in 2019. Contact with children and young 
people’s mental health services increased by 51% by the end of June 2021 compared 
to June 2019. 

 A greater percentage of children at the Reception stage in the North of England live 
with obesity compared to the rest of the country (10.7% and 9.6% respectively). By 
Year 6 (or age 11) this gap has grown to 22.6% in the North compared to 20.5% in the 
rest of England 

 Compared to 2018/19, the percentage of children in the North reaching physical activity 
guidelines dropped by 1.7% to 45.3% but this was only fractionally more than the rest of 
the country. 

 Evidence suggests that areas in the North of England have less safe and accessible 
green spaces for exercise and more takeaway restaurants per hectare than in the rest 
of the country. 

 The highest level of tooth decay among children aged 5 is experienced in the North 
West (31.7%) and is lowest in the South-East (16%)   

 
3.4 Child Poverty and Deprivation 

 

 Since the Pandemic, the percentage of children living in poverty in the North of 
England (after housing costs)  is 33% compared to 30% across the whole of the 
United Kingdom. 

 In the North of England 58% of local authorities have above average levels of 
children in families with low incomes, compared to 19% of local authorities in the 
rest of England.   

  
3.5 Economic inactivity and worklessness 
 

 Children in the North East are more likely to be eligible for Free School Meals (27.5%) 
with the lowest percentage in the South East (16%) 

 The prevalence of food insecurity has risen highest in the North East and North West 
(18% and 17% respectively) compared to 11% in the South East and 14% in the rest of 
England.    

 During the Pandemic the North of England experienced greater unemployment and the 
largest fall in average (median) wages 

Page 56



Page 3 of 6 
 

 A reduction of 10 percentage points in the number of overweight children at the 
Reception stage can lead to an increase in a person’s contribution to the economy 
(gross value added) of £10,786. 

 An increase of 10 percentage points in the number of children acquiring 5 GCSEs 
(including English and Maths) at Grades A-C can lead to an increase of gross value 
added of £4,241 per person.     

 
3.6 Children’s Ethnicity  

 

 It is highly likely that the impact of the Pandemic has heightened pre-existing ethnic 
inequalities and there is concern that as we focus upon recovering from the Pandemic 
this could be at the cost of tackling ethnicity-based deprivation. 

 Of the most deprived neighbourhoods in the country, based upon housing and income, 
68% were situated in the most ethnically diverse populations in the North of England  

 Low birth weight per 100 babies is 14 times more prevalent among ethnic minority 
mothers in all regions of the country.   

 
3.7 Children’s Education 
 

 Prior to the Pandemic, at the end of the Reception Stage, 70% of young children 
achieved a good level of development in the Early Years Foundation Stage compared 
to 73% in the Southern Regions of England. 

 Whilst take-up of the early years’ entitlement among children aged 2 years declined 
significantly across the whole of England during the Pandemic, the decline was less 
among eligible families in the North (decrease of 6% to 68%) compared to eligible 
families in Southern areas of the country (down 9% to 58%) 

 Similarly, early education take-up has also declined among families with children aged 
3 and 4 but this decrease is less in the North than in the South of England (3% 
compared to 4% respectively) 

 Evidence shows that the enrolment of all children from low- income families across the 
country could close the gap in education outcomes by as much as 20% to 50%       

 During the Pandemic there were lower levels of parental engagement with their 
children’s learning in Yorkshire and The Humber (50%) compared to the South East 
(excluding London) and East of England (59%) 

 Disadvantaged children, on average, leave school 22 months behind their peers in the 
level of learning. Children who do not experience deprivation or require the support of a 
social worker have an 80% chance of attaining a GCSE pass in English and Maths 
compared to 65% for those who do. 

 By the second half of the Autumn Term 2020, primary school pupils in the North East 
and North West experienced the greatest loss in the level of reading (2% and 1.9% 
respectively)   

 In the Pandemic, the learning of vulnerable children with SEND living in places such as 
Bradford and the North West was disproportionately affected by lack of access to 
children’s social care, resourced provision and educational psychology.  

 
3.8 Children’s Social Care   
 

 Local authorities in the North East have the highest persistent numbers of children in 
care in the country. The prevalence of children in care in Northern Regions is 97.4 per 
10,000 of the child population compared to 61.8% in the rest of England. 

 There are 952 children’s homes in the North of England and 1,426 children’s homes in 
the whole of the rest of the country. Nationally, a large proportion of children with 
complex needs are placed in residential accommodation based in the North West. 

 Due to the costs associated with meeting the needs of children requiring care as a 
proportion of their overall budget, councils in the North of England have less scope to 
distribute funding in favour of early help to families  

Page 57



Page 4 of 6 
 

4.0 Recommendations of the “Child in the North” Report 
 
4.1 In response to these findings, the Northern Health Science Alliance and N8 Research 

Partnership make the following recommendations to improve the life chances of children in 
Northern regions of England: 

 
 Recommendation 1 
 

Increase Government investment in welfare, health and social care systems that 
support children’s health, particularly in deprived areas and areas most affected by 
the COVID-19 pandemic.   

 
 Recommendation 2 
 

Tackle the negative impacts of the Pandemic in the North through rapid, focused 
investment in early years services, such as the Health Improvement Fund. This 
should include health visiting, family hubs and children’s centres, as supported in 
the Leadsom Review but with investment proportional to need and area-level 
deprivation adequately accounted for. 

 
 Recommendation 3 
 

Commissioners of maternity and early years services must consider the impact of 
Pandemic related service changes on inequalities in families and children’s 
experiences and outcomes. This must shape service delivery during the recovery. 

 
 Recommendation 4 
 

The Government must take immediate measures to tackle child poverty. Increase 
child benefit by £10 per child per week. Increase the child element in Universal Credit 
and increase child tax credits 

 
 Recommendation 5 
 

We must feed our children. Introduce universal free school meals, make the Holiday 
Activities and Food Programme scheme permanent and extend it to support all low-
income families. Promote the provision of Healthy Start vouchers to all children 
under five and make current government food standards mandatory in all early 
years’ settings.  

 
 Recommendation 6 
 

Government should prioritise support to deprived localities by increasing the 
spending available to schools serving the most disadvantaged pupils in England. 
This requires a reversal of the current approach to resource allocation: the new 
national funding formula will deliver 3–4 percentage points less funding to schools 
in poorer areas relative to those in more affluent areas. 

 
 Recommendation 7 
 

Support educational settings to initiate earlier interventions. Teachers and early 
years professionals see many of the first indicators of children’s risk and 
vulnerabilities. Prioritising strong pupil and staff relationships and collaboration with 
parents/carers will ensure a firm foundation for meeting children’s needs, and for a 
return to learning. 

 
 

Page 58



Page 5 of 6 
 

 Recommendation 8 
 

NHS England and NHS Improvement and the Office for Health Improvement and 
Disparities should adopt a public mental health approach that includes a focus on 
mental ill health prevention early in the life-course, recognising the importance of 
early detection and prompt access to professional treatment. 

 
 Recommendation 9 
 

Government should invest in and develop a place-based monitoring system for 
understanding the longer-term mental health impacts of the Pandemic on children 
and parents. Targeted support should then flow to families where needed, including 
outreach services more closely tailored to the needs of vulnerable parents. 

 
 Recommendation 10 
 

Area-level measures of children’s physical and mental health should be developed to 
better understand place-based inequalities. 

 
 Recommendation 11 
 

More National Institute of Health Research (NIHR) research should be undertaken 
into the relationship between child health and economic performance, particularly in 
understanding the likely causal pathways between these in order to identify entry 
points for policy. 

 
 Recommendation 12 
 

Government should reinvest in services that tackle domestic abuse, recognising the 
part domestic abuse plays, not only in children entering care, but also in high 
conflict divorce and separation cases, which also feature disproportionately in the 
North. 

 
 Recommendation 13 
 

Address the uneven geographic distribution of children’s residential care, including 
secure provision, as part of reducing the disproportionate burden on the North. An 
impact assessment of the disproportionate costs to a range of services in the North 
due to the number of children with complex care and support needs, is needed and 
long overdue. 

 
 Recommendation 14 
 

Embed Equity Impact Assessments in all COVID-19 recovery and other policy 
processes relating to socio-economic deprivation at national, regional and local 
levels. Government should invest in and develop a place-based monitoring system 
for understanding the longer-term mental health impacts of the Pandemic on 
children and parents. Targeted support should then flow to families where needed, 
including outreach services more closely tailored to the needs of vulnerable parents. 

 
 Recommendation 15 
 

Use Children’s Rights Impact Assessments to anticipate and evaluate the specific 
impact of COVID-19 recovery strategies on children and young people. To collect, 
disaggregate and publish relevant data so that the impact of the pandemic on 
children can be routinely evaluated. 

 

Page 59



Page 6 of 6 
 

 Recommendation 16 
 

To promote and expand the Race Disparity Audit, sharpening the focus on children 
and drawing on disaggregated data by region. Ethnicity should be included in all 
national public health data collection systems, including child and maternal health 
datasets. 

 
 Recommendation 17 
 

Increase the representation of ethnic minority staff within public services and in 
decision-making processes with specific recruitment targets, recruitment campaigns 
and greater transparency on the percentage of ethnic minority staff. This should be 
particularly in leadership positions, as part of reflecting the populations served. 

 
 Recommendation 18 
 

Local COVID-19 recovery strategies must be grounded in internationally recognised 
human rights-based values and principles, notably those contained in the United 
Nations Convention on the Rights of the Child 1989. 

, Stephen  

5.0 Summary and Conclusion 
 
5.1 The “Child of the North” report is a further clarion call to the Government which encourages 

urgent action not only to genuinely “level up” areas of the country but also to break the 
vicious cycle of poverty, multiple forms of deprivation and their impact upon the wellbeing 
and resilience of families, together with subsequent pressures on children’s social care.    
  

5.2 Publication of the report has coincided with calls from the sector for the Government to 
turbo-charge action to support and protect vulnerable children by creating a Cabinet level 
secretary of state for children and a Department for Children’s Services. This follows the 
tragic, recent deaths of Arthur Labinjo-Hughes and Star Hobson  

 
5.3 The report will act as a useful reference point for our work in tackling the impact of child 

poverty upon the range of outcomes for children and young people, together with ensuring 
effective early help for maintaining their health and wellbeing, particularly in response to the 
findings of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee’s reports on these matters.  

 
5.4 The report will, also, inform the development of the refreshed Borough Children and Young 

People’s Plan.     
 
6.0 Recommendation 
 
6.1 That Members note and comment upon the findings and recommendations of the “Child of 

the North” report. 
 
7.0 Appendices and Background Documents  
 
7.1.     “Child of the North: Building a Fairer Future After Civid-19” (Northern Health Science 

Alliance and N8 Partnership Report) (December 2021) Please see link in Paragraph 3.1 of 
this report           

 

 

Author:     Mel John-Ross     

Designation:    Executive Director (Children’s Services)    

Page 60



1 

 

REPORT TO THE HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 
 

Date: 19th JANUARY 2022 
 

ACTIVE IN BARNSLEY STRATEGIC PLAN 
             
 

Report Sponsor: Julia Burrows – Director of Public Health  

Report Author: Stuart Rogers - Senior Public Health Officer 
Julie Tolhurst – Public Health Principal  

 
1. Purpose of Report 

  
1.1 The Active in Barnsley Partnership has renewed its strategic plan as the 

current partnership strategic plan expired this year (2021). The new Active in 
Barnsley Strategic Plan (2022-26) is an evolution of the previous iteration  
which was based on a wider stakeholder input and has achieved good 
progress over the last three years. Built on a robust review, the partnership 
board have agreed the future direction for the plan with a clearer focus on 
where inequalities are the greatest, being clear about how support is provided 
to specific audiences and how data is used better to understand and inform 
our actions. 

 
2.  Recommendations 
 
2.1 Health and Wellbeing Board members are asked to:- 
 

 To support the Active in Barnsley Strategic Plan (2022-2026)  

 To suggest any potential areas for collaboration that can be included in the 
action plan.  

 For the Health and Wellbeing Board to act as the accountable body for 
progress reporting against our strategic priorities.  

 
3.  Delivering the Health & Wellbeing Strategy 
 
 The Active in Barnsley Strategic Plan 2022-2026 will support the delivery of:  
 
3.1 Starting Well – All our children and young people have a healthy diet and are 

physically active.  
3.2  Living Well - Everyone can safely be physical active to support their physical 

and mental health.  
3.3  Ageing Well - Older people are able to live independent and active lives, 

enjoying their later years in comfort in their own communities, for as long as 
possible. 

 
4.  Reducing Health Inequalities 
 
4.1 A key part of how we work as the Active in Barnsley Strategic Plan is through 

the principles of Proportionate Universalism where we deliver our efforts 

Page 61

Item 8

https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/media/19957/barnsley-hwb-strategy-final-web.pdf


2 

 

proportionate to the needs of our residents. A data hub is being developed to 
enable us to understand the audiences and communities that require more 
targeted support to become more active as part of daily life. As a partnership 
of different stakeholders, the Active in Barnsley Partnership can draw on 
support and expertise across the life course to help us achieve a positive 
increase in physical activity rates across all target groups. The partnership will 
work with other organisations focused on  reducing inequalities so that we can 
contribute to wider societal issues such as employment, food security, mental 
health etc.  

 
5.  Introduction/ Background 
 
5.1  Physical inactivity negatively impacts both physical and mental health, it is in 

the top ten causes of ill health nationally and is the fourth leading cause of 
death worldwide. (refs?) 

 
5.2  In Barnsley, physical activity levels are significantly lower than the regional 

and national average. 45% of adults and 55% of children and young people 
do not take part in enough physical activity (at moderate or vigorous intensity) 
for good health – as determined by the Chief Medical Officer. These rates of 
physical inactivity and the dominance of sedentary behaviours have wider 
health implications on our ability to live and age well.  

 
5.3  The Active in Barnsley Strategic Plan takes a system approach to improving 

the physical activity offer across the life course focussed through our strategic 
priorities: Active Schools, Active Communities, Active Spaces, Active 
Workplaces and Marketing and Communications.  
 

5.4 The overall intention of the Active in Barnsley Strategic Plan 2022-2026 is to 
build physical activity and movement into the daily lives of our residents at a 
level that is beneficial to their physical health and mental wellbeing.  

 
6.  Contributing to Health and Wellbeing Board’s key priorities 
 
6.1 The Active in Barnsley Strategic Plan is closely aligned the work of the Health 

and Wellbeing Board. The plan has been cited in the new Health and 
Wellbeing Strategy tasked with improving the stubborn physical activity rates 
in Barnsley. In order to do this, there is a need to make sure that children and 
young people get the best start in life and develop a positive and lifelong 
relationship with being active. This is particularly relevant  outside the school 
environment where inequality of opportunity widens disproportionately. It is 
widely understood that being active has a significant impact on  mental 
wellbeing and this is a focus for our communities’ campaign – What’s Your 
Move. In addition, work is taking place with organisations, groups and clubs 
who work in sport and physical activity to develop positive mental culture 
across the borough. This applies to both  those who are active, and makes it a 
viable option for those who are less active to feel its benefit.  

 
8.   

Page 62



3 

 

Conclusion/ Next Steps 
 
8.1  In conclusion, the Active in Barnsley Partnership will continue to develop the 

approach over the duration of this plan. The key areas to enable progress 
both within the Active in Barnsley Partnership and the wider stakeholders will 
be the development of an action plan to deliver on each strategic priority, 
collaboration to bring in external investment into the borough and finally 
ensuring that we have the data hub to help us identify where energy is needed 
the most.  

 
8.3 The Active in Barnsley Partnership will report directly into the Health and 

Wellbeing Board at an interval to be agreed.  
 
9. Financial Implications 
 
9.1  There are no direct finance implications to the Health and Wellbeing Board.  
 
10  Consultation with stakeholders 
 
10.1  The Active in Barnsley Strategic Plan (2022-2026) is built on the initial 

widespread consultation that was carried out back in 2018 and then further 
enhanced through consultation with relevant Active in Barnsley stakeholders 
and contributors to increasing physical activity levels in Barnsley. The Plan in 
its draft form was circulated to the Health and Wellbeing Board for comment 
and feedback. In development of specific projects, the partnership will ensure 
that consultation and community engagement is embedded as we have done 
with examples such as the Active through Football project and the new town 
centre Active Travel Hub development.  

 
11.  Appendices 
 
11.1  Appendix 1 – Active in Barnsley Strategic Plan 
 
Officer:     Date: 
 
Stuart Rogers – Senior Public Health Officer   
Julie Tolhurst – Public Health Principal  
 
Appendix 1  
 

 

Active in Barnsley 

2022-26.pdf

Page 63



This page is intentionally left blank



A healthy and proud Barnsley 
where active living is part of 
everyday life for everyone

Active
in Barnsley
2022–2026

BARNSLEYWHATSYOURMOVE.CO.UK 

P
age 65



Foreword

Through the Active in Barnsley 
partnership, we want to help more 
people incorporate physical activity 
into their daily lives. Too many of us 
in Barnsley are not living healthy lives 
and are experiencing greater levels of 
poor physical and mental health. This 
reduces our quality of life, increases our risk 
of illness and injury, and puts pressure on our 
health services. Increasing how active we are 
is not just of benefit to each of us as individuals, 
but also improves our communities. Through this 
strategic plan we set out how we can use physical 
activity to address some of the health inequalities 
experienced within the Borough. 

Creating the conditions for good health needs the 
collective effort of partners across Barnsley.  Every 
organisation can make an important contribution to 
the physical activity levels and health of people in 
Barnsley, and every organisation can in turn benefit. 
This strategic plan builds on the principles and 
aims set out in our first plan.  We have consulted 
and used the latest data and insight to 
ensure this plan reflects the challenges, 
opportunities and resources we have 
available.

Barnsley is an incredible place to live, work and be active with 
some of the best countryside and greenspaces in the country. 
Being active has so many variations and it can mean different 
things to different people. The important point is that we support 
everyone to harness the opportunity to build physical activity 
and movement into their daily lives. We have seen how physical 
activity can positively transform our individual physical and 
mental health but also to the people around us helping to build 
community connectedness. 

The impact of Covid-19 has amplified the deep-rooted 
inequalities that exist in our borough and shown the importance 
of how we view our health. As we move forward from the 
pandemic, being active and moving more is part of the answer 
to many of the challenges we face. The Active in Barnsley 
strategic plan provides a framework for how we can connect our 
collective action to support wider societal outcomes. It focuses 
on ensuring everyone has the opportunity and capability to be 
more active in everyday life. It recognises that in Barnsley we 
experience heightened inequalities in our communities, and this 
will be a guiding principle in our efforts to make sure we provide 
energy and resource where it is needed the most. Along with our 
partners, organisations and communities we can achieve our 
vision helping more people and communities experience the 
benefit of being more active for enjoyment and good health.

BARNSLEYWHATSYOURMOVE.CO.UK 2

Julia Burrows
Director of Public Health, Barnsley Council

Dr Andy Snell
Consultant in Public and  
Global Health, Doctor in 
Emergency Medicine

P
age 66



Contents
 Introduction 

What do we want to achieve? 

The importance of sport and physical 
activity in a healthy Barnsley

What should we be aiming for?

Moving more as part of our daily lives

The local picture

Understanding health inequalities

Our collective action 

How will we know we are                     
making a difference?

We are Barnsley                                                         
– How to get involved?

BARNSLEYWHATSYOURMOVE.CO.UK 3

There is no 
situation, there 

is no age and 
no condition 

where 
exercise 
is not a 

good 
thing. _

Chris Whitty
Chief Medical 

Officer for England
(April 2020)

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

17

18

P
age 67



Healthy
Barnsley

People live 
independently with 
good physical and 
mental health for as 
long as possible.

We have reduced 
inequalities in health 
and income across the 
Borough.

Learning
Barnsley

Children and young 
people achieve the 
best outcomes through 
improved educational 
achievement and 
attainment.

Growing
Barnsley

People have a 
welcoming, safe and 
enjoyable town centre 
and Principle Towns as 
destinations for work, 
shopping, leisure and 
culture.

Sustainable
Barnsley

Our heritage and green 
spaces are promoted      
for all people to enjoy.

Fossil fuels are being 
replaced by affordable 
and sustainable energy 
and people are able to 
enjoy more cycling and 
walking.

Our collaborative approach goes beyond the realms of physical 
activity and we acknowledge the important role this strategic 
plan and physical activity has in complimenting and connecting 
into other agendas. For that reason, this plan not only reflects 
the statistical insights about Barnsley but also takes into account 
the contribution towards the four themes that have emerged in 
the Barnsley 2030 plan. 

Introduction

BARNSLEYWHATSYOURMOVE.CO.UK 4

A healthy and proud Barnsley 
where active living is part of 
everyday life for everyone

Active in Barnsley is the physical activity strategic plan for Barnsley. 
It feeds into the Barnsley Health and Wellbeing Strategy and 
the Barnsley 2030 Plan. Increasing physical activity levels across 
the population is a complex challenge with no single solution. 
Therefore, in Barnsley we will continue to work together to help all 
Barnsley residents, especially those in greatest need, experience 
the benefits of being more physically active.  Our vision is:

P
age 68



What do we want to achieve? 
The aims of the Active in 
Barnsley strategic plan are to:

BARNSLEYWHATSYOURMOVE.CO.UK 5

Partnership working has been, and will continue to be, at the heart of our approach. 
Through widespread consultation and ongoing collaboration via the Active in Barnsley 
partnership, this plan details how we will work together to maximise our impact on 
physical activity levels across the Barnsley population and enable everyone in Barnsley 
to move more. Our strategic plan sets out the priorities for getting Barnsley more 
physically active (2021-2025) and ensuring all Barnsley residents have the opportunity 
to benefit from being more physically active through our five priority areas for action:

Share our vision to create a healthy and 
proud Barnsley where active living is 
part of everyday life for everyone.

To support and bring together 
individuals, groups and organisations 
that have a role in achieving our vision. 

Focus our energy on where 
collective action will have 
the most impact.

Active 
Communities

Active Schools 
& Colleges

Active 
Spaces

Active 
Workplaces

Marketing & 
Communications

P
age 69



The importance of sport and
physical activity in a healthy Barnsley 

Physical activity includes any form of movement 
which raises the heart rate. It can include daily 
living tasks such as housework and gardening, 
transport such as cycling, walking and scooting, 
as well as more organised activities such as 
using the gym, Parkrun or playing team sport. 
Physical activity and exercise can help:

BARNSLEYWHATSYOURMOVE.CO.UK 6

Physical activity and exercise can have immediate and long-term health benefits.

Our 
Communities

The 
Environment

The Local 
Economy

Creating vibrant and healthy 
communities, giving priority to 
those areas which need it most 
and tailoring support, so everyone 
has the opportunity to be active. 
Doing so can help people feel 
connected to the place they live 
and improve overall health.

By walking and cycling we can help 
minimise carbon created by motorised 
transport and ensure our communities 
have cleaner air to breathe. Everyone 
has an impact on the environment, 
we want to help lessen the negative 
impact where possible and support 
others to do the same.  

A healthy workforce means 
a healthy local economy. 
As we recognise the impact 
Covid-19 has had on our 
communities, it’s vital we 
help create a more inclusive 
economy for the future.  

• Strengthen our heart, lungs and bones

• Improve our mood and reduce anxiety

• Reduce the risk of developing several diseases          
such as type 2 diabetes, cancer and cardiovascular disease

• Positively boost our immune system

P
age 70



What should we 
be aiming for?   
When we think about being active and moving, it is easy to think it has to be something big 
like going to a gym or running a marathon. Those are great for some people, however, being 
active and moving more means different things to different people. The important part is 
finding something that is right for you, something you enjoy and fits into your daily life.

Even little changes to your daily routines can have a big impact on you and the people around 
you such as walking more for short journeys instead of using the car or public transport.

BARNSLEYWHATSYOURMOVE.CO.UK 7

“Every minute counts”

Ages 5 – 18 years Adults and older adults

60
Aim for an  

average of at least

minutes per day 
across the week

150
Aim for an  

average of at least

minutes MODERATE 
intensity per week

75
Aim for an  

average of at least

minutes VIGOROUS 
intensity per week

OR

P
age 71



Moving more as part 
of our daily lives   
If we want physical activity levels to increase, its important activity is regarded as 
something people can incorporate into their everyday lives. For some people this might involve 
a structured sports session or exercise class, for others it might be more about making active choices 
to integrate activity into their existing routine. This is when using the lift instead of the stairs or parking your car           
further away can really help.  Sitting less and moving more can support everyone to lead a more active life.  

BARNSLEYWHATSYOURMOVE.CO.UK 8

“Some is good but more is better”

Sedentary
To not moving,              

working at a desk.

Light
Cleaning, carrying 
out rubbish, yoga

Moderate
Walking, cycling,        

shopping

Vigorous
Playing football,          

dancing, swimming.

Very Vigorous
Sprinting up hills,   
weight exercises,          

press ups.

Heart 
rate

Respiratory 
rate

Energy 
consumption

Heart 
rate

Respiratory 
rate

Energy 
consumption

Heart 
rate

Respiratory 
rate

Energy 
consumption

Heart 
rate

Respiratory 
rate

Energy 
consumption

Heart 
rate

Respiratory 
rate

Energy 
consumption

P
age 72



BARNSLEYWHATSYOURMOVE.CO.UK 9

Physically 
inactive adults 

in Barnsley

35.8%

72,000
Barnsley adults 
are inactive

38.4% in the most 
deprived communities

Active Lives Survey (Sport 
England): November 2019/20.

Less active 
children in 
Barnsley

31.9%

10,200
Barnsley children 
are inactive

39.1% in the most 
deprived communities

Children and Young People 
Activity Data (Sport England): 
Academic year 2019/20.

Adults walking
for travel at least
3 days per week

Barnsley11.4%
England15.1%

Adults cycling
for travel at least
3 days per week

Barnsley0.2%
England2.3%

Children who walk 
to get to school at 
least once a week

Barnsley51%
England50.3%

Active lives data 
published in 
October 2021

Active

Fairly Active

Inactive

Barnsley
54.2%
10.7%
35.1%

Yorkshire
60%
11.1%
29%

England
60.9%
11.6%
27.5%

The local 
picture

P
age 73



Understanding health inequalities  
To achieve our vision, we need to understand 
how physical activity can wrap around peoples’ 
lives. We will create a data hub that will track 
the position of Barnsley against those factors 
that influence physical activity to help inform 
our approach and focus where our efforts are 
needed. 

Health inequalities are unfair and avoidable 
differences in health across the population, and 
between different groups within society. Health 
inequalities mean that some people can expect 
to live shorter lives, in poorer health and be less 
happy simply because of the conditions in which 
they are born, grow, live, work and age. This is 
reflected in the adverse difference in healthy life 
expectancy in communities across Barnsley. 

These wider determinants of health can have 
a significant impact in influencing people and 
specific populations’ health behaviours. With 
physical inactivity negatively affecting both the 
physical and mental health of people day to 
day. Physical inactivity is responsible for one in 
six UK deaths (equal to smoking). An increase in 
physical activity can positively impact health, 
social connectedness and economic status 
meaning being physically activity and being less 
sedentary can contribute effectively to structural 
inequalities.

BARNSLEYWHATSYOURMOVE.CO.UK 10

Inequality in Life Expectancy

Penistone East
82.8 Years Barnsley                  

77.9 Years Stairfoot
75.0 Years

Male

Penistone East
86.2 Years Barnsley                  

81.8 Years Stairfoot
78.7 Years

Female

38th
most deprived local authority 
of the 317 in England

43rd

2007

47th

2010

39th

2015

38th

2019

Below are the rankings for Barnsley relative to the other 316 local authorities using 
the ‘rank of average score’ by domain (where 1 = most deprived, 317 = less deprived)

43rd

Income 
Deprivation 27th

Employment 
Deprivation

15th

Education, 
skills and 
Training

22nd

Health 
Deprivation 

and 
Disability

31st

Crime
311th

Barriers to 
Housing and 

Services

304th

Living 
Environment

Healthy Life Expectancy (2017-19)

Males: 57.5 Years
5.7 Years lower than 
the England average 

Females: 61.5 Years 
2 Years lower than the 
England average 

P
age 74



Our collective action  

BARNSLEYWHATSYOURMOVE.CO.UK 11

A healthy and proud Barnsley where active living is part of everyday life for everyone

Active Schools 
& Colleges

Active 
Spaces

Active 
Workplaces

Marketing & 
Communications

Active 
Communities

Improved physical 
health and mental 

wellbeing across the 
Barnsley population

Reduced 
inequalities in 
health across 
the borough 

Increased 
investment in sport, 
physical activity and 

movement 

Greater 
awareness of 

how to be active 
in Barnsley 

A strong, connected 
and collaborative 

partnership 
network 

OUR VISION

OUR PRIORITIES

THE PRINCIPLES OF HOW WE WILL WORK

People who are inactive

People on low incomes Older people

18–25-year-olds
People with a long-term 

health condition

OUR TARGET AUDIENCES

TO ACHIEVE

• Channelling our energy where need is the greatest

• Working collaboratively with partners and communities

• Understanding the issues and challenges affecting communities

• Using data, insight and our learning to help us prioritise action

• Advocating for sport, physical activity and movement

P
age 75



Active Communities  

BARNSLEYWHATSYOURMOVE.CO.UK 12

By focussing on our communities, we aim to improve 
people’s individual health and impact communities as 
a whole. We want to bring people together through 
physical activity and enable our communities to create 
vibrant and connected places to live. Being active can 
do so much more than improve physical health, it can 
develop confidence and self-worth and help people 
feel connected to the place they live. We know that 
people living in more deprived areas are more likely to 
be inactive and we want to reduce health inequalities 
amongst those on low incomes by focussing our work 
where it’s needed most. Using our data and insight we 
can identify target audiences for specific support.   

Develop a range of physical activity 
interventions that are needs led and 
co-produced with target audiences

Be aware of and support those 
communities that face the biggest 
inequalities to move more.

Influence and support health and care 
pathways to ensure that physical activity 
is used as a tool for improved health. 

Ensure that we use the data and insight 
for both physical activity and the wider 
determinants to help us focus our efforts.

Capitalise on opportunities to bring 
inward investment into Barnsley  
for collaborative projects.

P
age 76



Active Spaces  

BARNSLEYWHATSYOURMOVE.CO.UK 13

We want to make it easier for people to access green 
and open spaces, including local parks. We want 
to influence policy and decision making at senior 
level, to ensure physical activity is high on everyone’s 
agenda and built into all policies, strategies, and 
master planning. This integrated approach will 
maximise physical activity opportunities so it’s easier 
for everyone to build physical activity into their daily 
routine. We want to use opportunities to build active 
travel and physical activity options into our town 
centre, Principal town developments and our cultural 
visitor destinations including, Wentworth Castle 
Gardens and Barnsley Museum sites.

Promote & support the indoor 
& outdoor assets that Barnsley 
has to help people to be active.

Develop active travel programmes 
across the borough to positively 
experience cycling and walking. 

Improve access to physical activity 
opportunities in open/green space, 
including parks. 

Implement the Barnsley Playing Pitch 
Strategy (PPS) and the Local Football 
Facility Plan (LFFP) actions.

Implement active travel infrastructure 
across the borough – Town Centre, 
Principal Towns & visitor destinations.

P
age 77



Active Workplaces  

BARNSLEYWHATSYOURMOVE.CO.UK 14

Technological advances and the rise in home 
working have resulted in our workplaces becoming 
more sedentary. Many people who were previously 
active during their working hours are now struggling 
to fit physical activity around and within their 
working day. It is important employers benefit from 
a healthy, active workforce and both employers and 
employees have a greater understanding of how 
they can build physical activity into their working 
day. We will engage larger employers including the 
NHS, Council and private companies and support 
our small & medium enterprises by working with a 
range of champions to inspire and motivate.

Advocate and promote the importance of reducing 
sedentary time in the workplace by encouraging 
people to move more and take up active travel. 

Develop and share a range of resources, 
good practice examples and advice for 
workplaces to encourage moving more.  

Engage employers to ensure there are 
opportunities to sit less and move more in 
the working day including active travel. 

Support workplace health champions to 
promote physical activity in their workplace 
environments and wider as a lifestyle choice. 

Promote and celebrate those 
workplaces that are going above and 
beyond to help people move more.

P
age 78



Active Schools 
& Colleges  

BARNSLEYWHATSYOURMOVE.CO.UK 15

We want to support schools and colleges to develop 
and maintain a positive relationship with being 
physically active which young people can continue 
throughout their lives. With a whole-school approach 
to physical activity from active travel to embedding 
physical activity within the classroom, schools have 
the potential to make a significant and long-lasting 
change to the physical activity levels of young people. 
Colleges can continue to embed positive messages 
about physical activity and also deliver training and 
employment opportunities within the sector. 

Embed movement into a whole school approach 
to reduce sedentary time and encourage 
moving more as part of the school day. 

Provide focussed support to schools 
to help children who face the 
biggest barriers to becoming active.

Work with education providers 
to develop leadership skills and 
coaching opportunities. 

Support primary schools to 
spend their primary school sport 
premium funding effectively.

Co-ordinate the Active Schools Network 
to support ongoing development of the 
Active Schools & Colleges priority.

P
age 79



Marketing & 
Communications  

BARNSLEYWHATSYOURMOVE.CO.UK 16

It is important that we frame physical activity in a way 
that is relevant and supportive to the target audiences. 
By taking a co-ordinated approach to communicating 
the benefits and opportunities of being more active, 
we can raise the profile of moving more across the 
borough. We also understand that for some groups 
we will need to take a different approach and we will 
work with partners and groups across Barnsley to 
ensure that our methods are appropriate for all target 
audiences. We will build on the momentum created by 
the What’s Your Move Campaign.

Develop an annual 
communications 
plan. 

Create a portal of information on how 
to be active in Barnsley promoting the 
various assets in the borough.

Create & maintain a physical activity 
presence in the public eye through 
the What’s Your Move campaign.

Encourage a collaborative approach 
to communications across partners 
and groups in Barnsley.

Develop a What’s 
Your Move Champions 
Programme.

P
age 80



How will we know we are making a difference?  

BARNSLEYWHATSYOURMOVE.CO.UK 17

We need to recognise the time it takes for change 
to happen and to understand how or why change 
has occurred. The system of collective activity in 
sport, physical activity and movement is complex 
and identifying the causes of improved physical 
health and mental wellbeing would be too difficult 
to assess. We have identified our five priorities for 
action so we can focus our work, advocacy and 
collaboration into nurturing the conditions and the 
environment for change to happen.

Health & Wellbeing Board &                                   
Barnsley 2030 Partnership Board

Reporting

Wider Network

Them
ed groups or areas of work linked to prio

rit
ie

s

Priorities

Insight

Active in Barnsley Partnership 
The Active in Barnsley Partnership was formed in 2018 to provide focussed 
leadership and a vehicle for influence and advocacy. The partnership 
will oversee the work of the strategic plan and its progress. This will also 
support our commitment to understanding our impact. It will enable us to 
learn from our efforts and those of others to help influence our future work. 

Monitoring and track data
We will keep a running surveillance on the wider determinants and physical 
activity data to ensure that we see any changes, monitor the partnership 
priorities against the data and help us to shape future changes in direction. 

Evaluate our progress
We will evaluate how our progress as a partnership and wider network 
against the objectives of each priority. This will enable us to make sure 
that we are supporting, stimulating and creating the conditions for 
change in those areas. This will also support our commitment to learning.

Use the Power of Stories 
Through our communications campaign What’s Your Move, we will 
capture inspiring stories of people to help others consider being more 
active. This will help build a picture of how people and our communities 
are being active in Barnsley to generate momentum towards our vision.

P
age 81



We are Barnsley –       
How to get involved?  

BARNSLEYWHATSYOURMOVE.CO.UK 18

No one approach will increase physical activity levels across 
Barnsley. The Active in Barnsley partnership will oversee and 
drive the strategic plan and we would like as many people, 
organisations and leaders to support our ambition to make it a 
reality. If you’ve got a personal or professional interest in improving 
health through increasing physical movement then get involved!

Check out our website and join our What’s Your Move Campaign
www.barnsleywhatsyourmove.co.uk

Interact with us on Facebook and Twitter
@barnsleymoving       BarnsleyMoving

Become a What’s Your Move Champion
www.barnsleywhatsyourmove.co.uk/get-involved/what-s-your-move-champions/ 

Contact Stuart Rogers or Laura Allen for further information about Active in Barnsley
Stuartrogers@barnsley.gov.uk            Laura.Allen@yorkshiresport.org

Spread the 
word by talking 

about this to your 
friends and colleagues

P
age 82

www.barnsleywhatsyourmove.co.uk
https://twitter.com/BarnsleyMoving
https://www.facebook.com/BarnsleyMoving/
https://www.barnsleywhatsyourmove.co.uk/get-involved/what-s-your-move-champions/
mailto: Stuartrogers@barnsley.gov.uk
mailto: Laura.Allen@yorkshiresport.org


1 

 

REPORT TO THE HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 
 

Thursday 3rd February 2022 
 

AFFORDABLE WARMTH UPDATE 
             
 

Report Sponsor: Kathy McArdle 
Report Author: Claire Miskell /Julie Tolhurst 

 
 
1. Purpose of Report 

  
1.1 This report provides an overview of progress to establish a strategic approach 

to affordable warmth which is recognised as making an important contribution 
to health & wellbeing outcomes of residents, alongside the Councils 
aspirations to reduce emissions via Zero 40/45.  

 
2.  Recommendations 
 
2.1 Health and Wellbeing Board members are asked to:- 
 

 note the importance of prioritising affordable warmth and impacts on 

resident’s health & wellbeing to tackle health inequalities; 

 note the position and achievements of the Affordable Warmth programme;  

 acknowledge the outputs from the Warm Homes team and the transfer of this 

function into the Strategic Housing, Sustainability and Climate Change Team;  

and 

 agree the development of an Affordable Warmth Strategy and the need to 

secure sustainable longer-term funding to support capital and revenue costs. 

 
3.  Delivering the Health & Wellbeing Strategy 
 
3.1  The Affordable warmth programme contributes to each of the ambitions and 

outcomes for Starting Well, Living well and Ageing Well.  
 
3.3 Starting Well: reducing fuel poverty will contribute to fewer children living in 

overall poverty and families having resources to look after themselves by 
paying fuel bills.   

 
3.4 Living Well: the Affordable Warmth programme will directly contribute to 

everyone in Barnsley having access to a safe, warm and sustainable home to 
support their health and wellbeing. 

 

Page 83

Item 9

https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/media/19957/barnsley-hwb-strategy-final-web.pdf


2 

 

3.5 Ageing Well: the Affordable Warmth programme will contribute to helping 
people remain healthy, active and independent in later life by improving the 
quality of existing mainstream housing stock and future-proof new homes.  

 
4.  Reducing Health Inequalities 
 
4.1 Cold homes, cold-related illnesses, Excess Winter Deaths and housing in 

poor repair are the visible signs of fuel poverty and are impacting on many 
households in Barnsley, affecting the most vulnerable residents across the 
borough. Families on low incomes are living in cold, damp homes and older 
people are struggling to heat their homes in winter. With fuel prices continuing 
to rise, the issues are set to continue.  There is a clear social gradient for fuel 
poverty: the lower your income, the more likely you are to be at risk of fuel 
poverty. (Marmot Review Team, 2011). 

 
4.2 The delivery of an Affordable Warmth strategy and programme of works will 

help to tackle the wider health impacts of living in a cold home.  An impact 
assessment will be conducted before and after works are completed to record 
outcomes for residents and this will be collated with health impact 
assessments from other fuel poverty initiatives to form a local evidence base 
for further investment to tackle cold homes. 

 

Page 84



3 

 

 
5.  Affordable Warmth Strategy 
 
5.1 The “Sustainable Warmth – Protecting Vulnerable Households in England” 

strategy (Feb 2021) sets out the Government’s commitment to tackle fuel 
poverty and help the most vulnerable by increasing the energy efficiency of 
homes, reducing the cost of bills, contributing to Net Zero targets, and 
supporting low-income households in the transition to low carbon heating 

 
5.2 In 2021, a Barnsley Affordable Warmth task force was established, chaired by 

the Service Director for Regeneration & Culture BMBC. The key purpose of 
the task force is to develop a strategic approach for Affordable Warmth, 
particularly targeting our most vulnerable, fuel poor communities living in all 
tenures across the borough.  

  
5.3 An Affordable Warmth strategy 2022-2025 is in the early stages of being 

developed, in consultation with key partners, and aligned with the Health & 
Wellbeing Strategy, the Barnsley 2030 ambitions and the Excess Winter 
Deaths Cold Weather Plan 2021-22.   

 
6. Warm Homes Service 
 
6.1  In 2019, BMBC secured grant funding from Affordable Warmth Solutions, 

alongside money from the Better Care Fund to develop a borough-wide Warm 

Homes Service, as a single point of access to offer support to residents living 

in, or at risk, of living in fuel poverty. 

6.2 The team was established as part of the ABLE service in the Communities 

Directorate, and the grant funding was available to support the team until 

December 2021.  

6.3 Up to the end of September 2021, the Warm Homes Service had achieved 

financial outcomes of £1.4M, with an average benefit of £1,640 per 

household. 1,593 residents benefitted from help and advice on how to keep 

their homes healthy and warm, with signposting to other services such as food 

banks. 

6.4 On 4th January 2022, this function was transferred to the Strategic Housing, 

Sustainability and Climate Change Team and provides access to energy 

efficiency grant support, with signposting to income maximisation assistance if 

required. 

7. Affordable Warmth Boiler scheme 

7.1 The 3-year Affordable Warmth Programme was established in 2019 with an 

initial capital investment of £250,000.  In February 2020, an additional 

Page 85



4 

 

£150,000 was approved to be added due to the success of the scheme in the 

first 2 years of operation. 

7.2 Four distinct work programmes were designed to link in with external sources 

of funding at that time and to introduce assistance to residents with long-term 

health conditions made worse by living in a cold home.  

7.3 The original proposal was to carry out works to a minimum of 106 households, 

equating to an average capital spend per property of £2,358 over the three-

year period. The actual number of households benefitting to date has been 

213 with an average capital spend of £1,597. 

7.4 The total value of works under the programme since April 2019 is £613,637 

and a total of £273,460 of external funding has been accessed including any 

customer and landlord contributions. 

7.5 The first 2 years of the programme have been independently evaluated by 

National Energy Action (NEA) who have reported that residents have felt 

demonstrable benefits to their health from upgraded or replacement heating 

systems or insulation installed.  One resident, with depression, arthritis and 

COPD approached the Council when her heating broke down and told us that 

it was “awful, absolutely awful. I wasn’t well and my symptoms were getting 

worse… I was staying in bed all the time with a hot water bottle”.  The 

Affordable Warmth Programme provided funding to install a new boiler and 

the resident’s feedback was “I get up the morning, have a hot bath… my 

friends and family can see what difference it’s made to me… I’m over the 

moon to be honest”. 

7.6 Local Authority Delivery (LAD) funding has been obtained to fully fund 

insulation works to a total of 375 properties that are poorly energy efficient 

and have residents on low incomes.  Two phases of this funding are currently 

in delivery and are due to be completed by June 2022. 

8. Sustainable Warmth competition 

8.1 The Sustainable Warmth competition was launched in June 2021 and offered 

local authorities the opportunity to bid for a share of £350M allocated to tackle 

fuel poverty by the installation of energy efficiency measures and low carbon 

heating.  The programme is split in to 2 distinct strands:  

- Local Authority Delivery Phase 3 (LAD3); and 
- Home Upgrade Grant (HUG). 

 

8.2 The bid proposal for the Council to access a portion of this funding was 

submitted to the Department of Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy 

Page 86



5 

 

(BEIS) on the 4th August 2021 and consists of 460 properties under LAD3 and 

21 properties under HUG.  The funding bid was successful and the full 

allocation of £5.3M has been awarded. 

9. Household Support Grant  

 The team are currently offering grants of up to £500 to pay off energy debt 

and/ or provide a £140 credit to people’s energy accounts to assist with the 

increased cost of keeping homes warm due to the energy price increases.  

Residents in receipt of Local Council Tax Support Allowance automatically 

qualify for the grant, however applications will also be considered for residents 

with a total household income of less than £30,000 pa.  This grant is in huge 

demand and an element of this needs to be incorporated into the next 

Affordable Warmth programme to be offered as part of a package of 

assistance. 

 
10.  Contributing to Health and Wellbeing Board’s key priorities 
 
10.1 Improving outcomes for children and young people 
 
 Reducing fuel poverty will contribute to fewer children living in overall poverty 

and families having resources to look after themselves by paying fuel bills. 
Children that live in cold homes are more at risk of respiratory illness, low self-
esteem and mental health problems. By improving the energy efficiency of 
homes, the potential health impacts of cold homes will be minimised.  

 
10.2 Improving mental health in Barnsley. 
 

Living in a cold, damp home has significant impacts on resident’s mental 
health – such as anxiety and depression. There is strong evidence that 
improving housing conditions and energy efficiency directly improves mental 
health outcomes amongst householders.  

 
11. Equality impact 
  

An Equalities Impact Assessment for the key Affordable Warmth programmes 
has been completed with Equality and Inclusion Officers. In addition, a 
community engagement project was delivered in the Summer 2021 to 
understand the lived experience of vulnerable residents during the winter to 
inform our Excess Winter Deaths/ Cold Weather Plan and the development of 
an Affordable Warmth Strategy.  
 

12. Tackling the impact of poverty 
 

The delivery of an Affordable Warmth programme will tackle the impact of 
poverty relating to the rising heating costs and energy bills, by improving 
energy efficiency and signposting to income maximisation advice. 

Page 87



6 

 

 
 
13.  Conclusion/ Next Steps 
 

Although several Affordable warmth programmes are in delivery, the next step 
is to develop an overarching strategy to define shared priorities and maximise 
opportunities as they arise. Funding for Affordable Warmth capital schemes is 
time limited, therefore there is a need to prioritise longer term sustainability to 
improve health & wellbeing outcomes for residents.  This work links to the 
development of route maps for zero40/45 to reduce emissions and promote 
low carbon/renewable energy solutions.      

 
14. Financial Implications 
 
14.1  Consultations have taken place with BMBC representatives of the Service 

Director – Finance (S151 Officer) to accept the capital grant funding for the 

Sustainable Warmth Programme and the creation of new posts to deliver the 

scheme.  

14.2 There is an urgent priority to secure sustainable longer-term funding for 
Affordable Warmth across the borough. The current council capital that funds 
this scheme ends in March 2022 and there is no external funding currently 
available.  Works to heating system has been included under DFG grants for 
several years now and the majority of people benefitting from the Affordable 
Warmth programme to date have a long-term health condition made worse by 
living in a cold home. The potential to access Better Care funding to continue 
to provide this preventative support on an on-going basis needs to be 
examined in detail.   

 
 
15  Consultation with stakeholders 
 
15.1  Consultation for the Affordable Warmth programme of works has taken place 

with colleagues in BMBC Legal, Finance, Procurement, the Able service and 

Berneslai Homes. The consultation extended to partners of the Financial 

Resilience Sub-Group.   

15.2 Consultation for the EWDs/Cold Weather Plan which includes the Affordable 

warm programme, has taken place with members of the Cold Weather 

Collaborative group including Barnsley CCG, SWYPHT, CVS, Barnsley 

hospital, Berneslai Homes, and SY Fire Service.  

15.3 A community engagement exercise was delivered in the Summer 2021 to 
understand the lived experience of vulnerable residents during the winter to 
inform our Excess Winter Deaths/ Cold Weather Plan and the development of 
an Affordable Warmth Strategy.  

 

Page 88



7 

 

 
16.  Appendices 
 
16.1  Appendix 1 – Affordable Warmth presentation 
 
 
 
Officer:       Date: 

Page 89



This page is intentionally left blank



Affordable Warmth Update

Kathy McArdle
Service Director, Culture & Regeneration

P
age 91



Affordable Warmth Strategic links

• Health & Wellbeing Strategy:
• Starting Well
• Living Well
• Ageing Well

• Energy Strategy/ SEAP

• Housing Strategy

• Key 2030 Themes:
• Sustainable Barnsley
• Healthy Barnsley

P
age 92



Affordable Warmth Programme 2019-2021 : Update
Initial budget allocation of £250,000 in 2019, with additional £150,000 allocated in April 2021

To Date 

Average household income = £16,543

*Final data and evaluation to be completed post 31st March

Number BMBC Capital External Funding

Total Health Condition 202 425,770.00£  178,879.00£         

Total child under 16 34 64,915.00£    20,400.00£            

Total Over 70 115 225,149.00£  127,032.00£         

Number
Total works 

value
BMBC Capital External Funding Average Grant

Proposed 106 250,000.00£         2,358.00£         

Actual 334 959,260.00£  577,204.00£         382,056.00£         1,776.00£         

P
age 93



Warm Homes Service 2018-21 - Update

Single point of access for fuel poor households funded by the Warm Homes Fund & match via Better Care Fund
Helped over 1,100 residents – combined savings of £1.4M

Key priorities to address NICE NG6 Guidance recommendations

Breakdown of households:

Over 50% of all applicants were referred for grants for heating/ insulation

Category No. Of Households

In fuel poverty 838

Cat 1 Cold Home hazard 162

In receipt of DWP benefits 685

Child under 16 170

Adult over 70 440

P
age 94



Retrofit Programmes - Update

• Fabric First approach, households in fuel poverty

• Circa. 500 properties to benefit – insulation measures only, no  gas boiler replacements

• £6.5M funding from Government, ends March 2023

• Compliments existing Affordable Warmth Programme as whole house approach

P
age 95



Next Steps for Affordable Warmth AgendaP
age 96



BHNFT Health Inequalities Action Plan (November 2021) 
Version 6.0 November 2021           

1 

 
 
 
 

  Barnsley Hospital NHS Foundation Trust 
 
 

Action Plan for Improving Public Health 
and Reducing Health Inequalities 

2022/23 
 

November 2021 
 
 
 
 

Page 97

Item 10



BHNFT Health Inequalities Action Plan (November 2021) 
Version 6.0 November 2021           

2 

Health Inequality in Barnsley 
Background 
People in Barnsley experience poorer health and wellbeing than people in many parts of the 
country. These inequalities in health are long-lasting, persistent, and driven by social, economic 
and environmental inequalities.  
 
Health inequalities are not inevitable, they are preventable. They are socially determined by 
circumstances largely beyond an individual's control (such as global economic forces, political 
priorities and decisions, distribution of power and income). Addressing the unjust differences in 
health between our communities has always been important, however, as the disproportionate 
impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, and its roots in the social and economic structure of our society 
becomes increasingly clear, BHNFT and Barnsley place partners must respond. 
 
Even though the drivers of inequalities are rooted in the social, economic and environmental 
determinants, equity also needs to be addressed within the health and care system. There are 
inequitable differences in access and quality of health care that we can influence. Some of the 
most marginalised people in our communities have poorer access to health services, and a poorer 
experience of services, even though they may have more complex needs and require more care. 
Accordingly, without addressing inequitable access and quality, health care services could widen 
inequalities rather than help to reduce them. 
 
More information on how we can describe health inequalities is included in Appendix A. 

 
Our Population 
The population of Barnsley face stark inequalities when compared to other areas of the country. 
Barnsley is ranked as the 39th most deprived area in England out of 326 local authorities, and 25% 
of children in Barnsley are living in poverty. Two fifths of electoral wards within Barnsley are 
amongst the 20% most deprived in England (PHE, 2020). The number of years lived in good 
health (Healthy Life Expectancy) for the Barnsley population is below the England and Yorkshire 
averages (PHE, 2020). 
 
In addition, there is a significant gap in health 
outcomes within the borough. For example, 
those in the most deprived areas (such as 
Kingstone and Stairfoot) spend more years 
living in poor health and have a shorter life 
expectancy than those in the least deprived 
areas (Penistone East and Penistone West) 
(ONS, 2019). 
 
BHNFT analysis has identified that those from 
the most deprived areas of Barnsley are less 
likely to attend Barnsley Hospital for planned 
care and investigations. In addition, those from 
the most deprived areas make up the majority 
of our urgent and emergency attendances and 
admissions. 

Page 98



BHNFT Health Inequalities Action Plan (November 2021) 
Version 6.0 November 2021           

3 

Action to Address Health Inequality 
Our Role 
The NHS constitution states that the NHS exists “to improve our health and wellbeing, support us 
to keep mentally and physically well, to get better when we are ill and, when we cannot fully 
recover, to stay as well as we can to the end of our lives.” (DoHSC, 2021). 
 
Health is a fundamental human right (WHO, 2021). As an organisation focused on health, we must 
do all we can to promote and maintain good health (and prevent ill health), addressing health 
inequalities as we do so. Reducing inequalities in the health status of the people of Barnsley, while 
working to improve overall population health, will start to eliminate some of the barriers faced by 
disadvantaged population groups. 
 
The NHS in England is committed to addressing health inequalities and has identified priority 
actions that build on the measures to implement the NHS Long Term Plan (see Appendix B). We 
intend to build on these actions to maximise the benefits BHNFT can provide to the population of 
Barnsley, and uphold our partnership commitment to the Barnsley Health and Wellbeing Strategy 
2021–2030. 
 
Health inequalities and their underlying causes drive unscheduled hospital activity, putting greater 
demand on health services. Tackling health inequalities is a key part of demand management, as 
unmet need presents as preventable urgent and emergency demand. 
 
For individual patients, it is important that all staff at BHNFT understand health inequalities and the 
huge potential for unmet need within the health and care system. This understanding should 
influence investigation and management of clinical presentations to ensure need is met. For 
example, people from more deprived areas are not only more likely to get cancer, they’re more 
likely to be diagnosed at a late stage for certain cancer types, and face barriers when accessing 
cancer or screening services. Consideration of a patient’s social history and the inequalities they 
face has the potential to maximise individual health outcomes. 
 
  

Page 99



BHNFT Health Inequalities Action Plan (November 2021) 
Version 6.0 November 2021           

4 

Action to Address Health Inequality 
Our Plan 
This action plan details the BHNFT priorities to address health inequalities over the next 18 
months and complements Horizon 1 (Recovery & Building Back Better) of the BHNFT Strategy 
2021-2026. 
 
The initial actions our Trust will take to improve population health and promote health equity are 
spread across three tiers of activity. We aim to achieve the following: 
 

A. By establishing new services, we will prevent the onset, progression and impacts of 
disease through early intervention, narrowing the inequality gap in the healthy life 
expectancy of the Barnsley population. 
 

B. By enhancing existing services, we will reduce inequalities in access to care, and 
address disparities in patient’s experience of care to improve patient outcomes.  
 

C. By harnessing the Trust’s role as an anchor institution to help build a more inclusive 
society and economy in Barnsley, we will help to address inequalities in the wider 
determinants of health. We will influence these social, economic and environmental factors 
to improve population health. 
 

Health inequalities are caused by complex interaction between many different factors, and 
therefore will not be solved by a single organisation’s action plan. However, it is important we start 
somewhere with the factors that we can influence. This plan describes the initial priority actions 
that we can take as an organisation to reduce health inequalities in Barnsley. 
 
There are three enablers which are essential to deliver this action plan: 

Ø Understanding of the concepts of health inequalities and population health. 

Ø Barnsley integrated care partnership collaboration (place level working). 

Ø Organisational leadership that promotes health equity. 

The majority of activity described in this action plan will be delivered without additional resource. 
Existing investment and pooling resource through partnership working will enable key aspects. If 
specific services need additional resource to support any of these priority actions alongside current 
commitments, business cases will be proposed in due course. 

It is important to acknowledge our partnership role in improving public health and reducing health 
inequalities. This action plan feeds into the Barnsley Metropolitan Borough Council (BMBC) Public 
Health plan for the next three years. 

 
  

Page 100



BHNFT Health Inequalities Action Plan (November 2021) 
Version 6.0 November 2021           

5 

Governance 
 
It is anticipated that action to address inequality will be embedded within existing workstreams and 
governance, and therefore integrated to the way of working. This is consistent with a shift in culture 
change that makes health inequalities part of all roles within the organisation. 
 
For assurance, we propose updates on the Health Inequalities Action Plan are provided to the 
Executive Team quarterly, and to the Quality and Governance Committee quarterly. 
 
All proposed timeframes in this action plan are accurate at the time of writing. However, we 
appreciate that increasing organisational pressures and sudden changes in national policy may 
cause delays to action plan progress. 
 
Where new governance approaches are to be embedded within the organisation, these are listed 
against the relevant priority action. 
 

Page 101



BHNFT Health Inequalities Action Plan (November 2021) 
Version 6.0 November 2021           

6 

A: Establish New Services 
People’s behaviour is a major determinant of how healthy they are. Public Health England’s 2020–25 strategy identified smoking, poor diet, 
physical inactivity and high alcohol consumption as the four principal behavioural risks to people’s health in England today. 
 
Behavioural risks to health are more common in some parts of the population than in others. The distribution is patterned by measures of 
deprivation, income, gender and ethnicity, and risks are concentrated in the most disadvantaged groups. For example, smoking prevalence in the 
most deprived fifth of the England population is 28 per cent, compared to 10 per cent in the least deprived fifth. 
 
Providing new interventions and services that aim to prevent new illness and deterioration of illness for those individuals and communities that 
experience poorer outcomes will reduce health inequalities. This is the core aim of the Healthy Lives Programme, work carried by a team of 
public health staff employed by BHNFT. The Healthy Lives Programme is a universal offer, but risks are concentrated in those with poorer 
outcomes and therefore interventions such as this will help address health inequalities. 
 
Alongside these dedicated services it is important to consider the effect of any new service or policy within BHNFT on health inequalities. 
Incorporating explicit prompts regarding equity and health inequalities in the BHNFT Equalities Impact Assessment and associated training 
materials is the first step to ensure inclusive service design. 
 
 
 
Progress To Date 
 
Dedicated population health services in BHNFT 
 
QUIT: We now have an established team of tobacco control advisors to support the treatment of tobacco addiction. As a result of QUIT, 
BHNFT now screens over 70% of admitted patients, is finding close to the expected prevalence of smokers and is supporting a large 
proportion to quit. 
 
Alcohol Care Team (ACT): BHNFT has completed recruitment to the team at the end of the summer and now have an ACT sited in the 
emergency department and acute frontage of the hospital. 
 

 
  

P
age 102



BHNFT Health Inequalities Action Plan (November 2021) 
Version 6.0 November 2021           

7 

Healthy Lives Programme 

Priority Actions Metrics Impact Timeframe Governance Action 
Owner 

1 Extension of Tobacco Control (QUIT) Proportion of patients 
admitted who are 
screened for tobacco 
addiction. 
 
Number of patients 
provided with NRT and 
specialist stop smoking 
advice. 
 
Number of staff 
members provided with 
NRT and specialist 
stop smoking advice. 
 

What will be 
different in one 
year? 
 
We will identify at 
least 80% of 
patients being 
admitted who 
have tobacco 
addiction and 
provide 
appropriate 
treatment and 
access to 
community 
services. 

Ongoing. 
 
Quarterly 
reporting on 
team activity 
metrics. 

The  
QUIT steering 
group which 
feeds into the 
Healthy Lives 
Team Business 
& Governance 
which report to 
the CBU3 
Business & 
Governance 
meeting. 
 

Healthy Lives 
Programme 
Manager / 
Consultant in 
Public 
Health, 
Healthy Lives 
Team. 
 

The BHNFT QUIT Team has been 
established to treat tobacco addiction in 
hospital inpatients. 
 
The service provides access to nicotine 
replacement treatments (NRT) and 
specialist stop smoking support during the 
hospital stay for all patients identified. 
 
We wish to further expand this service by 
reaching more inpatients and outpatients, 
in addition to providing a QUIT offer to all 
BHNFT staff who smoke. 

  

P
age 103



BHNFT Health Inequalities Action Plan (November 2021) 
Version 6.0 November 2021           

8 

2 Establish the Alcohol Care Team (ACT) Number of patients 
screened throughout 
the hospital using 
AUDIT/AUDIT-C  
 
Number of referrals to 
the ACT. 
 
Number of patients 
commencing medically-
assisted alcohol 
withdrawal (MAW). 
 
Number of referrals to 
community alcohol 
services. 

What will be 
different in one 
year? 
 
We will identify 
alcohol-
dependent 
patients, provide 
appropriate 
treatment and 
access to 
community 
services and 
reduce their need 
for emergency 
services. 

Team 
established by 
December 
2021. 
 
Quarterly 
reporting on 
team activity 
metrics. 

ACT steering 
group which 
feeds into the 
Healthy Lives 
Team Business 
& Governance 
which report to 
the CBU3 
Business & 
Governance 
meeting. 
 

Healthy Lives 
Programme 
Manager / 
Consultant in 
Public 
Health, 
Healthy Lives 
Team. 
 

Establish the Alcohol Care Team (ACT) to 
provide specialist interventions for alcohol-
dependent patients and those presenting 
with acute intoxication or other alcohol-
related complications, attending A&E or 
admitted as inpatients. 

  

P
age 104



BHNFT Health Inequalities Action Plan (November 2021) 
Version 6.0 November 2021           

9 

3 Physical inactivity and unhealthy diet Proportion of patients 
admitted who are 
screened for these risk 
factors. 
 
Number of patients 
provided with brief 
interventions to prevent 
obesity. 
 
Plan for encouraging 
physical activity in 
hospital inpatients, with 
appropriate metrics 
developed. 

What will be 
different in one 
year? 
 
We will identify 
these risk factors 
by screening at 
least 60% of 
patients being 
admitted, and 
provide brief 
intervention 
advice and 
access to 
community 
services. 

Review April 
2022. 
 
Quarterly 
reporting on 
team activity 
metrics. 

Healthy Lives 
Team Business 
& Governance 
which report to 
the CBU3 
Business & 
Governance 
meeting. 
 

Healthy Lives 
Programme 
Manager / 
Consultant in 
Public 
Health, 
Healthy Lives 
Team. 
 

Our Healthy Lives Facilitators currently 
screen hospital inpatients for unhealthy 
diet and physical inactivity. We will 
enhance the brief intervention offer 
provided by these facilitators. 
We have recruited a Population Health 
Fellowship post that will focus on 
supporting the Healthy Lives Team to 
identify these risk factors and provide 
opportunities to address them. This will 
include: 
Incorporating Moving medicine resources - 
https://movingmedicine.ac.uk/ 
Engaging with the Barnsley Whats Your 
move campaign 
https://www.barnsleywhatsyourmove.co.uk/ 
and linking in with Local Authority Public 
Health colleagues. 
Linking in with Barnsley Premier Leisure 
who current provide Barnsley weight 
management services. 

  

P
age 105



BHNFT Health Inequalities Action Plan (November 2021) 
Version 6.0 November 2021           

10 

4 Collaboration & Co-ordination with 
Community Services Proportion of patients 

attending services that 
are offered additional 
Healthy Lives Team.  
 
Number of families 
provided early help 
interventions. 
 
Number of adults 
patients provided with 
additional Healthy Lives 
intervention. 
 
Number of patients 
referred on to 
community services (not 
including smoking and 
alcohol).  
 
Number of patient that 
referred to community 
services whose first 
contact is in the hospital 

What will be 
different in one 
year? 
 
We will liaise with 
and facilitate 
community 
services to 
access vulnerable 
patients during 
their hospital stay 
and make plans 
for community 
follow-up. 

Service 
established by 
April 2022. 
 
Quarterly 
reporting on 
team activity 
metrics. 

Healthy Lives 
Team Business 
& Governance 
which report to 
the CBU3 
Business & 
Governance G 
meeting. 
 

Healthy Lives 
Programme 
Manager / 
Consultant in 
Public Health, 
Healthy Lives 
Team. 
 

Vulnerable people that face barriers to 
accessing community services are more 
likely to attend emergency services 
(e.g. hospital emergency departments). 
Attendance and subsequent admission 
to secondary care provides an 
opportunity for access to the 
appropriate community services. 
 
Excellent community services exist in 
Barnsley, but these have faced barriers 
to in-reach into hospital. The Healthy 
Lives Programme can provide a 
platform to facilitate community services 
to work with people in need when they 
attend Barnsley Hospital. 
 
For example, Barnsley Recovery Steps 
can engage with individuals seeking 
support with substance misuse; the 
Family Early Help service can provide a 
link-in to services to support families. 
 
We aspire to extend these opportunities 
through support for Barnsley people 
with no fixed abode, and also extend 
some of the primary care offer into 
hospital during their stay to ensure safe 
and appropriate follow-up in the 
community. 

  

P
age 106



BHNFT Health Inequalities Action Plan (November 2021) 
Version 6.0 November 2021           

11 

BHNFT Equality Impact Assessments 

Priority Actions Metrics Impact Timeframe Governance Action 
Owner 

5 Enhance the Equality Impact 
Assessment (EIA) Toolkit to include 
health inequality resources 

Addition of Health 
Inequalities prompts and 
questions to EIA toolkit 
and template. 

What will be 
different in one 
year? 
 
Health 
inequalities will be 
considered at an 
early stage in the 
planning of 
organisational 
change, new or 
changing activity, 
or developing or 
changing service 
delivery. 
 

Ongoing. 
 
Quarterly 
reporting on 
team activity 
metrics. 

People & 
Engagement 
group to review 
and approve. 

Head of 
Inclusion and 
Wellbeing 

Inclusion of Health Inequalities 
Resources and prompts in the Equality 
Impact Assessment (EIA) Toolkit and 
associated training materials will ensure 
health inequalities are considered 
alongside the development of any new 
services. 

 
  

P
age 107



BHNFT Health Inequalities Action Plan (November 2021) 
Version 6.0 November 2021           

12 

A. Establish New Services in Partnership 

Working in Partnership across Barnsley Place 
 

The clinical lead for the Healthy Lives Programme is Dr Ceryl Harwood (Consultant in Public Health), who is supported by Dr Andy Snell 
(Consultant in Public Health). Under the supervision of Bob Kirton, both Dr Snell and Dr Harwood represent BHNFT on partnership groups. 
Both Dr Harwood and Dr Snell have joint positions hosted by BHNFT and Barnsley Metropolitan Borough Council. 
 
BHNFT is a member of the Barnsley Tobacco Control Alliance; Barnsley Alcohol Control Alliance, Barnsley Physical Activity Partnership 
(chaired by Dr Snell) and the Heart Health Alliance (Chaired by Dr Harwood). These groups exist to improve the health, environmental and 
economic status of people living and working in the borough through co-ordinated, effective and sustained action against relevant risk 
factors by organisations and individuals working in partnership. 
 
Our clinical leads provide technical public health input to these groups, in addition to the BHNFT Health Lives Programme providing service 
capacity for prevention of ill health and reducing inequalities in health outcomes for people living in Barnsley. 
 
We have a key role in guiding the place-wide approach to tackle the relevant risk factors above, but also strengthen accountability of all 
partners (including BHNFT) to improve the health of Barnsley people. 
 

  

P
age 108



BHNFT Health Inequalities Action Plan (November 2021) 
Version 6.0 November 2021           

13 

B: Enhance Existing Services 
 
Access to health services refers to the availability of services that are timely, appropriate, sensitive and easy to use. Inequitable access can 
result in particular groups receiving less care relative to their needs, or more inappropriate or sub-optimal care, than others, which often leads to 
poorer experiences, outcomes and health status. 
 
Inequitable access might mean that a group faces particular barriers to getting the services that they need, such as real or anticipated 
discrimination or challenges around language. It can mean that information is not communicated in an easily understandable or culturally 
sensitive way. 
 
We can also measure access in terms of service availability and uptake. More deprived areas tend to have lower rates of admission to elective 
care than less deprived areas, despite having a higher disease burden. 
 
The first step to addressing inequality is to identify the inequalities that exist in our key services. The priority actions below describe the steps we 
will take to monitor any inequality that exists within our service activity, and the steps we will take to support any population groups that have 
unequal access to diagnostics and/or treatment. 
 

Progress To Date 
 

We have analysed hospital activity to identify our baseline emergency and planned care activity by age, gender, level of deprivation and 
ethnicity. This goes beyond the minimum ask of the NHS 2021/22 operational planning guidance, and informs the actions outlined in this 
Action Plan. We have shared this data with teams and where relevant developed best practice in line with national policy. 
 
Proposals for extension of services (e.g. diagnostic services to be offered at the Glassworks) incorporate an awareness of identified 
inequalities and aim to address them. 
 
Working in partnership with Barnsley Metropolitan Borough Council we have developed a more sophisticated method for identifying 
vulnerable people in Barnsley. These tools provide an opportunity for us to target those in the greatest need and narrow the inequality gap. 
 
In addition, we have continued networking locally and across the region, learning from others and joining up work on health inequalities. 

 
 
 

P
age 109



BHNFT Health Inequalities Action Plan (November 2021) 
Version 6.0 November 2021           

14 

Elective Recovery 

Priority Actions Metrics Impact Timeframe Governance Action 
Owner 

6 Monitor ethnicity and most deprived 
decile proportions in planned care 
waiting lists 

Proportion of patients 
meeting the 18-week 
Referral to Treatment 
waiting time standard by 
age, gender, ethnicity 
and deprivation decile. 
Proportion of on the 
Referral to Treatment 
pathway who have been 
waiting for 52 weeks or 
more by age, gender, 
ethnicity and deprivation 
decile. 
Number of those on all 
waiting lists by age, 
gender, ethnicity and 
deprivation decile. 
 

What will be 
different in one 
year? 
 
Regular 
monitoring of 
activity through an 
inequality lens will 
inform service 
improvement 
plans. 
 

Review April 
2022. 
 

Existing CBU 
governance 
arrangements. 

Associate 
Directors of 
Operations, 
CBU1, CBU2 
& CBU3. 
 
(Supported 
by Consultant 
in Public 
Health). 
 

To identify inequalities in relation to the 
bottom 20% by Index of Multiple 
Deprivation (IMD) and black and 
minority ethnic populations. 
Ethnicity and most deprived decile 
proportions will be monitored across all 
waiting lists for elective procedures. 
 
This will include specific analysis of: 
§ Performance against 18-week 

Referral to Treatment waiting time 
standard. 

§ Number of patients on the Referral 
to Treatment pathway who have 
been waiting for 52 weeks or more. 

§ Referral to Treatment pathway 
waiting list size. 

  

P
age 110



BHNFT Health Inequalities Action Plan (November 2021) 
Version 6.0 November 2021           

15 

7 Monitor ethnicity and most deprived 
decile proportions in outpatient 
referrals 

Number of patients 
referred to outpatient 
services analysed by  
age, gender, ethnicity 
and deprivation decile. 

What will be 
different in one 
year? 
 
Regular 
monitoring of 
activity through an 
inequality lens will 
inform service 
improvement 
plans. 
 

Review April 
2022. 
 

Existing CBU 
governance 
arrangements. 

Associate 
Directors of 
Operations, 
CBU1, CBU2 
& CBU3 
 

(Supported 
by Consultant 
in Public 
Health) 
 

To identify inequalities in relation to the 
bottom 20% by Index of Multiple 
Deprivation (IMD) and black and 
minority ethnic populations. 
 
Ethnicity and most deprived decile 
proportions will be monitored across our 
hospital referrals. 

8 Health Inequalities Service 
Improvement Plan for planned care 

Development of a Health 
Inequalities Service 
Improvement Plan for 
planned care with 
partners. 
 

What will be 
different in one 
year? 
 
Service 
improvement plan 
specific to 
planned care will 
outlined targeted 
actions that can 
be taken by 
BHNFT and 
partners to 
address identified 
inequality. 

July 2022. Existing CBU 
governance 
arrangements. 
 
Barnsley 
Planned Care & 
Outpatients 
Group 
(Integrated 
Board). 

Associate 
Directors of 
Operations, 
CBU1, CBU2 
& CBU3. 
 
(Supported 
by Consultant 
in Public 
Health). 
 
Place 
Programme 
Leads. 
 

Based on the monitoring above (Priority 
Action 7) we commit to developing a 
service improvement plan to address 
any identified health inequalities in 
planned care access, quality or 
outcomes. As a secondary care 
provider, we are responsible for one 
part of the care pathway and the service 
improvement plan will require 
engagement with partners.  
 
We will present any inequalities 
identified at Planned Care Board and 
work with partners to narrow the health 
inequality gap. 

 
  

P
age 111



BHNFT Health Inequalities Action Plan (November 2021) 
Version 6.0 November 2021           

16 

Emergency and Urgent Care 

Priority Actions Metrics Impact Timeframe Governance Action 
Owner 

9 Monitor ethnicity and most deprived 
decile proportions in emergency 
department usage 

Proportion of ED 
attendances by age, 
gender, ethnicity and 
deprivation decile. 
 
Acuity of ED 
presentations by age, 
gender, ethnicity and 
deprivation decile. 

What will be 
different in one 
year? 
 
Regular 
monitoring of 
activity through 
an inequality lens 
will inform service 
improvement 
plans. 

Review April 
2022. 
 

Existing CBU 
governance 
arrangements. 

Associate 
Director of 
Operations, 
CBU1 – 
Medicine. 
 
(Supported 
by Consultant 
in Public 
Health). 

To identify inequalities in relation to the 
bottom 20% by Index of Multiple 
Deprivation (IMD) and black and 
minority ethnic populations. 
Ethnicity and most deprived decile 
proportions will be monitored across 
disease pathways, and according to 
acuity of initial presentation. 

  

P
age 112



BHNFT Health Inequalities Action Plan (November 2021) 
Version 6.0 November 2021           

17 

10 Health Inequalities Service 
Improvement Plan for emergency 
and urgent Care 

Development of a Health 
Inequalities Service 
Improvement Plan for 
emergency and urgent 
care with partners. 

What will be 
different in one 
year? 
 
Service 
improvement plan 
specific to 
emergency care 
will outline 
targeted actions 
that can be taken 
by BHNFT and 
partners to 
address identified 
inequality. 

July 2022. 
 

Existing CBU 
governance 
arrangements. 
 
Barnsley 
Emergency & 
Urgent Care 
Delivery Board 
(Integrated 
Board). 

Associate 
Director of 
Operations, 
CBU1 – 
Medicine 
 
(Supported 
by Consultant 
in Public 
Health). 
 

Based on the monitoring above (Priority 
Action 9) we commit to developing a 
service improvement plan to address 
any identified health inequalities in 
emergency and urgent care access, 
quality or outcomes. As a secondary 
care provider, we are responsible for 
one part of the care pathway and the 
service improvement plan will require 
engagement with partners.  
 
We will present any inequalities 
identified at Emergency and Urgent 
Care Delivery Board and work with 
partners to narrow the health inequality 
gap. 

 
  

P
age 113



BHNFT Health Inequalities Action Plan (November 2021) 
Version 6.0 November 2021           

18 

Patient Vulnerability Data to Support Clinical Assessment & Prioritisation 

Priority Actions Metrics Impact Timeframe Governance Action 
Owner 

11 Establish an Information Sharing 
Agreement (ISA) with Barnsley 
Metropolitan Borough Council 

Information Sharing 
Agreement approved by 
Trust (including Caldicott 
Guardian). 
 

What will be 
different in one 
year? 
 
A signed 
information 
sharing 
agreement will be 
in place between 
both 
organisations. 

December 
2021. 
 

Existing 
Information 
Governance 
arrangements 
at BHNFT and 
BMBC. 

Information 
Governance 
and Clinical 
Applications 
Manager. 
 

Establish a data sharing agreement 
between Barnsley Metropolitan 
Borough Council (BMBC) and BHNFT 
will allow a more complete picture of 
individual’s health and care needs. 
Through a better understanding of an 
individual’s social and economic 
circumstances, those in the greatest 
need can be prioritised for planned 
care. This allows individuals in greatest 
needs to be seen earlier in a care 
pathway, therefore averting a serious 
deterioration in their health and the 
need for unplanned care.  
This data sharing will allow BMBC to 
provide information to BHNFT on the 
vulnerability of residents to enable us to 
plan and provide services, ensuring the 
most vulnerable receive the services 
they need, better utilise resources and 
address health inequalities. 

 

P
age 114



BHNFT Health Inequalities Action Plan (November 2021) 
Version 6.0 November 2021           

19 

12 Pilot use of Barnsley Vulnerability 
Index to assist clinical prioritisation 
for planned care waiting lists 

Evaluation of the effect 
of utilising information 
regarding patient 
vulnerability to inform 
clinical prioritisation. 

What will be 
different in one 
year? 
 
The effect of 
using information 
regarding patient 
vulnerability to 
inform clinical 
prioritisation will 
be evaluated. 
Learning will be 
captured and 
shared. 

Review April 
2022. 
 

Working with 
existing 
governance 
arrangement 
within CBUs, 
and exploring a 
need for 
additional 
governance if 
required. 

Consultant in 
Public Health. 
 
Associate 
Directors of 
Operations, 
CBU1, CBU2 
& CBU3. 
 

The Barnsley Vulnerability Index is a 
tool that will enable clinical business 
units to be able to take into account 
additional information that indicates 
vulnerability to a prolonged wait for 
planned NHS care. 
This will allow prioritisation based on 
social and economic need in addition to 
clinical need to address health 
inequalities faced by the Barnsley 
population. 
 
We intend to pilot this using existing 
waiting lists and evaluating the effect of 
incorporating additional information 
about a patient’s circumstances during 
the planned care pathway. 

  

P
age 115



BHNFT Health Inequalities Action Plan (November 2021) 
Version 6.0 November 2021           

20 

13 Pilot use of Barnsley Vulnerability 
Index to flag vulnerable patients 
within the Emergency Department 

Evaluation of the effect 
of utilising information 
regarding patient 
vulnerability to inform 
clinical care. 

What will be 
different in one 
year? 
 
The effect of 
using information 
regarding patient 
vulnerability to 
inform clinical 
prioritisation will 
be evaluated. 
Learning will be 
captured and 
shared. 

September 
2022. 
 

Working with 
existing 
governance 
arrangement 
within CBU1, 
and exploring a 
need for 
additional 
governance if 
required. 

Consultant in 
Public Health. 
 
Associate 
Director of 
Operations, 
CBU1 – 
Medicine. 
 

The Barnsley Vulnerability Index is a 
tool that will enable clinicians to be able 
to take into account additional 
information that indicates vulnerability, 
and may influence management in the 
emergency department. 
A better understanding of an 
individual’s social circumstances and 
need, in addition to clinical need may 
influence investigation and 
management. 
 
We intend to pilot this approach for 
direct emergency care. 

 
 
 
  

P
age 116



BHNFT Health Inequalities Action Plan (November 2021) 
Version 6.0 November 2021           

21 

Cancer Services 

Priority Actions Metrics Impact Timeframe Governance Action 
Owner 

14 Monitor ethnicity and most deprived 
decile proportions in usage of 
Cancer Services 

Proportion of cancer 
referrals by age, gender, 
ethnicity and deprivation 
decile. 
 
Proportion of cancers 
diagnosed at stages 1 or 
2 by age, gender, 
ethnicity and deprivation 
decile. 
 
Urgent two-week cancer 
referral performance – 
potentially (subject to 
Government agreement) 
to be replaced by the 
28-day faster diagnosis 
standard – by age, 
gender, ethnicity and 
deprivation decile. 
 
Percentage of patients 
starting cancer 
treatment within 62 days 
of GP referral by age, 
gender, ethnicity and 
deprivation decile. 

What will be 
different in one 
year? 
 
Regular 
monitoring of 
activity through 
an inequality lens 
will inform service 
improvement 
plans. 
 

Review April 
2022. 

Existing 
governance 
arrangements 
for Cancer 
Services. 

Lead Cancer 
Manager, 
Cancer 
Services. 
 To identify inequalities in relation to the 

bottom 20% by Index of Multiple 
Deprivation (IMD) and black and 
minority ethnic population groups. 
Ethnicity and most deprived decile 
proportions will be monitored across 
service restoration and NHS Long Term 
Plan metrics. 
For cancer services this will include the 
following headline metrics: 
§ Cancer referral treatment levels. 
§ Proportion of cancers diagnosed at 

stages 1 or 2. 
§ Urgent two-week cancer referral 

performance – potentially (subject to 
Government agreement) to be 
replaced by the 28-day faster 
diagnosis standard during 2021-22. 

Percentage of patients starting cancer 
treatment within 62 days of GP referral. 
 

P
age 117



BHNFT Health Inequalities Action Plan (November 2021) 
Version 6.0 November 2021           

22 

15 Health Inequalities Service 
Improvement Plan for Cancer 
Services 

Development of a 
specific Health 
Inequalities Service 
Improvement Plan for 
Cancer Services. 
 

What will be 
different in one 
year? 
 
Service 
improvement plan 
specific to Cancer 
Services will 
outline targeted 
actions that can 
be taken by 
BHNFT and 
partners to 
address identified 
inequality. 

July 2022. 
 

Existing 
governance 
arrangements 
for Cancer 
Services. 

Lead Cancer 
Manager, 
Cancer 
Services. 
 Based on the monitoring above (Priority 

Action 14) we commit to developing a 
service improvement plan to address 
any identified health inequalities in 
cancer care access, quality or 
outcomes. As a secondary care 
provider, we are responsible for one 
part of the care pathway and the 
service improvement plan will require 
engagement with partners.  
 
We will present any inequalities 
identified at Planned Care Board and 
work with partners to narrow the health 
inequality gap. 

 
 
  

P
age 118



BHNFT Health Inequalities Action Plan (November 2021) 
Version 6.0 November 2021           

23 

 

 

Maternity Services 

Priority Actions Metrics Impact Timeframe Governance Action 
Owner 

16 Monitor ethnicity and most deprived 
decile proportions in usage of 
Maternity Services 

Data submitted to the 
Maternity Services Data 
Set (MSDS) that 
contains valid postcode 
for mother at booking. 
 
Data submitted to MSDS 
that includes a valid 
ethnic category.  

What will be 
different in one 
year? 
 
95% of MSDS will 
have a valid 
postcode and 
80% will have 
ethnicity 
recorded.  
 
Regular 
monitoring of 
activity through an 
inequality lens will 
inform service 
improvement. 

Review April 
2022. 

Existing 
governance 
arrangements 
for Maternity 
Services. 

Head of 
Midwifery, 
CBU3 - 
Women’s, 
Children’s 
and 
Clinical 
Support 
Services. 
 

To identify inequalities in relation to the 
bottom 20% by Index of Multiple 
Deprivation (IMD) and black and 
minority ethnic population groups. 
Ethnicity and most deprived decile 
proportions will be monitored across 
existing maternity service metrics. 

  

P
age 119



BHNFT Health Inequalities Action Plan (November 2021) 
Version 6.0 November 2021           

24 

17 Understanding the experience of 
Maternity service users from Black 
and Minority Ethnic Groups 

Evidence that the MVP 
is prioritising hearing the 
voices of women from 
Black, Asian and 
Minority Ethnic 
backgrounds and 
women living in areas 
with high levels of 
deprivation.  
 
(This is likely to include 
the MVP work 
programme, survey 
feedback, and records of 
activity taken as a result 
of service user 
engagement.) 

What will be 
different in one 
year? 
 
A greater 
understanding of 
the maternity 
experience of 
people from 
minority ethnic 
groups.  
 

July 2022. 
 

Existing 
governance 
arrangements 
for Maternity 
Services. 

Public Health 
Specialist 
Midwife, 
Maternity 
Services.  

Barnsley Maternity Voices Partnership 
(MVP) work alongside 
our midwives and with other healthcare 
professionals as an independent group 
known as National Maternity Voices. 
They pass on feedback gathered from 
local families during pregnancy and 
after, to influence improvements to 
services in the community and at 
hospital. 
Building on the existing success of 
gathering service user feedback and 
working with service users through the 
Barnsley MVP, we will prioritise hearing 
the voices of women from Black, Asian 
and Minority Ethnic backgrounds and 
women living in areas with high levels 
of deprivation. 

  

P
age 120



BHNFT Health Inequalities Action Plan (November 2021) 
Version 6.0 November 2021           

25 

18 Prioritising women from BAME 
backgrounds into Continuity of Care 
teams 

The proportion of 
women from BAME 
background allocated to 
a continuity team.  
 

What will be 
different in one 
year? 
 
More women from 
black and ethnic 
minority 
backgrounds 
allocated to 
Continuity of Care 
teams with a 
target of at least 
60%. 

Review April 
2022. 
 

Existing 
governance 
arrangements 
for Maternity 
Services. 

Matron for 
Community 
Midwifery and 
Antenatal 
Day Services, 
Maternity 
Services. 
 

Review of monthly electronic patient 
record data to identify GP practices with 
black and minority ethnic (BAME) 
women. Clear identification of these 
women will aid future planning of 
continuity teams. 
 
We will ensure that women identified to 
be from a BAME background are 
allocated to Continuity teams. 

19 Prioritising women living in the 
bottom 10% most deprived areas 
into Continuity of Care teams 

The proportion of 
women from bottom 
10% most deprived 
areas allocated to a 
continuity team. 

What will be 
different in one 
year? 
 
More women from 
the most deprived 
areas of Barnsley 
allocated to 
Continuity of Care 
teams with a 
target of at least 
60%. 

Review April 
2022. 
 

Existing 
governance 
arrangements 
for Maternity 
Services. 

Matron for 
Community 
Midwifery and 
Antenatal 
Day Services, 
Maternity 
Services. 
 

Review of monthly electronic patient 
record data to identify GP practices with 
women from the bottom 10% most 
deprived areas. Clear identification of 
these women will aid future planning of 
continuity teams. 
 
We will ensure that women identified to 
be from the bottom 10% most deprived 
areas are allocated to Continuity teams. 

  

P
age 121



BHNFT Health Inequalities Action Plan (November 2021) 
Version 6.0 November 2021           

26 

Ensuring Digital Inclusion 

Priority Actions Metrics Impact Timeframe Governance Action 
Owner 

20 Offer face-to-face care to patients 
who cannot use remote services 

Proportion of face-to-
face appointments 
provided. 
 

What will be 
different in one 
year? 
 
Those who will 
benefit from face-
to-face care will 
receive it. 

Ongoing. Existing 
governance 
arrangements 
for Outpatient 
Services. 

Head of 
Outpatients, 
Outpatient 
Services. 

Throughout the pandemic BHNFT has 
offered face-to-face care to patients 
who cannot use remote services 
through informal discussion with 
clinicians. We will continue this 
approach to mitigate against digital 
exclusion. 

  

P
age 122



BHNFT Health Inequalities Action Plan (November 2021) 
Version 6.0 November 2021           

27 

21 Monitor ethnicity and most deprived 
decile proportions in usage of 
remote services 

Proportion of face-to-
face consultations, 
broken down by relevant 
protected characteristic 
and health inclusion 
groups. 
 
Proportion of telephone 
consultations, broken 
down by relevant 
protected characteristic 
and health inclusion 
groups. 
 
Proportion of video 
consultations, broken 
down by relevant 
protected characteristic 
and health inclusion 
groups. 

What will be 
different in one 
year? 
 
Regular 
monitoring of 
activity through 
an inequality lens 
will inform service 
improvement 
plans. 

Review April 
2022. 
 

Existing 
governance 
arrangements 
for Outpatient 
Services. 

Head of 
Outpatients, 
Outpatient 
Services. 
 

We will identify who is accessing face-
to-face, telephone, or video 
consultations, broken down by relevant 
protected characteristic and health 
inclusion groups. 
 
In particular we will assess for 
inequalities in relation to the bottom 
20% by Index of Multiple Deprivation 
(IMD) and black and minority ethnic 
population groups. 

 
 
 
  

P
age 123



BHNFT Health Inequalities Action Plan (November 2021) 
Version 6.0 November 2021           

28 

Outpatient Services 

Priority Actions Metrics Impact Timeframe Governance Action 
Owner 

22 Policy for the management of 
missed outpatient appointments for 
adult patients 

Reduction in the 
numbers of missed 
outpatient appointments 
(‘did not attends’). 
 
Identify reasons why 
vulnerable adults do not 
attend outpatient 
appointments. 
 

What will be 
different in one 
year? 
 
Additional follow-
up for patients 
that are identified 
as vulnerable to 
help address any 
barriers to 
appointment 
attendance. 

December 
2021. 
 

Existing 
governance 
arrangements 
for Outpatient 
Services. 

Head of 
Outpatients, 
Outpatient 
Services. 

We will establish a system to enable 
the identification of patients’ 
vulnerabilities such as dementia, 
learning disabilities, patients unable to 
attend appointments on their own and 
patients living in care homes. 

This policy will enable an offer of 
support to facilitate patient attendance, 
ensuring effective communication and 
sharing appropriate information 
between health and social care 
professionals. 

  

P
age 124



BHNFT Health Inequalities Action Plan (November 2021) 
Version 6.0 November 2021           

29 

23 Evaluate the effect of outpatient 
transformation initiatives on health 
inequalities 

Proportion of outpatient 
referrals and 
attendances by age, 
gender, ethnicity and 
deprivation decile. 

Proportion of missed 
outpatient appointments 
(‘did not attends’) by 
age, gender, ethnicity 
and deprivation decile. 

Comparisons between 
those on PIFU pathways 
and those not on PIFU 
Pathways by age, 
gender, ethnicity and 
deprivation decile. 

What will be 
different in one 
year? 
 
Regular 
monitoring of 
activity through 
an inequality lens 
will inform service 
improvement 
plans. 

Review April 
2022. 
 

Existing 
governance 
arrangements 
for Outpatient 
Services. 

Head of 
Outpatients, 
Outpatient 
Services. 
 Outpatients transformation 

requirements laid out in the 2021/22 
Operational Planning Guidance 
requires providers to take steps to 
avoid outpatient attendances of “low 
clinical value” and redeploy capacity 
where it is needed, alongside increased 
mobilisation of Advice & Guidance and 
Patient Initiated Follow-Up services. 
It is important to consider the effect of 
these transformation initiatives on 
health inequalities. We will monitor the 
effect of these initiatives on health 
inclusion groups, and those with 
protected characteristics. 

  

P
age 125



BHNFT Health Inequalities Action Plan (November 2021) 
Version 6.0 November 2021           

30 

24 Health Inequalities Service 
Improvement Plan for Outpatient 
Services 

Development of a 
specific Health 
Inequalities Service 
Improvement Plan for 
Outpatient Services. 
 

What will be 
different in one 
year? 
 
Service 
improvement plan 
specific to 
Outpatient 
Services will 
outline targeted 
actions that can 
be taken by 
BHNFT and 
partners to 
address identified 
inequality. 

July 2022. 
 

Existing 
governance 
arrangements 
for Outpatient 
Services. 

Head of 
Outpatients, 
Outpatient 
Services. 
 

Based on the monitoring above (Priority 
Actions 21 and 23) we commit to 
developing a service improvement plan 
to address any identified health 
inequalities in access to Outpatient 
Services. As a secondary care provider, 
we are responsible for one part of the 
care pathway and the service 
improvement plan will require 
engagement with partners.  

We will present any inequalities 
identified at Planned Care Board and 
work with partners to narrow the health 
inequality gap. 

 
 
  

P
age 126



BHNFT Health Inequalities Action Plan (November 2021) 
Version 6.0 November 2021           

31 

Patient Experience 

Priority Actions Metrics Impact Timeframe Governance Action 
Owner 

25 Evaluate the Friends and Family Test 
(FFT) feedback through a health 
inequality lens 

Quarterly reporting on 
patient experience 
feedback that identifies 
any inequalities faced by 
patients. 
 

What will be 
different in one 
year? 
 
Regular 
monitoring of 
activity through 
an inequality lens 
will inform service 
improvement 
plans and 
engagement 
work. 

Review April 
2022. 
 

Existing patient 
experience 
governance 
arrangements. 

Head of 
Quality and 
Clinical 
Governance. 

The Friends and Family Test (FFT) 
provides service user feedback on the 
care and treatment received at BHNFT. 

We will specifically look for patterns in 
the feedback related to in health 
inclusion groups, and those with 
protected characteristics. Where 
possible, the anonymised feedback will 
be grouped by ethnicity. 

  

P
age 127



BHNFT Health Inequalities Action Plan (November 2021) 
Version 6.0 November 2021           

32 

 
26 Analysis of patient complaints 

through a health inequality lens 
Quarterly reporting on 
complaints grouped by 
themes and population 
groups (e.g. ethnicity) 
that identifies any 
inequalities faced by 
patients. 
 
Incorporate this 
evaluation into the 
quarterly Learning from 
Experience (LFE) 
reports. 
 

What will be 
different in one 
year? 
 
Regular 
monitoring of 
activity through 
an inequality lens 
will inform service 
improvement 
plans and 
engagement 
work. 

Review April 
2022. 
 

Existing patient 
experience 
governance 
arrangements. 

Head of 
Quality and 
Clinical 
Governance.  

There is an opportunity for us to 
evaluate complaints by collecting data 
on the complainants demographics and 
personal circumstances. 

We will specifically look for patterns in 
the feedback related to those in health 
inclusion groups, and those with 
protected characteristics. Where 
possible, the anonymised feedback will 
be grouped by ethnicity and Index of 
Multiple Deprivation (IMD). 

27 Engage with relevant population 
groups in response to any specific 
inequality issues 

Evidence of partnership 
working, engaging with 
relevant population 
groups in response to 
any specific issues 
identified. 
 

What will be 
different in one 
year? 
 
We will engage 
with specific 
population groups 
identified through 
analysis of activity 
and experience 
data. 

Review April 
2022. 
 
 

Existing patient 
experience 
governance 
arrangements. 

Head of 
Quality and 
Clinical 
Governance. Through wider partnership working, 

engaging with relevant population 
groups in response to any specific 
issues identified through patient 
experience feedback (e.g. FFT). 
For example, building on existing links 
with groups such as Barnsley Carers or 
the Children and young people’s 
empowerment project (Chilypep), we 
have the opportunity to respond to 
issues, improve our services and 
reduce inequalities. 

  

P
age 128



BHNFT Health Inequalities Action Plan (November 2021) 
Version 6.0 November 2021           

33 

Communications 

Priority Actions Metrics Impact Timeframe Governance Action Owner 

28 Continue to provide accessibility 
and language options to view 
BHNFT website content 

Inclusion of ReciteMe 
website accessibility 
software on the BHNFT 
website. 
 

What will be 
different in one 
year? 
 
More patients 
and members of 
the public will be 
able to access 
our online 
resources. 

Ongoing. 
 
 

Existing 
governance 
processes for 
marketing and 
communications. 

Head of 
Communications, 
Marketing and 
Communication. 
 Website accessibility software will be 

incorporated into the BHNFT website. 
This creates a more inclusive 
experience online by providing 
accessibility and language options to 
enable users to customise the 
website in a way that works for them. 
 
This provides translation into over 
100 different languages and dialects 
and provides an option for the 
content to be provided as audio. 

 
 
  

P
age 129



BHNFT Health Inequalities Action Plan (November 2021) 
Version 6.0 November 2021           

34 

B. Enhance Existing Services in Partnership 

Working in Partnership across Barnsley Place 
 
Through existing integrated transformation boards that make up the Barnsley Integrated Care Partnership, we continue to champion the 
importance of addressing health inequalities. For example, through Planned Care & Outpatients Group, Care Closer to Home Board and 
the Urgent & Emergency Care Delivery Board. Through each of these groups we have provided examples of BHNFT public health work 
and action taken to enhance existing services. 
 
The majority of partnership action to tackle health inequality across Barnsley occurs in the Health Inequalities Action Group (HIAG), a group 
comprised of Barnsley health and social care service providers. The HIAG is chaired by Dr Andy Snell (BHNFT Consultant in Public & 
Global Health), and reports directly to the Barnsley Integrated Care Delivery Group (ICDG). 
 
The greatest impact that BHNFT has had on enhancing existing services delivered by partner organisations has been through the 
development of the three-tier framework (see Appendix C). This framework forms the basis of this Health Inequalities Action Plan and 
through BHNFT’s leadership, is being adopted by other health providers in Barnsley (for example, SWYPFT and primary care colleagues). 
 
Some of the areas we want to improve most as part of this action plan and the wider work depends on working in partnership, and so this 
aspect is crucial. However, there is a lot BHNFT can enhance through its own approach and services, and so it is important that the trust 
progresses this action plan whatever the pace and progress of our partners. 
 

 

  

P
age 130



BHNFT Health Inequalities Action Plan (November 2021) 
Version 6.0 November 2021           

35 

C: Build a More Inclusive Society and Economy in Barnsley 
The majority of what makes us healthy and what makes our lives fulfilling is determined outside services provided by the NHS (Health 
Foundation, 2018).  
 
The term “anchor institution” is often used to describe organisations such as Barnsley Hospital. An anchor institution is one that is not going 
anywhere. It is tied to a particular place by its core business, physical assets and local relationships. By their very nature, anchor institutions are 
in a prime position to address the social determinants of health as influential partners in local strategy, large employers, purchasers of services 
and goods, holders of physical assets and community partners. 
 
The BHNFT strategy commits to ‘embracing our role as an anchor institution…using our influence to improve employment opportunities for 
local people, add social value by sourcing local supply chains, adopt stretching environmental policies and design and deliver services to reach 
and benefit disadvantaged communities to reduce health inequalities and improve population health.’ 
 
In doing so, we aim to increase our positive effects and reduce our negative ones. Our goal is to support, enable and promote: 

§ An inclusive economy 

§ The health of our planet  

§ A fair and just society for all (including future generations) 

Progress To Date 

The BHNFT Strategy 2021-2026 commits to embracing our role as an anchor and formal adoption of 6Ps as well as key workstreams in the 
first horizon on employment, procurement, environment, design of services and as a partner in Barnsley to reduce health inequalities. 
 
We have established an “anchor” charter which has been written into the BHNFT Strategy 2021-2026. There is a full interactive version 
now developed for use. 
 
We are using demonstrator projects to put the anchor principles and practices into action and  working closely with the Quality 
Improvement (QI)I team to include staff-led QI projects that connect with the hospital’s six P principles and therefore the Anchor approach 
through initiatives such as Give it a Go Week and building environmental sustainability and equity into our understanding of quality. We 
have provided tools and training on providing sustainable healthcare. 

P
age 131



BHNFT Health Inequalities Action Plan (November 2021) 
Version 6.0 November 2021           

36 

Progress To Date (continued) 
 
Lead staff for each of the domains of the charter have been identified and they have generated some high-level recommendations for ‘good 
work’ and ‘environmental sustainability’ and initial ideas for procurement, services for social value and land and assets.  
 
Draft metrics are in development for each of the domains of the charter and a proposal to establish a network of domain leads has been 
developed. 
 

 

  

P
age 132



BHNFT Health Inequalities Action Plan (November 2021) 
Version 6.0 November 2021           

37 

BHNFT as an Anchor Institution 

Priority Actions Metrics Impact Timeframe Governance Action 
Owner 

29 Establish the “Anchor” Charter 
within BHNFT Strategy 
Implementation 

BHNFT’s adoption of an 
anchor charter. 
 
Integration of the anchor 
charter in BHNFT 
Strategy and its 
implementation. 
 
Establish a network 
group of domain leads 
established and Terms 
of Reference agreed.  
 
The network will 
coordinate domain leads 
to develop metrics to 
measure progress in 
each domain of the 
anchor charter. 
 

What will be 
different in one 
year? 
 
The BHNFT five-
year strategy 
implementation 
will adopt the 
anchor domains.  
 
We will have a 
network group of 
anchor domain 
leads that are 
delivering work 
within each 
anchor domain. 
 

Group of 
domain leads 
established by 
December 
2021. 
 
Ongoing work 
– continuous. 
 

Existing BHNFT 
Strategy 
implementation 
governance 
through the 
programme 
management 
office (PMO). 
 
Anchor network 
domain leads 
meeting. 

Consultant in 
Public Health. 
 

The key practices of an anchor 
institution have been widely described 
through work conducted by 
organisations such as the Health 
Foundation, the Joseph Rowntree 
Foundation and the Centre for Local 
Economic Strategies. 
We wish to adopt these practices and 
have developed an anchor charter to 
embed the principles within the BHNFT 
strategy. 
The charter describes the way BHNFT 
can contribute to a more inclusive 
society & economy across eight 
domains: 

1. Our goals & values and how we 
use them 

2. How we deliver services 
3. Our role as an employer 
4. How we work in partnership 
5. How we buy and procure goods 

& services 
6. Environmental sustainability 
7. Our land and assets 
8. Power and ownership 

P
age 133



BHNFT Health Inequalities Action Plan (November 2021) 
Version 6.0 November 2021           

38 

30 Anchor Demonstrator Project: Pilot 
of reusable personal protective 
equipment (PPE) 

One-month pilot of 
reusable PPE within 
BHNFT. 
 
Logistics and oversight 
groups established.  
 
Evaluation and report. 
 
Plan for future phases. 

What will be 
different in one 
year? 
 
The impact of the 
reusable personal 
protective 
equipment pilot 
will be evaluated.  
 
Learning will be 
captured and 
shared including 
a case for scaling 
up. 
 

April 2022. 
 

Anchor network 
domain leads 
meeting. 
 
Existing 
governance 
structures in 
procurement. 

Consultant in 
Public Health. 
 

Use of reusable PPE within BHNFT is a 
helpful demonstrator of an approach 
that covers multiple areas of good 
practice in the anchor charter. 
It covers procurement, provides the 
potential to stimulate the local economy 
(reusable PPE produced in Barnsley), 
has a connection to sustainability and 
staff wellbeing. 
 
We intend to pilot the procurement, and 
use of reusable PPE within BHNFT, 
demonstrating how it can be used 
effectively to protect staff and adhere to 
infection prevention and control 
guidance. 

  

P
age 134



BHNFT Health Inequalities Action Plan (November 2021) 
Version 6.0 November 2021           

39 

31 Develop Anchor demonstrator 
projects for all domains of the 
Anchor Charter 

At least one 
demonstrator project led 
by each domain lead 
has commenced. 

What will be 
different in one 
year? 
 
Each domain of 
the anchor 
charter will have 
at least one 
demonstrator 
project in 
progress. 

Review July 
2022. 
 

Anchor network 
domain leads 
meeting. 

Anchor 
Domain 
Network 
group.  
 
Consultant in 
Public Health.  

We will develop and commence other 
demonstrator projects across each of 
the domains. 
 
Demonstrator projects can be linked to 
other aspects of this plan. For example, 
if BHNFT signed up to the Barnsley 
Local Authority Declaration on Healthy 
Weight, and engaged with the Barnsley 
Food Plan this would help strengthen 
our work under tier one to reduce harm 
from physical inactivity and unhealthy 
diets. 

  

P
age 135



BHNFT Health Inequalities Action Plan (November 2021) 
Version 6.0 November 2021           

40 

32 Identify current position in relation 
to Anchor Charter to inform future 
project planning 

Baseline maturity matrix 
completed for each 
domain against the draft 
Anchor Charter. 
 
Horizon 2 projects 
identified and agreed by 
the network group of 
domain leads. 
 

What will be 
different in one 
year? 
 
The organisation 
will have mapped 
progress against 
the anchor 
charter, and 
identified areas of 
focus for future 
years. 

Review July 
2022. 
 

Anchor network 
domain leads 
meeting. 

Anchor Domain 
Network group. 
 
Consultant in 
Public Health. We will review our current position as 

an organisation against the Anchor 
Charter, identifying areas for 
development. 
 
This baseline understanding will be 
used to identify future projects that 
can be embedded within BHNFT, and 
adopted by domain leads. 

33 Communications plan for the 
BHNFT Strategy 2021-2026 
highlighting anchor practices 

Communications plan 
implemented for the 
BHNFT Strategy 2021-
2026 highlighting 
anchor practices. 

What will be 
different in one 
year? 
 
Communications 
will make the 
ideas anchor 
institution 
concepts more 
tangible by linking 
examples  of 
anchor work to 
real Barnsley 
people. 

Review July 
2022. 

Existing 
governance 
processes for 
marketing and 
communications. 

Director of 
Communications 
and Marketing. 
 We will develop our communications 

so that all colleagues and partners 
can understand our work and how 
they can contribute. 
 
This will most likely take the form of 
“Our Barnsley Story” which will use 
real people’s stories to make the 6 Ps 
(Best for Patients & the Public, Best 
for People, Best for Performance, 
Best Partner, Best for Place and Best 
for Planet) tangible. 

  

P
age 136



BHNFT Health Inequalities Action Plan (November 2021) 
Version 6.0 November 2021           

41 

 

Partnership Working 

Priority Actions Metrics Timeframe Action Owner 

34 Barnsley Inclusive Economy Board Leadership Establish BHNFT Consultant in 
Public Health as Chair of the 
Barnsley Inclusive Economy 
Strategy sub-group. 
 
Provide leadership on an inclusive 
economy strategy for Barnsley. 
 
BHNFT Membership on Inclusive 
Economy Board. 
 
BHNFT Membership of Barnsley 
2030 Board. 
 
 

Continuous. 
 

Consultant in 
Public Health. 
 The Barnsley Inclusive Economy Board is the 

strategic partnership board driving the Inclusive 
Economy strategy with representatives from private 
sector businesses and public, voluntary and 
community organisations. 
 
BHNFT and partners have maintained focus on 
shaping the long-term socio-economic wellbeing of 
the borough beyond the pandemic. The vision is 
established by Barnsley 2030 – a partnership 
commitment to: improving health; inclusive growth; 
strengthening lifelong learning; and maximising 
environmental sustainability. 
 
The anchor charter developed within BHNFT is being 
considered for use by the Barnsley Inclusive 
Economy Board to enable improvements in 
population & planetary health and to reduce 
inequalities. 

  

P
age 137



BHNFT Health Inequalities Action Plan (November 2021) 
Version 6.0 November 2021           

42 

35 
 
 

Barnsley Health Inequalities Action Group 
Leadership 

Establish BHNFT Consultant in 
Public Health as Co-Chair of the 
Health Inequalities Action Group. 
 
Provide leadership on development 
of the three-tier framework for 
addressing health inequalities 
across Barnsley. 

Continuous. 
 
 

Consultant in 
Public Health. 
 
 The Health Inequalities Action Group (HIAG) was 

formed to work on behalf of the Barnsley Integrated 
Care Delivery Group (ICDG) ICDG to develop a 
programme for tackling inequalities with an 
understanding that this runs as a golden thread 
through our partnership work. 
 
It is a partnership group where we co-ordinate, 
connect and fill in any gaps to make sure that we 
make demonstrable progress on Health Inequalities. 
 
BHNFT has led the way in the development of a 
three-tier framework for categorising action to 
address health inequalities (see Appendix C). This 
framework has been approved by the Integrated 
Care Partnership Group (ICPG) is now being 
adopted by partners. 

 

  

P
age 138



BHNFT Health Inequalities Action Plan (November 2021) 
Version 6.0 November 2021           

43 

C. Build a More Inclusive Society and Economy in Partnership 

Working in Partnership across Barnsley Place 
 

Like the majority of aspects of this action plan, building a more inclusive society and economy in Barnsley will only be successful if done in 
partnership. That is why BHNFT has ensured that BHNFT senior leadership is included on the membership of the Barnsley 2030 Board and 
the Barnsley Inclusive Economy Board.  
 
Dr Andy Snell (Consultant in Public & Global Health) chairs the Inclusive Economy Strategy / Anchor Institutions subgroup of the Barnsley 
Inclusive Economy Board to ensure we broaden our accountability beyond the work we do as a trust but also share learning with partners, 
and help to shape the Barnsley-wide approach. 
 

 
 

P
age 139



44 
 

Enablers 
 
In order to progress this action plan, there are three key enablers. 
 
 
Understanding of the concepts of health inequalities and population health 
 
This means that everybody that works within the organisation needs to understand what is meant 
by population health, health inequalities and social determinants. This includes a better 
understanding of the local Barnsley population and their needs. 
 
This can be achieved by initially raising the profile and expanding the remit of the Healthy Lives 
Team. In addition, education and training of staff on health inequalities can be incorporated into 
existing staff education programmes, quality improvement training and induction of new staff. 
 
 
 
Barnsley Integrated Care Partnership (ICP) collaboration 
 
We cannot address health inequalities in Barnsley alone; place and system collaboration is 
important. As an organisation we are currently taking a lead in the absence of a developed 
Barnsley place plan. We intend to work with partners on specific projects identified in this plan. 
 
We are aligning work to other local, regional and national programmes. 
Key examples of this work include:  

§ Working at place with Barnsley partners (e.g. delivering Barnsley 2030) 
§ Establishing the ICDG Health Inequalities Action Group. 
§ Local collaborations (e.g. Tobacco control alliance, Heart Health Alliance). 
§ South Yorkshire collaborations (e.g. South Yorkshire Cancer Alliance). 

 
 
 
Organisational leadership that promotes health equity 
 
We have a named executive board-level lead for tackling health inequalities, however it is 
important that senior leadership engage with promoting health equity. Training is being made 
available to senior leaders through the NHS Health Equity Partnership Programme, and all should 
be encouraged to take part. 
 
Action on health inequalities has been incorporated into the BHNFT Strategy 2021-2026. Next 
year when the BHNFT Quality Strategy is reviewed, leaders should consider the inclusion of  
“Equity” in the BHNFT Domains of Quality. 
 
The Trust has already made steps to address inequalities and develop this action plan. We have 
an important role in sharing good practice and learning from others. Collaborations between 
partner organisations and  NHS organisations from across the region provide opportunity to better 
serve our local population and narrow the gap in health inequalities.

Page 140



45 
 

Appendix A 
What are Health Inequalities? (taken from The Kings Fund) 
 

Inequalities of what? 

Health inequalities are ultimately about differences in the status of people’s health. But the term is 
also commonly used to refer to differences in the care that people receive and the opportunities 
that they have to lead healthy lives, both of which can contribute to their health status. Health 
inequalities can therefore involve differences in: 

• health status, for example, life expectancy and prevalence of health conditions 
• access to care, for example, availability of treatments 
• quality and experience of care, for example, levels of patient satisfaction 
• behavioural risks to health, for example, smoking rates 
• wider determinants of health, for example, quality of housing.  

  

 
Inequalities between who? 

Differences in health status and the things that determine it can be experienced by people 
grouped by a range of factors. In England, health inequalities are often analysed and addressed 
by policy across four factors: 

• socio-economic factors, for example, income 
• geography, for example, region or whether urban or rural 
• specific characteristics including those protected in law, such as sex, ethnicity or disability   
• socially excluded groups, for example, people experiencing homelessness. 

 

People experience different combinations of these factors, which has implications for the health 
inequalities that they are likely to experience. There are also interactions between the factors. For 
example, groups with particular protected characteristics can experience health inequalities over 
and above the general and pervasive relationship between socio-economic status and health. 

  

Page 141



46 
 

Appendix B 
National NHS Requirements 
 
The requirements of the NHS 2021/22 operational planning guidance related to addressing health 
inequalities are summarised below. The BHNFT Health Inequalities Action Plan incorporates the 
national requirements and goes a step further to narrow the health inequalities gap for our patient 
population. 
 
The following content is taken from the 2021/22 priorities and operational planning guidance: 
October 2021 to March 2022 (published 30 September 2021) 
 

“We will also continue the focus on the five priority areas for tackling health inequalities and 
redouble our efforts to see sustained progress across the areas detailed in the NHS Long 
Term Plan, including early cancer diagnosis, hypertension detection, respiratory disease, 
annual health checks for people with severe mental illness, continuity of maternity carer, 
and improvements in the care of children and young people. To support this, we are 
improving the quality and presentation of health inequalities data and will shortly set out 
further details of our approach. We are also asking that all NHS Board performance reports 
include reporting by deprivation and ethnicity.” 

 
 
The “five priority areas for tackling health inequalities” are described in the 2021/22 priorities and 
operational planning guidance: Implementation guidance (published 25 March 2021) and are 
copied below. 
 

“COVID-19 has highlighted the urgent need to prevent and manage ill health in groups that 
experience health inequalities, as outlined in the NHS Long Term Plan. 

 
To help achieve this, NHS England and NHS Improvement issued guidance as part of its 
‘phase 3’ response to the COVID-19 pandemic, setting out eight urgent actions for tackling 
health inequalities. Systems are now asked to focus on five priority areas in the first half of 
2021/22, distilled from the eight actions. 

 
The effective use of data is central to tackling health inequalities including delineation of our 
waiting list and performance data by deprivation and ethnicity as set out in section 3.2. 

 
Priority 1: Restore NHS services inclusively 
At national level, the decline in access amongst some groups during the first wave of the 
pandemic broadly recovered in later months. Insight work has, however, highlighted that in 
some cases pre-existing disparities in access, experience, and outcomes, have been 
exacerbated by the pandemic. It is therefore critical that systems use their data to plan the 
inclusive restoration of services, guided by local evidence. This approach should be 
informed by NHS performance reports that are delineated by ethnicity and deprivation, as 
evidence suggests these are the areas where heath inequalities have widened during the 
pandemic. 

 
Priority 2: Mitigate against digital exclusion 
Systems are asked to ensure that: 

• providers offer face-to-face care to patients who cannot use remote services 

Page 142



47 
 

• more complete data collection is carried out, to identify who is accessing face-to-
face, telephone, or video consultations, broken down by relevant protected 
characteristic and health inclusion groups 

• they take account of their assessment of the impact of digital consultation channels 
on patient access. 

 
Priority 3: Ensure datasets are complete and timely 
Systems are asked to continue to improve the collection and recording of ethnicity data 
across primary care, outpatients, A&E, mental health, community services, and specialised 
commissioning. 

 
NHS England and NHS Improvement will support the improvement of data collection across 
all settings, including through the development of the Health Inequalities Improvement 
Dashboard, which will contain expanded datasets where there is currently a relative scarcity 
of intelligence, e.g. for people experiencing post- COVID syndrome. 

 
Systems should also implement mandatory ethnicity data reporting in primary care, to 
enable demographic data to be linked with other datasets and support an integrated 
approach to performance monitoring for improvement. 

 
Priority 4: Accelerate preventative programmes that proactively engage those at 
greatest risk of poor health outcomes 
Uptake of the COVID and flu vaccination has increased significantly across all groups, but 
inequality has also widened, particularly by deprivation and ethnicity. Systems and 
providers should take a culturally competent approach to increasing vaccination uptake in 
groups that had a lower uptake than the overall average as of March 2021. 

 
Preventative programmes and proactive health management for groups at greatest risk of 
poor health outcomes should be accelerated, as set out in the main 2021/22 planning 
guidance, including: 
• Ongoing management of long-term conditions 
• Annual health checks for people with a learning disability 
• Annual health checks for people with serious mental illness 
• In maternity care, implementing continuity of carer for at least 35% of women, with the 
proportion of Black and Asian women and those from the most deprived neighbourhoods 
meeting and preferably exceeding the proportion in the population as a whole. 

 
Priority 5: Strengthen leadership and accountability 
Systems and providers should have a named executive board-level lead for tackling health 
inequalities. and should access training made available by the Health Equity Partnership 
Programme.” 

 

Page 143



48 
 

 

Appendix C 
Integrated Care Delivery Group (ICDG) Three Tier Framework 
 
 
 

P
age 144



49 
 

References 
 
Department of Health and Social Care (DHSC) (2021). The NHS Constitution for 
England. Available at: https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-nhs-
constitution-for-england/the-nhs-constitution-for-england 
 
The Health Foundation (2018). What makes us healthy? An introduction to the social 
determinants of health. Available at: https://www.health.org.uk/publications/what-
makes-us-healthy 
 
The Kings Fund (2020). What are health inequalities? Available at: 
https://www.kingsfund.org.uk/publications/what-are-health-inequalities 
 
NHS England (2021). NHS Operational Planning and Contracting Guidance 
Available at: https://www.england.nhs.uk/operational-planning-and-contracting/ 
 
NHS (2019). The NHS Long Term Plan. Available at: 
https://www.longtermplan.nhs.uk/ 
 
Office for National Statistics (ONS) (2019). Life expectancies. Available at: 
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/lif
eexpectancies 
 
Public Health England (PHE) (2020). Local Authority Health Profiles. Available at: 
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/health-profiles 
 
Public Health England (PHE) (2019). PHE Strategy 2020 to 2025. Available at: 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/phe-strategy-2020-to-2025 
 
World Health Organization (WHO) (2021). Human rights. Available at: 
https://www.who.int/health-topics/human-rights 
  

Page 145



50 
 

 
Barnsley Hospital NHS Foundation Trust 
Action Plan for Improving Public Health and Reducing Health Inequalities 2022/2023 Summary (November 2021) 
 

Priority Action to Address Health Inequalities Time Frame Action Owner 
A: Establish New Services 
Healthy Lives Team 
1 Extension of Tobacco Control (QUIT) Ongoing Healthy Lives Programme 
2 Establish the Alcohol Care Team (ACT) December 2021 Healthy Lives Programme 
3 Physical inactivity and unhealthy diet April 2022 Healthy Lives Programme 
4 Collaboration & Co-ordination with Community Services April 2022 Healthy Lives Programme 
Equality Impact Assessments 
5 Enhance the Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) Toolkit to include health inequality resources December 2021 Inclusion & Wellbeing 

B: Enhance Existing Services 
Elective Recovery 
6 Monitor ethnicity and most deprived decile proportions in planned care waiting lists April 2022 ADOs (CBUs 1,2 & 3) 
7 Monitor ethnicity and most deprived decile proportions in outpatient referrals April 2022 ADOs (CBUs 1,2 & 3) 
8 Health Inequalities Service Improvement Plan for planned care July 2022 ADOs (CBUs 1,2 & 3) 
Emergency & Urgent Care 
9 Monitor ethnicity and most deprived decile proportions in emergency department usage April 2022 ADO (CBU1) 
10 Health Inequalities Service Improvement Plan for emergency and urgent Care July 2022 ADO (CBU1) 
Patient Vulnerability Data to Support Clinical Assessment & Prioritisation 
11 Establish an Information Sharing Agreement (ISA) with Barnsley Metropolitan Borough Council December 2021 Information Governance 
12 Pilot use of Barnsley Vulnerability Index to assist clinical prioritisation for planned care waiting lists April 2022 Public Health 
13 Pilot use of Barnsley Vulnerability Index to flag vulnerable patients within the Emergency Department Sept 2022 Public Health 
Cancer Services 
14 Monitor ethnicity and most deprived decile proportions in usage of Cancer Services April 2022 Cancer Services 
15 Health Inequalities Service Improvement Plan for Cancer Services July 2022 Cancer Services 
Maternity Services 
16 Monitor ethnicity and most deprived decile proportions in usage of Maternity Services April 2022 Maternity Services 
17 Understanding the experience of Maternity service users from Black and Minority Ethnic Groups July 2022 Maternity Services 
18 Prioritising women from BAME backgrounds into Continuity of Care teams April 2022 Maternity Services 
19 Prioritising women living in the bottom 10% most deprived areas into Continuity of Care teams April 2022 Maternity Services 
Ensuring Digital Inclusion 
20 Offer face-to-face care to patients who cannot use remote services Ongoing Outpatient Services 
21 Monitor ethnicity and most deprived decile proportions in usage of remote services April 2022 Outpatient Services 

Page 1 of 2 

P
age 146



51 
 

Priority Action to Address Health Inequalities Time Frame Action Owner 
Outpatient Services 
22 Policy for the management of missed outpatient appointments for adult patients December 2021 Outpatient Services 
23 Evaluate the effect of outpatient transformation initiatives on health inequalities April 2022 Outpatient Services 
24 Health Inequalities Service Improvement Plan for Outpatient Services July 2022 Outpatient Services 
Patient Experience 
25 Evaluate the Friends and Family Test (FFT) feedback through a health inequality lens April 2022 Quality & Clinical Gov 
26 Analysis of patient complaints through a health inequality lens April 2022 Quality & Clinical Gov 
27 Engage with relevant population groups in response to any specific inequality issues April 2022 Quality & Clinical Gov 
Communications 
28 Continue to provide accessibility and language options to view BHNFT website content Ongoing Communications 

C: Build a More Inclusive Society and Economy in Barnsley 
BHNFT as an Anchor Institution 
29 Embed an “Anchor” Charter within BHNFT Strategy December 2021 Public Health 
30 Anchor Demonstrator Project: Pilot of reusable personal protective equipment (PPE) April 2022 Public Health 
31 Develop Anchor demonstrator projects for all domains of the Anchor Charter July 2022 Public Health 
32 Identify current position in relation to Anchor Charter to inform future project planning July 2022 Public Health 
33 Communications plan for the BHNFT Strategy 2021-2026 highlighting anchor practices July 2022 Communications 
Partnership Working 
34 Barnsley Inclusive Economy Board Leadership Continuous Public Health 
35 Barnsley Health Inequalities Action Group Leadership Continuous Public Health 

 
 

Page 2 of 2 

Page 2 of 2 

P
age 147



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1 

 

REPORT TO THE HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 
 

3rd February 2022 
 

BHNFT Health Inequalities Action Plan – Cover Note 
             
 

Report Sponsor: Richard Jenkins 
Report Author: Dr Andy Snell 

 
1. Purpose and Background of Report 
 
1.1 This report introduces the Health and Wellbeing Board to Barnsley Hospital 

NHS Foundation Trust’s Action Plan to reduce health inequalities over the 
next 18 months. 

 
1.2 People in Barnsley experience poorer health and wellbeing than people in 

many parts of the country. These inequalities in health are long-lasting, 
persistent, and driven by social, economic and environmental inequalities. 
Health inequalities are not inevitable, they are preventable. Addressing the 
unjust differences in health between our communities has always been 
important, however, as the disproportionate impact of the COVID-19 
pandemic, and its roots in the social and economic structure of our society 
becomes increasingly clear, BHNFT and Barnsley place partners must 
respond. 

 
1.3 Even though the drivers of inequalities are rooted in the social, economic and 

environmental determinants, equity also needs to be addressed within the 
health and care system. There are inequitable differences in access and 
quality of health care that we can influence. Some of the most marginalised 
people in our communities have poorer access to health services, and a 
poorer experience of services, even though they may have more complex 
needs and require more care. Accordingly, without addressing inequitable 
access and quality, health care services could widen inequalities rather than 
help to reduce them. Reducing inequalities in the health status of the people 
of Barnsley, while working to improve overall population health, will start to 
eliminate some of the barriers faced by disadvantaged population groups. 

 
1.4 Health inequalities and their underlying causes drive unscheduled hospital 

activity, putting greater demand on health services. Tackling health 
inequalities is a key part of demand management, as unmet need presents as 
preventable urgent and emergency demand. 

 
2.  Recommendations 
 
2.1 Health and Wellbeing Board members are asked to: 

 Note and provide feedback on the contents of Barnsley Hospital 
NHS Foundation Trust’s Health Inequalities Action Plan (Appendix 
1). 

Page 149



2 

 

 Support the delivery of the action plan by continuing to work 
collaboratively to address health inequalities and promote health 
equity in Barnsley. 

 
3.  Delivering the Health & Wellbeing Strategy 
 
3.1  The NHS in England is committed to addressing health inequalities and has 

identified priority actions that build on the measures to implement the NHS 
Long Term Plan. We intend to build on these actions to maximise the benefits 
Barnsley Hospital NHS Foundation Trust (BHNFT) can provide to the 
population of Barnsley, and uphold our partnership commitment to the 
Barnsley Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2021–2030.   

 
4.  Reducing Health Inequalities 
 
4.1 This action plan details the BHNFT priorities to address health inequalities 

over the next 18 months and complements the new BHNFT Strategy which 
will be launched in March 2022. 

 
4.2 The initial actions BHNFT will take to improve population health and promote 

health equity are spread across three tiers of activity. We aim to achieve the 
following: 
 
A) By establishing new services, we will prevent the onset, progression and 

impacts of disease through early intervention, narrowing the inequality 
gap in the healthy life expectancy. 
 

B) By enhancing existing services, we will reduce inequalities in access to 
care, and address disparities in patient’s experience of care to improve 
patient outcomes. 
 

C) By harnessing the Trust’s role as an anchor institution to help build a 
more inclusive society and economy in Barnsley, we will help to address 
inequalities in the wider determinants of health. 

 
4.3  Health inequalities are caused by complex interaction between many different 

factors, and therefore will not be solved by a single organisation’s action plan. 
However, it is important we start somewhere with the factors that we can 
influence. This plan describes the initial priority actions that we can take as an 
organisation to reduce health inequalities in Barnsley. There are three 
enablers which are essential to deliver this action plan: 

 Understanding of the concepts of health inequalities and population 
health. 

 Barnsley integrated care partnership collaboration (place level 
working). 

 Organisational leadership that promotes health equity. 
 
4.4 It is important to acknowledge our partnership role in improving public health 

and reducing health inequalities. This action plan feeds into the Barnsley 

Page 150

https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/media/19957/barnsley-hwb-strategy-final-web.pdf


3 

 

Metropolitan Borough Council (BMBC) Public Health plan for the next three 
years, and is based on the same framework that is being used across the 
Barnsley health and care system to align and strengthen our joint action – this 
is demonstrated by the graphic below. 

 

 

5.  Appendices 
 
5.1  Appendix 1 – Barnsley Hospital NHS Foundation Trust’s Health Inequalities 

Action Plan. 
 

BHNFT HI Action 

Plan v6.0.pdf
 

 
 
Officer: Dr Andy Snell    Date: 3rd February 2022 
 

 
 

 

Page 151



This page is intentionally left blank



Integrated Care: Barnsley Health & Care Plan - Delivery 

Update (Jan 22)

1

P
age 153

Item
 11



2

Introduction 

Work continues on mobilisation and delivery of the Barnsley health and care plan, which sets out 

25 strategic deliverables partners will work collaboratively to deliver (see slide 3).

In October 2021 the health and care partnership, due to operational pressures re COVID, 

agreement that programme leads should prioritise work plans for implementation over the Winter 

period. 

Working with programme managers a draft milestone plan has been developed, which sets out the 

key programme deliverables through 21/22. 

Notwithstanding pressures within the system, progress continues to be made across a number of 

areas.

The programme priorities and status of these in terms of delivery & finance are summarised 

overleaf. The focus for the plan in 21/22 is on operational delivery, rather than efficiency. This will 

be a key focus for the 22/23 plan – see next steps on slide 7.

P
age 154



3

Health & Care Plan - Strategic Deliverables

P
age 155



4

Programme Summary (1) 

Delivery

FinanceApril 

2022

Front Door Navigation

& Streaming (phase 1)

Nov 

2021
Dec 

2021

Jan 

2022
Feb 

2022

March 

2022

Clinical Standards for 

emergency care

Delivery Timeline

Key:

Off track/missed

At risk

Ontrack/complete

Plan TBC – awaiting guidance

Consistent Messaging 

& Signposting

Same Day Emergency 

Care (SDEC)

Winter Planning

U
rg

e
n

t 
&

 
E

m
e
rg

e
n

c
y

 C
a

re

A&G/PIFU Rollout

Virtual Consultations

Rapid Diagnostics & 

Behavioural Insights

Elective and planned 

recovery

P
la

n
n

e
d

 C
a
re

C
a

re
 C

lo
s
e

r 
to

 
H

o
m

e

Neighbourhood teams 

(including crisis response)

Proactive care 

(targeting inequalities)

Frailty/dementia 

pathway

Reablement

Carers

P
age 156



5

Programme Summary (2) 

Delivery

FinanceApril 

2022

Prevention and Early 

Intervention

Nov 

2021
Dec 

2021

Jan 

2022
Feb 

2022

March 

2022

Reablement Community 

Pathway

Delivery Timeline

Key:

Off track/missed

At risk

Ontrack/complete

Workforce Development 

(Strength based practice)

Health and Social Care 

Academy

ASC Integration into 

GP Practices (pilot)

B
e
tt

e
r 

L
iv

e
s

YAS/ALT 

Responder (pilot)
Plan TBC – work in progress

All age Mental Health 

Strategy

MH&WB teams in 

Schools

M
e
n

ta
l 

H
e
a

lt
h

C
h

il
d

re
n

 &
 

Y
o

u
n

g
 P

e
o

p
le

Single Point of Access 

for CYP

Maternity & Neonatal

Booster dose

16-17 year olds

Health & Social 

Care Staff

Community Mental 

Health Transformation 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

V
a
c
c

in
a
ti

o
n

Plan TBC – issues around accommodation 

Plan TBC – work in progress on 3 identified areas

Plan TBC – to implement Ockenden and Better Births recommendations 

P
age 157



6

PMO Mobilisation 

First integrated PMO meeting has taken place, well received from all attendees (programmme 

managers & enabler leads) and over the coming months with a focus on implementation through a 

busy Winter period, it is envisaged this group will be an integral part of the place-based delivery 

arrangements feeding into ICDG/ICPG respectively. 

Each programme asked to consider any further support requirements eg. resources to optimise 

delivery. Limited response to this request to this point, other than for facilitation support.

Further work required with Enablers to ensure work aligned with agreed delivery priorities 

Further work required through the Efficiency Executive to assess system efficiencies through 

delivery of the programmes

NOTE: This programme is still operating under C19 principles, recognizing operational pressures 

at place. All should note that some PMO BAU activities, such as PIDs, Business cases, benefits 

analysis, EIA, QIA processes are not being produced. This will need to change for 22/23.

P
age 158



Next Steps

• The health and care partnership will commence planning for 22/23 and beyond (5 year plan 

refresh) from February 2020; operational situation permitting at that point

• Health and care partners are committed to continuing to engage with citizens and patients in the 

development of our 5 year plan – which will be undertaken in alignment with our ICS as well

• Most 21/22 priorities are expected to continue into 22/23, with the partnership committed to 

delivery

• 22/23 will see a return to a focus on efficiency and effectiveness and this will be a key element of 

our 22/23 planning.

7

P
age 159



8

Appendix

P
age 160



Barnsley Integrated Care Partnership 

Group (ICPG)
Barnsley Health and Wellbeing 

Board (HWB) 

Planned 
Care 

Board

Urgent and 
Emergency 

Care 
Delivery 

Board

Intelligence Unit

Strategic Estates Group

Strategic Digital Group

Care 
Closer to 

Home 
Board

Barnsley 

Integrated Care 
Delivery Group 

(ICDG)

Workforce Development 
Group

Strategy

Coordination

Delivery

Enabler

Comms & Engagement

Design 

Team

Efficiency 

Executive

South Yorkshire and 

Bassetlaw Integrated Care 
System

Better lives 
programme 

board

Stronger communities partnership

Children’s Trust

Prevention and early intervention

Personalisation

Health inequalities

Quality assurance and improvement

Key 
interdependencies

Assurance and 
engagement

Safer Barnsley Partnership

Mental Health Partnership

Early start 
partnership

PMO

9

Governance - Reporting 

PMO – Engine 

Room of the 

programme, 

coordinating 

delivery

* See outline PMO group terms of reference in pack

P
age 161



10

PMO Meeting – Outline Terms of Reference

Function Members Input Frequency 

• Monitor and manage progress of 
projects and programmes milestones 
and any cost savings identified.

• Identify slippage in the progress of 
schemes and agree plans to bring back 
into line with projected timescales.  

• For Opportunity Assessment/PIDs and 
Draft Business Cases to be discussed at 
PMO and approved before being taken 
through the HHCP governance process. 

• Agree proposed mitigating schemes to 
address such slippage, and to provide 
leadership for contingency planning. 

• Manage the HCP Risk and Issue Log and 
Interdependencies Log.

• Map benefits realisation and KPI 
delivery.

• Coordinate implementation of the 
recovery and cost savings plans

• A forum to provide support for 
colleagues and to share learning and 
best practice.

• PMO Lead (Interim)
• Programme Managers/Project Managers
• Finance Lead
• BI Lead
• Comms and Engagement Lead 
• Digital Lead
• Workforce Lead

• Logic Models
• Business Cases
• Programme Highlight reports 
• Implementation plans
• Risk Register
• Interdependencies Log
• Transformation Dashboard/KPIs
• Deep dive reports as required
• Other reports to support project discussions

Monthly 2 hours

Accountable to:

Integrated Care Delivery Group 
(ICDG)

Other:

• Action and decision logs
• Deputies are “in attendance” 

only

P
age 162



1 

 

 

 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
Present 
 
Core Members: 
Mel John-Ross (Chair) BMBC, Director of Children’s Services 
Bob Dyson Barnsley Safeguarding Children Partnership  
Margaret Gostelow Barnsley Governors Association 
Phil Hollingsworth BMBC Service Director, Stronger Safer and Healthier 

Communities 
Gerry Foster-Wilson  Executive Headteacher representing Primary Schools 
Cllr Trevor Cave  Cabinet Member: Children’s Services 
Helen Wood  BMBC Organisation & Workforce Development Business Partner 
Jamie Wike     Barnsley CCG, Chief Operation Officer 
James Abdy  South Yorkshire Police, Chief Superintendent 
Nina Sleight  BMBC, Service Director for Education, Early Start and 

Prevention. 
Alicia Marcroft BMBC, Head of Public Health 
Dave Ramsay  South West Yorkshire Partnership Foundation Trust, Deputy 

Director of Operations 
Adrian England  Healthwatch Chair, on behalf of Sue Womack  
John Marshall  Chief Executive, Barnsley CVS 
Sarah Wilson  Executive Principal, Springwell  
 
Deputy Members: 
 
Advisor: 
Steve Harrison BMBC Interim Head of Commissioning, Governance and 

Partnerships 
 
In Attendance: 
Dawn Fitzpatrick BMBC, Partnerships and Project Officer  
Jayne Sivakumar  Barnsley CCG  
Tracyann Taylor BHNFT 
Zoe Adams  National management trainee 
Liz Gibson BMBC, VHT, LAC & Vulnerable Groups 
Julie Hammerton BMBC, Early Intervention & Prevention Service Manager 
Emma Baines  BMBC, Youth Voice & Participation Operation Manager 
Claire Gilmore  BMBC, Head of Early Start, Prev & Sufficiency 
Phil Drabble  BMBC, Youth Justice Service Manager 
Nicola Ennis Sheffield Children’s NHS Foundation Trust 
Jeremy Budd Barnsley CCG  
 

  Action 

1. Apologies 
Jess Jess Leech Barnsley College 

Catherine Egginton Headteacher, Wellgate Primary  

  

Children and Young People’s Trust Executive Group Meeting 
Thursday 14th October 2021 from 2pm 

Via Microsoft Teams  

Page 163

Item 12



2 

 

 

 

 

  Action 

Liz Leek   Barnsley College 
  

2. Feedback from the front line  
 
Colleagues shared feedback from front line: 
 
1. Adrian England shared feedback with regards to the Mental Health 

Partnership, the All-Age Strategy which has been redesigned has been 
presented at HWB for comments and consultation. It is working well and is 
firmly embedded.   
 

2. Jamie Wike shared feedback on the Children’s Covid vaccination 
programme which has started in schools. Thanks were expressed to 
everyone in particular the School vaccinator providers. It has been quite 
challenging with regards to receiving consent, take up and having anti-
vaccination groups outside schools. We are on track and will have further 
opportunities through second visits to schools and/or we can open up 
other vaccination sites. 
 

3. Mel John Ross acknowledged the SEND Ofsted & CQC inspection, Mel 
offered thanks to everyone who supported this process. The partnership 
was very well representative, feedback will be provided in due course.  

 

 

3. Identification of confidential reports and declarations of any conflicts of interest 
  
It was noted that item 6, 10, & 13 should be treated as confidential. 

There were no conflicts of interest declared.   
 

 
 

4. Minutes of the Trust Executive Group meeting held on 15 July 2021 
 
The minutes of the previous meeting were agreed as an accurate record after 
the following amendments were made:  

• Gerry Foster-Wilson to be added to apologies as she did not attend, 
Teresa Smith attended in place of Gerry. 

• Apologies to be added for Jayne Sivakumar. 
 

 
 
 

5. Action log / matters arising 
 

Updates recorded as per the action log.  
 

 

Keeping Children & Young People Safe 

6. Barnsley Safeguarding Children's Partnership Meeting held on 16 July & 24 
September 2021 Highlights - CONFIDENTIAL  (Bob Dyson) 
 
This item was confidential and is therefore not included in these 
minutes.  
 

 

7. 70 Strategies (Liz Gibson) 
 
Liz was welcomed to the meeting and presented an Introduction to the BMBC  
70 Strategies Resilience based Toolkit to members which helps to support 

 
 
 
 

Page 164



3 

 

 

 

 

  Action 

LAC and vulnerable children to develop resilience to bounce back particularly 
after prolonged school absences due to a variety of reasons. Background 
information was provided with regards to the development including the 
research with Education Psychologists and publication of the toolkit.  
 
It was highlighted that the toolkit is an easily accessible document which 
includes a one stop shop of evidence-based interventions into one easy to 
navigate document, it is fully interactive.  
 
An explanation of how to navigate the toolkit was provided, noting that there is 
also clear guidance for the professionals to act upon.  The resilience focus is 
linked to Dent and Cameron (2003). There are six areas of resilience. The 
circle of resilience is an assessment tool, examples were provided of this and 
the planning tool.    
 
This links to the termly personal education plan (Tpep) process. The toolkit is 
to be embedded into BMBC processes and training rolled out. It can be used 
with many groups of vulnerable children as a wider application.  
 
Next steps is to start rolling out training and supporting schools to develop the 
use of the toolkit. Going forward we will look at how we share good practice. 
The oversight will be via the Alliance board. Action: Liz/Dawn to share 
presentation with members.  
   
Questions/comments from members   
It was queried as to how this links with work re mental health support teams as 
the connections to mental health was not clear. It was noted that there are 
links to Mind, it was developed prior to pandemic but it can look at 
professionals in that service being a part of this, it doesn't detract from that 
work it compliments it. This has a dual purpose supporting young people and 
skilling up the workforce. The potential to make this work was noted, it needs 
to be kept simple. Action: Liz to meet with Dave Ramsay / Compass. It was 
suggested that Lauren Nixon could facilitate this with compass and other 
services as appropriate. It was stated that this is helpful in taking this forward.  

  
Liz was thanked for the excellent presentation, it was really good and clear, 
helpful strategies and tools with regards to young people’s wellbeing.   

  
It was suggested that it would be helpful for Trust to receive feedback in 12 
months including and case studies. Action: Add to Work programme for 12 
months time.  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Liz Gibson 
/Dawn 
Fitzpatrick 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Lauren 
Nixon/ Liz 
Gibson/Dave 
Ramsay/ 
Compass  
 
 
 
 
Work 
programme 
 

8. Children's Rights and Independent Visitors (Emma Baines/Julie Hammerton)  
 
Emma and Julie were welcomed to the meeting. It was noted that members 
have read the report. Julie provided a brief update with regards to the 
background and update of the key issues and messages which included:  

• A brief explanation of what both services offered noting that they are 
statutory duties  

• These services are delivered by Targeted Youth Service (TYS)  

• The reflection is longer than 12 months due to pandemic.  

• Both services have been affected by pandemic, with some advantages 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 165



4 

 

 

 

 

  Action 

due to ICT as volunteers thrived and could tap into other volunteers  

• Whilst receiving lower than expected referrals into the Children’s Rights 
Service, Independent Visitor Service is experiencing the opposite and is 
already at a point whereby demand has reached current capacity between 
young people and adult volunteers, this is a fluid situation, but the current 
status is that the maximum amount of matches available has been 
reached within the existing resource. 

• There are benefits to having the service in wider area  

• Children’s Rights Service, discussions can be raised at the Care 4 Us 
Council and may formulate part of the CiC Council workplan priorities  

• Individual visitors, referrals are now peaking with increasing demand for 
adult volunteers  

• Training continuously being reviewed and developed  
Questions and comments from members  

• It is interesting and has had a positive impact re volunteers  

• It was good to hear the cases and real evidence in practice and the 
difference it made.  

• Mel stated it was really great that it included feedback from young people 
and asked how many of most vulnerable in care, out of borough have an 
Independent Visitor.  

• This was really helpful with improvements made since it came in house.   
 

Action: Add to work prog for 12 months’ time. 
 
Action: Feedback to be provided to young people.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Work 
Programme 
 
Emma Baines / 
Julie 
Hammerton 
 

9. Youth Justice Plan (Claire Gilmore/Phil Drabble)  
 
Claire & Phil were welcomed to the meeting. Members were asked to note the 
contents of the Youth Justice annual plan and to provide feedback to support 
preparation for the 2022-23 plan.  Background information on the service was 
provided.  
process of self-evaluation and reflection has meant a significant shift in the 
language used within the report to ensure a consistent ‘child 1st’ and 
‘outcomes focused’ tone throughout  
The Plan document has a commitment to the six golden threads  
  
An update with regards to moving forward and how as a service it is in 
preparation for inspection, including collaboration with partners and young 
people. Planning for next year has begun and the service is keen to receive 
wider reflections from TEG members.   
  
Questions/Comments from members  

• This is a significant piece of work, which many of you will be involved in. 

• Explore linkages and subgroups, this is not referenced in the plan. Rachel 
Payling is the contact. 

• The work is dependent on services working together, multi-agency and 
interface around vulnerable young people, some could be EHE or 
struggling in school, please keep in mind.  

• Phil Drabble provided feedback from Wakefield, highlighting that it was 
expected for all partners to have knowledge of Youth Justice services. An 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 166



5 

 

 

 

 

  Action 

open invitation for services / teams to come and spend time with 
colleagues was issued to members.  

• The Trust to cascade and support the plan.   

• The plan went to BSCP, it was highlighted that the CYP Plan belongs to 
the Trust not BSCP.  

• The approach taken with the plan really focuses on qualitative and 
quantitative approach, real quality assurance, learning and self-reflection- 
really informing, really refreshing.  

 
Action: Any further comments to contact Phil Drabble to get behind this 
strategy and support preparation for next one. Action: TEG members 
 
Really great work.   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TEG 
Members 

Improving education, achievement and employability 

10. SEND Improvement Programme CONFIDENTIAL (Nina Sleight)  

This item was confidential and is therefore not included in these 
minutes.  
    

 

Improving Staff Skills to Deliver Quality Services 

11. Workforce Development Updates (Helen Wood) 

Helen was informed that the report could be taken as read. Helen provided 
members with an update on progress relating to workforce development noting 
the following:   

• There is a very wide range of multi-agency training available  

• New Post: Contextual Safeguarding Training Specialist funded for one 
year by Children’s Social Care and commenced in August 2021.  

 
Members were asked for feedback on the following:  

• What time of year members would like to receive this update. At present 
the update refers both to the completed previous financial year and the 
year to date?  

• On the content and the information that members would find useful. What 
are the priorities.  

  
Members commented that the report is really clear what has been delivered.   
Foster carer programme, Best start, pandemic, hidden harm were mentioned 
as well as there are questions in the SEND inspection re CPD, in which we can 
really respond to your invitation. Partnership engagement was highlighted and 
what impact this has had.  
 
Helen highlighted that the training programme is vast, but raised the question 
‘are we delivering the right things and how is that developing and supporting 
practice’?  We have a well-supported and trained workforce.  What can we do 
across the board?  
 
Evaluating impact and outcomes and requires joined up approach across the 
system.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 167



6 

 

 

 

 

  Action 

Bob stated it was credit to staff who have been delivering the training, adapting 
rapidly and increasing training offered. Action: Helen to feedback to Karen.  

  
Mel expressed thanks to colleagues.  

  
Workforce development subgroup  
Action: Circulate email to gather comments, thinking about priorities from your 
agencies, is there anything to be added? Comments back to Helen by end of 
November.  
 
Helen left the meeting.  
 
Item 13 discussed next.  

 
 
Helen Wood 
 
 
 
 
TEG 
Members  
 
 
 

Supporting children, young people and families to make healthy lifestyle choices 

12. Integrated Care System (ICS) Update (Jeremy Budd) 

Jeremy was welcomed to the meeting and provided an update on the ICS 
noting the following points:  

• It is currently making way through parliament, there are no real changes 
and it appears to be on track for April next year which is tight.  

• There has been lot more guidance released and still more is expected  

• ICS chair has been appointed (Pearse Butler)  

• It’s a Barnsley placed based development partnership, so it can make best 
decisions for Barnsley  

• ICS Chief Executive is to be announced this week. Once in place things 
will move faster. We are working closely with places and ICS re Statutory 
function.  

• Design team working to the Integrated Partnership group meet on monthly 
basis  

• Key thing that is really clear, is that Barnsley has a clear and consistent 
view of what it wants putting into manifesto for Barnsley.   

• There will be lots of changes with regards to guidance and new faces into 
roles.   

• The CCG will lift and shift to ICS from 1st April 2022, beyond that there will 
be changes. It will look at equality of access for South Yorkshire.   

  
Questions/comments from members  
Confirmation re structure was sought, Jeremy provided clarity, but noted that 
there will still be changes, but won’t be complicated. The language is 
interchangeable.  
  
Members noted that this has been helpful, and asked Jeremy to come back to 
a future meeting when timing is suitable. Action: Dawn to check suitable time 
with Jeremy and add to work programme.  
 

Item 14 discussed next.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Jeremy 
Budd/ Dawn 
Fitzpatrick/ 
work 
programme 
 
 

13. CYP Transformation Programme and introduction CONFIDENTIAL (Nicola 
Ennis) 

This item was confidential and is therefore not included in these 
minutes. 

 

Page 168



7 

 

 

 

 

  Action 

  

14. Best Start Partnership – ToRs (Alicia Marcroft) 

Alicia provided an update highlighting the background of the Best Start 
Partnership (BSP), which morphed from the CYP Bronze Group established 
due to the Covid pandemic. The BSP commenced in December 2020 as a 
good vehicle to drive the objectives.  

Current sub-groups of the BSP are:  

• Maternal and Infant Feeding Implementer Group  

• Safe Sleep & ICON Implementer Group 

• Children and Young People’s Emotional Health and Wellbeing  
 

It was noted that the Terms of reference have been revised. TEG members 
were asked to:   

• approve the Best Start Partnership as a subgroup to TEG to support the 
delivery of the Child and Maternal Health element of the Health and Care 
Plan.  

• Review and comment on the amended Terms of Reference and 
Membership and endorse the objectives of the group.  

• To advise on reporting mechanisms of BSP into TEG i.e., standard update 
agenda item, TEG to receive minutes of BSP.  

 
It was suggested that Nicola Ennis could attend the BSP to provide a link.   
 
Comments on TORS and membership included: 

• Adrian highlighted that Mark Smith is representing Healthwatch and this 
would be a conflict of interest.   

• There is a significant gap re integrated delivery re maternity / post-natal  

• One area of development identified re engagement would be maternity 
services and Head of Midwifery involvement. It is a borough initiative, so it 
is important we have a rep from each organisation.  

• A clear ask is that the right organisations are engaging, and we need to 
track absence.   

• Follow up conversations to take place outside this group, Mel and Nina 
both offered their support with regards to this.  
  

Flowchart was shared.  
Action:  Best Start Partnership Terms of Reference and the Structure 
document to be circulated urgently for review and feedback /comments with a 
2 week turn round, comments back to Alicia.   

  
Action: add to work programme as a standard agenda item.  
 
Silence from members was noted and taken as agreement.   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Alicia Marcroft/ 
Dawn 
Fitzpatrick/ 
TEG members  
 
Work 
programme 

15. Public Health General Update (Alicia Marcroft)  

Alicia presented an update with regards to public health work undertaken 
within the last 12 months, which is included in the one report.  The highlights 
noted were:  

• Sudden Unexpected Deaths in Infancy (SUDI) analysis found that 100% of 
babies who died lived in a home where one or both parents smoked. 
Priorities to include supporting an incentives based smoking cessation 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 169



8 

 

 

 

 

  Action 

programme to help families stop smoking.  

• Breast feeding is continuing to make progress  

• Oral health, toothbrushing clubs were stopped due to pandemic. Flexible 
commissioning process with Barnsley Dental practices to increase access 
with an emphasis on prevention is in progress.  

• Emotional health & wellbeing (EHWB), detailed mapping exercise was 
completed in March 2021, recommendations were made and are included 
in the CYP EHWB Improvement Plan.  Referrals into the Eating Disorder 
pathway have seen a particularly steep rise. The CYP Emotional Health 
and Wellbeing Lead (Lauren Nixon) sits on the ICS CY, SPA  

• Healthy weight, the National Child Measurement Programme (NCMP) will 
be recommencing this academic year, it didn't take place last year due to 
Covid.  

• Additionally, looking at SHINE funding, Work to be completed to identify 5 
schools to take place.  

• Best Start Partnership need to ensure we acquire some of the funding 
Nicola mentioned.   

• Teenage pregnancy review has now finished, this will be refreshing and 
self-assessment to be completed that will feed in via BSP and action plan  

• Brief update re Food, PHSE portal and individual priorities for school was 
provided.   
  

Questions/comments from members   

• It’s a very detailed report  

• Adrian suggested that an area that requires more partnership working is 
the eating disorder priority and oral health which is going to Overview & 
Scrutiny, mainly re access.  

• Gerry mentioned opportunities with regards to SHINE, noting some areas 
are stronger than other in terms of SHINE, it is open to schools and is a 
12-week programme re healthy weight, it is broader, a whole school 
system approach.   

 
Mel enquired if there is more in terms of supporting Alicia to mitigate against 
some of the risks highlighted in the report, such as engagement, what can you 
do as part of your organisation re help and prevention?  
 

It was proposed that Barnsley Alliance need to be sighted on this paper. 
Action: Alicia/Barnsley Alliance.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Alicia 
Marcroft / 
Barnsley 
Alliance 
 

Standard Agenda items  

16. TEG Work Programme Review (Dawn Fitzpatrick)  
 
Work programme to be updated with any items from today’s meeting.  
Items to be identified if ‘for information’ or ‘consent’ 
 

 

 Any Other Urgent Business  
 
No other business was raised.  
 

 

 Date and time of next meeting: 2 December 2021   

Page 170



9 

 

 

 

 

  Action 

 
Proposed agenda items for next meeting on 2 December 2021 

• Barnsley Safeguarding Children's Partnership (BSCP) minutes  

• Continuous Service Improvement Framework & Plan  

• TEG Work Programme  

• Highlight Report from ECG to TEG  

• CYP&F Plan – review of 2019-22 Plan outcomes  

• Domestic Violence Update  

• Carers Strategy  

• SEND Improvement Programme  

• SEND Strategy  

• SEND Coproduction update  

• DFE – Early Outcome SCLN Framework  

• Transport Strategy & Active Travel updates  

• CIC CAMHS Pathway Update  

• Anti Bullying Charter Update on Progress  

• Barnsley Health & Wellbeing Strategy 
 

 

Future TEG meetings 2022 - held quarterly. 

 
Date of meeting  Time Venue Deadline dates for 

reports  

Thursday  
17th February 2022 
 

14.00 – 17.00 Microsoft teams  Tuesday 8th February 
2022 

Thursday  
9th June 2022 

14.00 – 17.00 Microsoft teams  Tuesday 31st May 2022 

Thursday  
15th September 2022  

14.00 – 17.00 Microsoft teams  Tuesday 6th September 
2022 

Thursday  
1st December 2022 

14.00 – 17.00 Microsoft teams  Tuesday 22nd November 
2022 

 

 

Page 171



This page is intentionally left blank



  

1 
 

 

Minutes of the Safer Barnsley Partnership Board 
Monday 21st June 2021, 11am to 1pm, via Microsoft Teams 

 

ATTENDANCE 

Organisation Name Position 

SYP 
(Co-Chair) 

Cherie Buttle  Acting Barnsley District Commander,  
South Yorkshire Police 

BMBC  
(Co-Chair) 

Wendy Lowder Executive Director,  
Adults & Communities Directorate 

BMBC  
 

Paul Brannan Head of Safer Barnsley,  
Safer Stronger Healthier Communities 

BMBC 
Cabinet Spokesperson 

Cllr Jenny Platts Cabinet Spokesperson for 
Communities 

BMBC 
Adult’s Care  

Kwai Mo 
 

Head of Service, Mental Health & 
Disability,  Communities Directorate 

BMBC 
Children’s Care 

Jonathan Banwell Head of Children in Care Services, 
People Directorate 

BMBC 
Early Start  

Nina Sleight  
 

Service Director, Education, Early Start 
& Prevention, People Directorate 

Police & Crime Panel 
 

Cllr Anita 
Cherryholme 
 

Police & Crime Panel representative 

BMBC 
Public Health  

Garreth Robinson Public Health Practitioner 

Fire & Rescue Service 
 

Rob Holmes Barnsley District Manager, South 
Yorkshire Fire & Rescue Service 

National Probation Service 
 

Nick Hamilton-
Rudd 
 

Head of Probation, Sheffield & 
Barnsley 

NHS Barnsley CCG 
 

Martine Tune  
 

Deputy Chief Nurse, Barnsley Clinical 
Commissioning Group 

Neighbourhood Watch / 
Safer Communities Forum 

John Hallows  Neighbourhood Watch/Safer 
Communities Forum Representative 

Berneslai Homes Kat Allott-Stevens Head of Estate Services, Berneslai 
Homes 

Police Crime Commissioner  Marie Carroll Partnerships & Commissioning 
Manager, OPCC 

Mental Health Service 
(SWYT) 

Jill Jinks Business Unit Manager for Specialist 
Mental Health 

Barnsley CVS John Marshall Chief Executive, Barnsley Community & 
Voluntary Services 

BMBC 
Strategy & Governance 

Shiv Bhurtun Strategic Governance Partnership & 
Transformation Manager 

In attendance 

Page 173

Item 13



  

2 
 

SYP (observing) James Abdy Barnsley District Commander 

BMBC Community Safety Heather 
Featherstone 

Victim & Witness Support Officer 

CTR Sub Group Priority Leads Andy Berriman Head of Safer Barnsley, BMBC 
Chief Inspector, SYP 

BMBC Communications & 
Marketing 

Alison Dixon 
Megan Howlett 

Comms Manager, Communities 
Comms Officer, Communities 

BMBC Safer Communities Ray Powell Cohesion & Prevent Officer 

BMBC Minute Taker Tracey Binks Business Support Officer 

Apologies 

Berneslai Homes Dave Fullen Director of Customer & Estate Services, 
Berneslai Homes 

BMBC  
 

Phil 
Hollingsworth 

Service Director,  
Safer Stronger Healthier Communities 

Fire & Rescue Authority Cllr Robert Frost CSP Representative, South Yorkshire 
Fire & Rescue Authority 

BMBC 
Adult’s Care  

Julie Chapman Service Director, Adults Social Care & 
Wellbeing,  Communities Directorate 

BMBC  
Children’s Care 

Deborah Mercer Service Director, Children’s Social Care 
& Safeguarding, People Directorate 

BMBC 
Public Health  

Carrie Abbott Public Health Service Director 

Police Crime Commissioner  Erika Redfearn Head of Governance, South Yorkshire 
Police & Crime Commissioner 

Criminal Justice Board Linda Mayhew Business Manager, South Yorkshire 
Criminal Justice Board 

 

ACTIONS 

Item Action Responsible Deadline 

2.1 Remaining Board members to contact saferb-
strongerc@barnsley.gov.uk with their nominated deputy for 
the Board (name, job title and email address). 

Members 
who have not 
yet identified 
a deputy 

13/09/2021 

3.1 Lived Experience: Send refreshed victims charter to John 
Hallows before the next Neighbourhood Watch meeting. 

Paul Brannan 28/06/2021 

4.1 Performance Update: Arrange for SYP to contact Garreth 
Robinson around police officers linking-in with Night 
Marshalls and Pastors. 

Cherie Buttle 13/09/2021 

4.2 Performance Update: Contact Shiv Bhurtun to schedule an 
update on the impact of the VRU action plan at a future 
Board meeting. 

Paul Brannan 13/09/2021 

4.3 Performance (Fly-tipping issue): Arrange feed-in of the 
littering strategy when appropriate (sub groups/PADG). 

Phil 
Hollingsworth 

When 
appropriate 

5.1 CTR Refreshed Strategy: Propose the South Yorkshire 
County Forum support/fund a one-stop South Yorkshire 
website against hate crime and feed back at the next SBP 
Board. 

Marie Carroll 13/09/2021 

Page 174

mailto:saferb-strongerc@barnsley.gov.uk
mailto:saferb-strongerc@barnsley.gov.uk


  

3 
 

8.1 New Probation Service: Invite Julie Odusanya to provide an 
update at a future meeting, after she has commenced post. 

Tracey Binks 13/09/2021 

9.1 House Fires: Following technical issues, bring update to next 
meeting, with clarification around the ask from the SBP 
Board and areas of specific collaboration. 

Rob Holmes 30/08/2021 

 
MINUTES 

1 Apologies & Introductions 

 

The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting and apologies were received as above.  
 
Chief Superintendent Abdy was introduced as the new Board Co-Chair going forward. 
  

2 Minutes & Actions from previous meeting (8th March) 

 

The minutes of the previous meeting were agreed as accurate and actions completed, with 
the following updates; 
 
6.1 Safer Roads: Hit & Runs and Organised Car Meets 
Both issues were reviewed by the Performance & Delivery Group and Paul Brannan is looking 
into car meets further, which will be reported in future performance reports.  Action 
discharged. 
 
9.1 SBP Terms of Reference: Deputies 
The Chair reminded members who have not yet done so, to provide a suitable deputy to 
attend SBP Board meetings in their absence. 
ACTION 2.1: Remaining Board members to contact saferb-strongerc@barnsley.gov.uk 
  with their nominated deputy for the Board (name, job title and email  
  address) 
 

3 Lived Experience Case Study: Victim & Witness Support 

  
Heather Featherstone described a customer’s experience of anti social behaviour (ASB) next 
to her home and shared the feedback received by the service after tackling the issue and 
supporting the customer. 
 
Key points were: 

• Process is to approach with empathy and concern. 

• Service are contactable throughout the case. 

• Advice and support are consistent. 

• Victim should never feel they are a nuisance and they should see a reduction in the 
ASB, so they can feel safer and more resilient.   

 
Q&A 
 
Paul Brannan added that Barnsley are unique in their direct offer to victims of ASB and these 
interventions change lives.   
 

Page 175

mailto:saferb-strongerc@barnsley.gov.uk


  

4 
 

Marie Carroll offered to form a link with South Yorkshire Police’s victim support service.  
Heather responded that there are good relationships in place with this charity to ensure no 
confusing overlap. 
 
John Hallows will contact Heather regarding the Neighbourhood Watch CCTV installations 
taking place.  
 
Paul Brannan offered to share the refreshed victims charter with Neighbourhood Watch. 
ACTION 3.1: Paul Brannan to send refreshed victims charter to John Hallows before the 
  next Neighbourhood Watch meeting on the 28th June.  
 

4 Performance Update Q4 2020/21 

 

 
The Chair introduced the report and highlighted: 

• Crime & ASB Overview: Seeing an upward trend which is thought to be a result of 
COVID restrictions being lifted and expected to continue in the summer months. 

• Burglaries: The implemented plan appears to be working, with a reduction in 
offences since last quarter. 

• Violence Reduction Unit (VRU): Several pieces of work are taking place around the 
night-time economy, now that hospitality venues are re-opening. 

• Domestic Abuse: Training is in progress to upskill the workforce and a new public-
facing online reporting platform has been introduced. 

• Homelessness: Early interventions have been successful in prevention and rough 
sleeper numbers continue to fall. 

• ASB: Mounting concern around off-road bikes which, despite increased resources, is 
difficult to prevent.  Expecting increase of ASB in town centre with reopening of 
retail.   

 
Q&A 
 
Garreth Robinson updated that the Night Marshalls and Pastors are now patrolling each 
weekend.  The Chair would like to see SYP officers linking-in at the start and end of shifts. 
ACTION 4.1: Cherie Buttle to arrange for SYP to contact Garreth Robinson around police 
  officers linking-in with Night Marshalls and Pastors 
 
There was a discussion around the usefulness of regular updates around the VRU plan, which 
will continue in the quarterly performance reports.  Wendy Lowder also requested a specific 
update around impact, given the change of pace due to COVID restrictions.   
ACTION 4.2: Paul Brannan to contact Shiv Bhurtun to schedule an update on the impact 
  of the VRU action plan at a future Board meeting 
 
Wendy Lowder advised that the Place directorate are currently working on a littering 
strategy, which should link-in to the fly tipping issues. 
ACTION 4.3: Phil Hollingsworth to arrange feed-in of the littering strategy when  
  appropriate (sub groups/PADG) 
 
Garreth Robinson requested support for rejection of a licensing application for premises in a 
high drug and alcohol offending area and colleagues provided suggestions. 

Page 176



  

5 
 

 

5 CTR Refreshed Strategy/Action Plan 

 

 
Andy Berriman introduced a report about the refreshed Community Tolerance & Respect 
(CTR) Sub Group and shared a presentation, which will be circulated with the minutes.   
 
Key activities include: 

• Working with community groups and identifying “Champions”. 

• Training and monitoring third party reporting centres and Silver Prevent/referrals. 

• Exploring a dedicated website for hate crime, such as this example; 
https://www.hatehurts.co.uk/  

• Challenging online behaviour and developing tools to dispel myths. 

• Sharing resources and organising events. 
 
Next steps: 

• Referral levels may fall as COVID restrictions are lifted. 

• BMBC has a robust comms strategy. 

• Further updates to follow around implementation of training. 

• Anti-racism football event Saturday 26th June. 
 
2020/21 Quarter 4 Performance: 

• Outcomes in Barnsley are higher than the rest of South Yorkshire and it is hoped this 
success can assist across the rest of the Force. 

• Working to improve resolutions and help people understand what effect they are 
having on victims. 

 
Q&A 
 
Wendy Lowder advised that the contents of this presentation will feed-in to upcoming 
inequalities discussions and supported the idea of a one-stop hate crime website.  Marie 
Carroll agreed that this would be a good proposition for the South Yorkshire County Forum. 
 
ACTION 5.1: Marie Carroll to propose the South Yorkshire County Forum support/fund a 
  one-stop South Yorkshire website against hate crime and feed back at the 
  next SBP Board 
 

6 Engagement (methodology & approach) and Communications 

 

 
Alison Dixon and Megan Howlett introduced a presentation in response to historic Board 
discussions around public perceptions of safety. 
 
Research: 

• Perception is personal to each individual, so difficult to unpick. 

• Instead, looked at work taking place and how this feeds into the bigger picture.   

• JSIA results and Town Centre workshops have provided feedback on negative 
impacts and provided target messages which could be given out by BMBC. 

 
Approach: 

Page 177

https://www.hatehurts.co.uk/


  

6 
 

• Tailor to original research, but be proactive about current trends/issues. 

• Challenge articles on other group platforms via the council’s webpage. 

• Share stories to ensure people don’t just hear one side. 
 
Key findings: 

• The internal language we use to describe people filters down to the community. 

• Talking about what’s being done to help individuals with problems can stop them 
being seen as a nuisance or entertainment. 

• Comms messages have helped to challenge misunderstanding about the Warden 
role.   

 
Outcomes: 

• Perception of safety can shift if we communicate positives to outweigh individual 
negative comments. 

• Instead of criticising what’s not working, go together with what needs doing. 

• Engage with our staff. 

• Build empathy. 
 
Q&A 
 
Paul Brannan advised that mystery shopper research was recently carried out and the 
outcome was that almost all participants felt safe/comfortable in Barnsley. 
 

7 Prevent Annual Update & Counter Terrorism Local Profile 

 

 
Ray Powell presented a report, which is confidential outside of this partnership. 
 
Key points were: 

• Barnsley’s risk position has increased nationally, but this reflects the work of the 
partnership in raising the profile. 

• The area’s threat level has been reduced. 

• COVID restrictions contributed to increased risk in online radicalisation.  
 
Ray described current activities taking place and noted that training has been well received, 
with more being organised.  The formal name of the Yorkshire mentoring project has been 
agreed as “Barnsley Rooted Communities”.   
 
Ray outlined the delivery plan priorities for 2020/21, following analysis within the Counter 
Terrorism Local Profile (CTLP) assessment, as well as local experience. 
 
Q&A 
 
Nina Sleight advised that the Early Help Assessment Advisor role has now come back in-
house and this may be an opportunity to look closely at identifying gaps.  Also, Nina would 
like to work with Ray around children that are electively home educated.   

Page 178



  

7 
 

Wendy Lowder suggested link-in to the Mental Health Partnership via Diane Lee, as they are 
developing the All Age Mental Health Strategy. 

Paul Brannan advised that Government are currently consulting on making the Protect pillar 
a statutory requirement of partners.  In-part this has been informed by the findings of the 
Manchester Arena bombing.   
 

8 Update on Probation Service Reform  

 

 
Nick Hamilton-Rudd gave a verbal update on the unified model of probation being 
implemented over the next 3 years, as well as providing assurance around services during 
the current transition period.   
 
Key points were: 

• Community Rehabilitation Company contracts will end on Friday 25th June. 

• All employment will be transferred into the “new probation service”. 

• Case management and interventions become the responsibility of the public sector.   

• Barnsley and Rotherham will be combined and under governance arrangements as 
part of the Yorkshire & Humber region. 

• Approach will be driven by the Ministry of Justice and more focussed from a 
community safety perspective.   

• Julie Odusanya will commence as Head of the Barnsley and Rotherham Probation 
Delivery Unit on the 28th June (julie.odusanya@justice.gov.uk). 

• Community services will still be on offer and a dynamic framework will be used to 
commission contract providers.   

• Operationally, nothing will change. 

• There will be a lot of internal transition, but focus will be maintained on partnership 
and delivery commitments, with improvements to process expected. 

• There has been a national decision to change the language used and people being 
supervised will be referred to as “people on probation” (offending is only one part of 
behaviour).  
 

Nick advised there was a published service operating model available.  Key documents and 
executive summaries can be found here: 
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/strengthening-probation-building-confidence 
 
Q&A 
 
The Chair would like to see an update at a future meeting, and this is captured on the 
Board’s Forward Plan. 
 
ACTION 8.1: Tracey Binks to invite Julie Odusanya to provide an update at a future  
  meeting, after she has commenced post 
 

9 House Fire Priorities 

  

Page 179

mailto:julie.odusanya@justice.gov.uk
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/strengthening-probation-building-confidence


  

8 
 

Rob Holmes has shared a report and presentation within the Board’s papers pack, but due to 
technical issues was unable to present at today’s meeting. 
 
The following written summary was provided: 

• House fires increased slightly during lock down. 

• Confident this will reduce again once community work re-starts. 

• Ask from partners working in the community is for referrals for home safety checks 
for identified vulnerable people. 

 
ACTION 9.1: Rob Holmes to bring his update to the next meeting, with clarification  
  around the ask from the SBP Board and areas of specific collaboration 

10 Encompass 

 

 
The Chair presented a briefing report and advised that Operation Encompass had been 
successfully implemented, with no identified issues.  The Chair encouraged members to read 
the report and highlighted that the next step would be to be to include nursery children 
from September 2021. 
 

11 SBP Risk Register 

 

 
Shiv Bhurtun presented the BMBC Risk Register document and this was agreed by the Board.  
This will now be uploaded to the BMBC system and monitored at the quarterly Performance 
& Delivery Group meetings.  
 

12 Forward Plan    

 

 
Shiv Bhurtun presented the Board’s current Forward Plan and asked for contributions. 
 
Wendy Lowder suggested postponing the next update on the Probation Service reform. 
 

13 Any other business 

 

 
The Chair informed the group that BMBC’s Anti Social Behaviour Policy is currently being 
reviewed and that a draft would be circulated for comments.  Members are asked to 
contribute directly to Mark Giles and the final policy will be presented at the next meeting.   
 
Circulated for info;  

• Link to the refreshed SBP Annual plan 2021-22; 
https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/media/18277/safer-barnsley-partnership-plan-2021.pdf  

 

 
Future meetings: Monday 13th September 2021, 2:15 to 4:15, Microsoft Teams 
   Monday 20th December 2021, 10am to 12pm, Microsoft Teams 

 

Page 180

https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/media/18277/safer-barnsley-partnership-plan-2021.pdf


  

1 
 

 

 

Stronger Communities Partnership Board Meeting 

Thursday 3rd June 2021 

14:00pm-16:00pm  

Westgate Plaza Level 3 Boardroom 

Minutes 

 

Member Organisation/Service Attended Apologies Deputy 

Board Members 

Councillor Chris Lamb (CL) Elected Member/Chair 
– BMBC 

x   

Councillor Jenny Platts (JP) Elected Member – 
BMBC 

X   

Councillor Brenda Eastwood (BE)  Elected Member – 
BMBC 

X   

Phil Hollingsworth (PH) Service Director, Safer, 
Stronger, Healthier 
Communities – BMBC 

x   

Jayne Hellowell (JH) Chair of Early Help 
Adults sub-group, 
Head of 
Commissioning and 
Healthier 
Communities – BMBC 

x   

Wendy Lowder (WL) Executive Director 
Communities 

 x  

Jane Holliday (JH) CEO – Age UK x   

Tara Ramsden (TR) Third Sector Dementia 
Alliance Chair - Making 
Space 

 x  

John Marshall (JM) Chief Executive – 
Barnsley CVS 

x   

Carrie Abbot (CA) Service Director Public 
Health and Regulation 
– BMBC 

 X Diane Lee 
(DL) 

Rob Holmes (RH) Fire and Rescue 
Services - South 
Yorkshire Fire and 
Rescue 

 x  

Julie Chapman (JC) Service Director, 
Adults Social Care & 
Wellbeing, People 
Directorate - BMBC 

 x  

Dave Fullen (DF) Director of Customer X   

Page 181

Item 14



  

2 
 

and Estate Services – 
Berneslai Homes 

Gill Stansfield (GS) Deputy Director of 
Operations - SWYFT 

 x  

Jill Jinks (JJ) Community Health 
Services – SWYFT  

X   

Niall O’Reilly (NO) HWBB Provider Forum 
– SYHA 

X   

Jamie Wike (JW) BCCG – Barnsley CCG X   

Board Support 

Shiv Bhurtun (SB) Strategic Governance 
Partnership and 
Transformation 
Manager – BMBC 

X   

Helen Ibbotson (HI)  Business Support – 
BMBC 

X   

Attendees 

Faith Ridgwick (FR) 2030 Lead Officer, 
Organisation and 
Workforce 
Improvement – BMBC  

X   

Ben Brannan (BB) Senior Public Health 
Officer, Public Health 
– BMBC 

x   

 

 

 Action Summary 

Item Action Responsible Officer 

2 SB/HI to review agreed actions from 20.02.2020 and 
close or move forward where appropriate.  

 

Shiv Bhurtun/Helen Ibbotson  

6 HI to document that MHP Strategy on the Early Help 
Adults forward plan.   

Helen Ibbotson  

6 SB to link in with BB in respect of the digital agenda.  Shiv Bhurtun 

7 SB/HI to work on the forward plan and distribute 
items as appropriate. 

Shiv Bhurtun/Helen Ibbotson 

 

1. Apologies and Introductions 

 The chair welcomed everyone to the meeting, introductions were made, and apologies noted 
as above.  

 

2. Minutes and actions from previous meeting (20.02.2020) 

 The chair acknowledged that due to the emergency response in respect of the pandemic the 
Stronger Communities Partnership Board (SCPB) had been stood down following the 
20.02.2020 meeting.  
 
The chair acknowledged the amount of time which had lapsed and queried whether actions 
remained relevant.  
 

Page 182



  

3 
 

There was an agreement that actions from 20.02.2020 would be reviewed outside of this 
meeting with a view to close where appropriate.  
 
ACTION: SB/HI to review agreed actions from 20.02.2020 and close or move forward where 
appropriate.  

 

3. The PARTNERSHIP going forward  

 The Chair: 
 

• Noted how the board had evolved over time since its establishment when it scope 
included early help across all age groups. The chair highlighted that there is overall 
consensus and value for children’s element of the SCPB scope to be fully overseen 
through the children’s governance structure thus improving efficiency and effective even 
more.  

• Referred to the planned restructuring of the NHS which was due to take place over the 
next 12/18months and noted the importance of the board running alongside this 
development.  

• Acknowledged and reflected on the challenges over the past 18 months due to the 
pandemic and highlighted how partnership working had shown real resilience with 
reference to the positive continuation of many activities during this period.  

 

• Praised the partnership and it members and supporting teams for the work behind the 
scene that helps to drive key actions forward and make a difference to the communities.  

 
3.1   SCP PRESENTATION: 
 
PH presented a summary of the Board’s journey to date and it’s strategic direction of travel 
as well as key emerging priorities within the context of the ongoing pandemic and various 
recovery plans.     
 
There was agreement that the Board’s input as system leaders remained important. 
 
PH proposed that there is now opportunities to re-establish key areas of work as well as time 
to refocus the Board’s agenda as a priority.  

 
The chair thanked PH for his presentation, and again acknowledged the significant amount of 
work which has continued during the pandemic.  

 
Change of Chair person   
 
The Chair thanked PH for the presentation and acknowledged that from a Barnsley Council 
governance perspective the suggested SCP priority reflected the Adults and Communities 
portfolio. Taking this into account Chair confirmed that having led the partnership to date 
with significant achievements as a team and indeed following discussion with Cllr JP this was 
the right time to pass over the chairing role to Cllr JP.  With Cllr JP having oversight of the 
Adults agenda acknowledged this to be timely as the SCP provides a clear focus and home for 
Adults in respect of Early Help and Prevention. 
Cllr Jenny Platts accepted the Chairing role and confirmed the deputy to be Cllr Brenda 
Eastwood to undertake any required tasks in JP’s absence.  
 
Cllr CL: 

• thanked attendees for their support during his time as chair, specifically acknowledging 

Page 183



  

4 
 

the work of DF, JM and GS as well as support from PH and SB.  

• welcomed JP as the new chair of the SCPB.  
 
Cllr JP thanked Cllr CL for doing a fantastic job as chair of the SCPB.  

 
JP will be referred to as chair from this point in the minutes.  

4.  ToR including membership list for sign off  
 

 The proposed ToR’s was considered and agreed by the board.  

 
CL referred to the new primary care focussed NHS and queried whether it was too early to be 
linking the board in to this work. PH confirmed that there would be a requirement for the 
board to link in and added that it was more time was needed for the NHS to establish itself 
fully in its new way of working. JM confirmed that Barnsley’s health-based plan remained in 
its early stages and that there would be a clear alignment to this board.  JM further 
acknowledged partners members of this Board confirmed that there was the appropriate 
representation.  

 

5. Barnsley 2030 

 FR - (Barnsley 2030 Lead Officer within Business Improvement) provided a brief journey and 
current position in respect of the B2030 plan through a short presentation.  
 
FR  
1. Highlighted the Barnsley 2030 Launch Event on the 22nd June 2021 and encouraged 

board members to attend.  
 
2. Reflected the value of the board linking in to the 2030 outcomes.  

 
3. Added that from discussions with SB it was envisaged that the SCPB would have informal 

links into Barnsley 2030 whereby some of the board’s achievements are reported as case 
studies.  

 
The chair and PH agreed and noted the importance of the board getting back to basics with 
engagement work and ensuring communities are engaged in the delivery of the B2030 vision.  
 
PH suggested strategic alignment to the Barnsley 2030 plan which would include the 
following: - 

- Age Friendly Barnsley MBC Dementia Support 
- Poverty and Food agenda  
- Financial Resilience  
- Armed Forces Covenant  
- Support for Carers  
- Stronger Communities Service  
- Customer Engagement  

 
DV also suggested a cross-cutting piece of work for the partnership with regards to lessons 
learnt in respect of Covid.  PH agreed with this comment.  
 
The Chair thanked FR for her input.  
 
 
 

Page 184



  

5 
 

6. Mental Health Partnership   

 BB –(Senior Public Health Officer) provided a brief on the new  Mental Health Partnership 
(MHP) operating since  January 2021. The MHP is designed to promote collaborative working 
to improve mental health across Barnsley, through all age groups.  
 
BB shared the current key priorities. New priorities will be agreed through the borough’s 
mental health strategy currently under development.   
 
BB discussed the key opportunity for the board to connect with the mental health 
partnership included prevention and the dementia pathway.  
 
JHe requested that the MHP Strategy is shared through the Early Help Adults sub-group prior 
to escalation to the board.  
 
ACTION: HI to document that MHP Strategy on the Early Help Adults forward plan.   
 
JHe thanked BB for his presentation and noted her improved understanding of the work 
undertaken behind the scenes.  
JHe referred to the digital agenda and discussed that a report had recently been submitted 
to DMT in respect of supporting older people in this area. Feedback from DMT had 
highlighted the importance of this initiative also including further groups such as learning 
and physical difficulties as well as mental health. There was an agreement that this should be 
explored further in respect of the MHP.  
 
ACTION: SB to link in with BB in respect of the digital agenda.  
 
BE queried the requirements in respect of anger management and how this linked in to the 
work of the MHP. DL acknowledged this comment and noted issues in respect of anger 
management. DL went on to discuss that anger management wasn’t looked at in isolation as 
it was felt it manifested itself across the mental health work stream.  
 
CL noted how clearly mental health challenges had been presented through BB’s 
presentation. CL referred to work required in respect of covid recovery. CL went on to 
discuss how the pandemic had highlighted social isolation on a broader scale than what had 
ever been envisaged. Historically social isolation has been looked at from an elderly person’s 
perspective, CL noted how the pandemic had also highlighted further groups in particularly 
middle-aged men who live alone with no family. BB acknowledged these comments and 
confirmed that he was happy to take this back to the MHP.  
 
NO noted the employment gap in relation to mental health and queried whether this work 
could link with SWYFT. DL acknowledged this comment.  
 
JW noted the positive timing of the establishment of the MHP, mental health has been a 
priority for many years, the MHP would now bring this together and allow more structured 
work to be undertaken. JW went on to discuss that to date he didn’t believe the true impact 
of covid had been felt by mental health services, if additional numbers received by services 
can be picked up by community services at an early help level it will reduce the impact on 
secondary care. JJ agreed with JW’s comments.  
 
PH noted that the breadth of the priorities justified the need for a dedicated MHP and 
although in its infancy it has already proven its worth.  
 

Page 185



  

6 
 

BB thanked the board for their time.  
 

7.  Forward Plan  

 SB briefed members on the proposed forward plan and upcoming items for next meeting.  
 
SB clarified that there were 8 proposed items for the next board 19.08.2021. Chair 
recommended that this is reviewed, and sufficient time is enabled for board members to 
debate and discuss items as compared to simply receiving high number of briefings.    All 
members agreed. 
 
SB requested that members continue to propose items and highlighted that these would be 
scheduled in as appropriate.  
 
JHe supported this request and recommended that all items come through the Early Help 
Adult’s sub-group prior to the board which would help further enhance the debate 
/discussion at Board level. JHe noted the importance of all partners being involved on the 
agenda including those outside of the local authority to drive respective areas of work. PH 
discussed that he felt items coming through to the board should intertwine impacts of covid.  
 
ACTION: SB/HI to work on the forward plan and distribute items as appropriate.  

8. Any Other Business  

 No items.  

9. Future Meetings  

 Thursday 19th August 2021, 14.00 – 16.00, Microsoft Teams  
Thursday 11th November 2021, 14.00 – 16.00, Microsoft Teams  

 

Page 186



  

1 
 

 

 

Stronger Communities Partnership Board Meeting 

Thursday 19th August 2021 

14:00pm-16:00pm  

Teams  

Minutes 

 

Member Organisation/Service Attended Apologies Deputy 

Board Members 

Councillor Jenny Platts (JP) Elected Member – 
BMBC 

X   

Councillor Brenda Eastwood (BE)  Elected Member – 
BMBC 

X   

Phil Hollingsworth (PH) Service Director, Safer, 
Stronger, Healthier 
Communities – BMBC 

X   

Jayne Hellowell (JH) Chair of Early Help 
Adults sub-group, 
Head of 
Commissioning and 
Healthier 
Communities – BMBC 

X   

Wendy Lowder (WL) Executive Director 
Communities 

X   

Jane Holliday (JHO) CEO – Age UK X   

Tara Ramsden (TR) Third Sector Dementia 
Alliance Chair - Making 
Space 

 X  

John Marshall (JM) Chief Executive – 
Barnsley CVS 

 X  

Carrie Abbot (CA) Service Director Public 
Health and Regulation 
– BMBC 

 X Garreth 
Robinson 

(GR) 

Rob Holmes (RH) Fire and Rescue 
Services - South 
Yorkshire Fire and 
Rescue 

 X  

Julie Chapman (JC) Service Director, 
Adults Social Care & 
Wellbeing, People 
Directorate - BMBC 

 X Amanda 
Bannister 

(AB) 

Dave Fullen (DF) Director of Customer 
and Estate Services – 
Berneslai Homes 

X   

Gill Stansfield (GS) Deputy Director of 
Operations - SWYFT 

 X  

Page 187



  

2 
 

Jill Jinks (JJ) Community Health 
Services – SWYFT  

X   

Niall O’Reilly (NO) HWBB Provider Forum 
– SYHA 

X   

Jamie Wike (JW) BCCG – Barnsley CCG  X  

Garreth Robinson  Public Health 
Practitioner - BMBC 

X    

Amanda Bannister (AB) Principal Social 
Worker - BMBC 

X   

Board Support 

Shiv Bhurtun (SB) Strategic Governance 
Partnership and 
Transformation 
Manager – BMBC 

X   

Helen Ibbotson (HI)  Business Support – 
BMBC 

X   

Attendees 

Diane Lee (DL) Head of Public Health 
– BMBC 

X   

Dominic Armstrong (DA) Service Manager – 
BMBC 

x   

Rachel Payling (RP) Head of Service, 
Stronger Communities 
- BMBC 

x   

 

 

 Action Summary 

 

Item Action Responsible Officer 

4 DF and DA to meet outside of the board to discuss 
Harry’s Pledge further and highlight any links into the 
Support to Carers Strategy. 

Dave Fullen/Dominic Armstrong  

5 SB to take comments into account in respect of the 
SCP Board Plan on a Page and action appropriately. 

Shiv Bhurtun 

8 SB to review forward plan in respect of the next 
board, taking in to account time restraints. 

Shiv Bhurtun 

 

1. Apologies and Introductions 
The chair welcomed everyone to the meeting, introductions were made, and apologies noted as above.  

 

2. Previous Board 03.06.2021 
Previous minutes from 03.06.2021 agreed to be a true record.  
 
Previous actions reviewed  

 
 

3. Area Council Recovery Work   

 RP presented current progress.  
 
RP highlighted the reactive work by teams in response to the pandemic which remains as the service 
move into the recovery stage.  

Page 188



  

3 
 

 
‘Community listening exercises’ were discussed, which are pop-up events centred on 4 key questions 
aimed at understanding residents’ needs and issues following the pandemic. The approach has been 
adopted across all 6 areas. Data will be analysed by allocated Project officers and findings will be shared 
widely upon completion.   
 
Support in respect of food and keeping in touch/connected for individuals self-isolating continues. More 
specific support offer and accessibility also continues to be shared across agencies e.g. mental health 
support, support from volunteers etc.  
 
Work with providers continues, this has now moved into the recovery phase which includes access to 
PPE, digital support as well as providing advice and guidance in respect of re-opening safely.  
 
During the pandemic positive relationships have been built with partners via the Neighbourhood 
Engagement Officers. Points of contact have been ascertained within each of the 6 areas, this has also 
allowed positive promotion in respect of the vaccination programme.  
 
Support has been offered to the VCSE in respect of grant funding opportunities around covid resilience, 
mental health, business planning, sustainability as well as access to PPE. Access to a support programme 
funded through the Inclusive Economy Recovery Plan has also been discussed widely. Funds from the 
Inclusive Economic Programme has enabled support with bid writing, business planning and access to 
external funding.  
 
Additional comments/questions   
 
Chair - highlighted the importance of the ‘community listening exercise’ data being fed to Ward Alliance 
Members.  
 
Cllr BE – shared experience of the listening session attended as highly positive and highlighted the 
appropriate emphasis placed on the importance of family.  
 
PH -  welcomed the update summary and shared the positive observation in respect of the investment in 
the community-based model and how well this had been evidenced during the height of the pandemic 
period. PH: 

• Made reference to the speed of response and engagement of the relevant support was highlighted.  

• Added that without a doubt the community voluntary sector had too impacted positively on the 
outcome through the range of support they offered throughout which also continues.  

• Shared a view that many people felt that we were now over the worse of the pandemic and that the 
impact of covid highlighted the importance of each area finding strength again in the value of the 
model.   

 
Cllr BE – added that the local luncheon club had recently re-opened and noted an attendance of around 
29 individuals, however some individuals remain wary. Cllr BE remains in regular contact with these 
individuals and is hopeful that they will return as they feel more comfortable with the level of vaccine 
uptake.  
  

4.  Support to Carers  

 DA shared presentation with the board.  

 
Current consultation with residents of the borough is being undertaken via telephone in a bid to reach 
out to individuals with no access to internet facilities.  

 
It was noted that the responses documented within the presentation referred to forty contacts. DA 
emphasized this to be a small proportion of unpaid carers in the borough and that this is an ongoing 

Page 189



  

4 
 

piece of work.  

 
Additional comments/questions   

 
WL – shared the following observations: 

• Current work is producing highly valuable set of information in the development of an important 
strategy particularly within the context of the pandemic.  

• highlighted an experience in the community during the pandemic and engaging with a person who 
was caring for her husband diagnosed with dementia. WL noted how exhausted the carer was and 
the potential impact on her own health.  WL reflected that she felt that adult social care had 
focussed on the individual requiring the service and potentially less so on people around them who 
provide the day-to-day support and care.  

 
AB – highlighted the importance of strength-based conversations by social care remaining holistic and 
personable. AB echoed comments from WL and noted the importance of any requirements from a 
carer’s perspective being considered. In terms of safeguarding, AB noted the benefits of family group 
conferencing and how this can support carers to have difficult conversations with family members in a 
safe and managed environment.  

 
DF – highlighted how insightful DA’s presentation had been. DF went on to discuss the importance of the 
strategy not just concentrating on the traditional adults’ services. DF noted that during the pandemic 
Berneslai Homes had signed up to Harry’s Pledge, this goes beyond Berneslai Homes being required to 
provide appropriate housing and any required adaptations. There is a requirement for homes to be 
provided with specialist care and support, there is also a requirement for care services to be offered to 
support individuals who want to live independently in the community. This has shown a commitment 
from Berneslai Homes that they are caring for our communities. There was an agreement that DA and DV 
would discuss this further outside of today’s board.  

 
ACTION – DF and DA to meet outside of the board to discuss Harry’s Pledge further and highlight any 
links into the Support to Carers Strategy.  

 
The chair noted the vast differences in responses received and queried whether there had been a 
uniformed approach in place in respect of discussions. DA referred back to the specific questions which 
had been put forward during each discussion.  
 
AB - noted the importance of carers being aware of their right to their own assessment. AB noted how 
carers often struggled to see themselves in this role. Many carers see it as their duty to care for their 
wife/husband/family member.  

 
JH – offered assurance to the partnership that Jo Ekin was heavily involved in the development of the 
strategy. JH referred to the vast number of unrecognised carers in our area and the carer’s toolkit which 
BMBC was now working towards.  

 
JHO – queried clarity of farer charging within the context of carers entitlements and explained that 
individual’s decision on requesting an assessment proactively is often influenced by whether or not they 
are eligible for funding. DA acknowledged this point and agreed the importance of awareness. DA noted 
that it remained the council’s policy to assess the individual against any financial support they may 
require. For instance, any request for respite support will be linked to the individual requiring that 
support.  

 
AB – noted the importance of the use of carer cards, this provides carers with assurance around the 
safety of person being cared for.  
 
JH – acknowledged the comment from AB and highlighted the link into digital inclusion work programme 

Page 190



  

5 
 

being led by JH and potential opportunities for carers. JH agreed that the carers assists had been 
highlighted as a gap and that this would be looked at moving forward.  

 

5. SCP Plan on a Page September 2021 – August 2022 

 SB shared the ‘SCP plan on a page’ with members with recommendation for the plan to be supported 
and endorsed.  
 
SB briefed that the plan is a framework through which: 

• The partnership’s strategic aims and vision are explained. 

• Connection to the strategic ambition of the Barnsley 2030 objectives is described. 

• The most appropriate ‘Themes’ are identified where this partnership will make the most impact. 

• Partner’s contribution (actions/activities) will be progressed. These are linked into wider strategic 
agendas within the context of early help and prevention. 

• Partnership’s action is connected to the Barnsley 2030 ambition.  
 
SB added that: 

• The table in the plan summarised key areas of work for the next 12 months.  

• Achievements and Impact will be reported on using a range of format towards the end of the period 
which will be shared widely. 

• The draft plan is being designed by BMBC comms team and once finalised will be published in the 
appropriate format as through BMBC Coms.  

 
Additional comments/questions   
 
WL – observation, in respect of relationship representation and noted the integrated care arrangements.  
 
There was an agreement that items “Skills for life and work” and “Help to access employment” are more 
appropriate for the ‘Inclusive Economy Board’. 
 
ACTION – SB to take comments into account in respect of the SCP Board Plan on a Page and action 
appropriately.  
 
The chair confirmed that the proposed ‘SCP plan on a page 2021-2022’ will replace the previous SCP 
Annual plan.   
 

6. Increase the number of Safe Places available across the borough    

  
Item deferred to November.  
 

7.  Mental Health Strategy   

 DL shared the Mental Health Strategy presentation on behalf of Patrick Otway (Head of Commissioning, 
CCG).  
 
Current strategy was published prior to 2015. Ambition is that the new strategy will be concise and user 
friendly. Format of the document will highlight each priority, it’s related actions and how achievements 
will be reviewed to show impact.  Dementia will be included in the new strategy.  
 
Delivery group in respect of the revised Mental Health Strategy has now been established and reports 
into the Mental Health Partnership.  
 
DL invited EHA group members to contribute into the delivery group as appropriate.  
 
There is an agreement at the Mental Health partnership level that the strategy will be in place from 

Page 191



  

6 
 

October 2021.  
 
Additional comments/questions   
 
RP – noted that once the strategy was finalised it would be shared with residents of the borough, this 
consultation will be seeking clarification on the easy read element and how user friendly it is.  
 
WL – noted: 

• The importance of a joint up approach against the required outcomes of the strategy moving 
forward.  

• That leaders were required to come together and agree where the responsibility sat against each 
area.  

 
The chair emphasised the importance of this board to be sighted of actions that was required from the 
Mental Health Partnership and the value of joint working on this significant agenda.  

  

8. Forward Plan  

 The chair reviewed draft plan and noted the high number of proposed items scheduled for the next 
meeting 11.11.2021. It was agreed that for the partnership to remain focus and effective agendas needs 
to be developed to suit boards meeting lasting no longer than 1hr – 1.15 hour per session.  
JH confirmed that the following items could be removed: - 
 

- Aids and Adaptations 
- Implementing the Armed Forces Covenant  
- Safe and Well Checks   

 
ACTION – SB to review forward plan in respect of the next board, taking in to account time restraints.  

9. Any Other Business   

  
No items. 

  

Future Meetings  
Thursday 11th November 2021, 14.00 – 16.00, Microsoft Teams  

 

Page 192


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Board Meeting held on 7th October 2021
	5 Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment - Sohaib Akhtar
	Item 5 - PNA Context paper

	6 Mental Health Strategy - Patrick Otway
	7 Child of the North: Building a Fairer Future after Covid-19 - Mel John Ross
	8 Active in Barnsley Strategic Plan - Stuart Rogers & Dr Andy Snell
	Appendix

	9 Affordable Warmth / Warm Homes Team -  Kathy McArdle & Claire Maskill
	Item 9 - Warm Homes update - HWBB Feb 22 rv2

	10 Barnsley Hospital Health Inequalities Action Plan - Dr Andy Snell
	Item 10 - BHNFT Health Inequalities Action Plan - Cover Report

	11 Integrated Care System Update - Jeremy Budd
	12 Minutes from the Children and Young People's Trust Executive Group held on 14th October 2021
	13 Minutes from the Safer Barnsley Partnership held on 21st June 2021
	14 Minutes from the Stronger Communities Partnership held on 3rd June and 19th August 2021
	20210819 - Authorised SCP Board Mins


